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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Chesapeake has made statementsin this Form 10-K that are considered to be forward-looking statements. These statements are not matters of
historical fact. Sometimes they contain words such as "believes," "expects," "intends," "plans," "will," or "may," and other similar wordsof a
predictive nature. These statementsrelate to matters such as customer growth, changesin revenues or margins, capital expenditures,
environmenta remediation costs, regulatory approvals, market risks associated withthe Company's propane marketing operation, the
competitive position of the Company and other matters. It isimportant to understand that these forward-looking statements are not guarantees,
but are subject to certain risks and uncertainties and other important factors that could cause actual resultsto differ materially from those in the
forward-looking statements. See Item 7 under the heading "Management's Discussion and Analysis -- Cautionary Statement.”

(a8) GENERAL DEVELOPMENT OF BUSINESS

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation ("Chesapeake" or "the Company”) isa diversified utility company engaged in natural gas distribution and
transmission, propane distribution and marketing, advanced information servicesand other related businesses.

Chesapeake's three natural gas distribution divisions serve approximately 40,800 residential, commercial and industrial customers in southern
Delaware, Maryland's Eastern Shore and Florida. The Company'snatural gas transmission subsidiary, Eastern Shore Natural Gas Company

("Eastern Shore"), operates a 281-mile interstate pipeline systemthat transports gasfrom various points in Pennsylvaniato the Company's
Delaware and Maryland distribution divisions, as well as to other utilitiesand industrial customers in Delaware and on the Eastern Shore of

Maryland. The Company's propane distribution operation serves approximately 35,300 customers in southern Delaware, the Eastern Shore of
both Maryland and Virginia and parts of Florida. The advanced information services segment provides consulting, custom programming,
training and devel opment tools for national and international clients.

(b) FINANCIAL INFORMATION ABOUT INDUSTRY SEGMENTS
Financial information by business segment is includedin Item 7 under the heading "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements -- Note C."

(c) NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

The Company is engaged in three primary business activities: natural gas distribution and transmission, propane distribution and marketing, and
advanced information services. Inaddition to thethree primary groups, Chesapeake hasfour subsidiaries engaged in other service-related
businesses.

(i) (8 NATURAL GASDISTRIBUTION AND TRANSMISSION
GENERAL

Chesapeake distributes natural gas to approximately 40,900 residential, commercial and industrial customers in southern Delaware, the
Salisbury and Cambridge, Maryland areas on Maryland's Eastern Shore, and Florida. These activities are conducted through three utility
divisions, one division in Delaware, another in Maryland and a third division in Florida. The Company offers natural gassupply management
services in thestate of Florida under the name of Peninsula Energy Services Company ("PESCQO").

Delaware and Maryland. Chesapeake's Delaware and Maryland utility divisions ("Delaware”, "Maryland" or "the divisions") serve an average
of approximately 30,885 customers, of which approximately 30,730 are residential and commercial customers purchasing gas primarily for
heating purposes and theremainder are industrial customers. For the year, residential and commercial customers account for approximately
64% of thevolume delivered by the
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divisions and 69% of the divisions revenue. The divisions industrial customers purchase gas, primarily on an interruptible basis, for a variety
of manufacturing, agricultural and other uses. Most of Chesapeake's customer growth in these divisions comesfrom new residential
construction using gas heating equipment.

Florida. The Floridadivision distributes natural gas to approximately 9,953 residential and commercia and 88 industrial customersin Polk,
Osceola, Hillsborough, Gadsden, Gilchrist, Union, Holmes, Jackson, Desoto and Citrus Counties. Currently 42 of the division's 88 industrial
customers, which purchase and transport gas on afirmand interruptible basis, account for approximately 89% of thevolume delivered by the
Floridadivision and 39% of therevenues. These customersare primarily engaged in the citrusand phosphate industries and in electric
cogeneration. The Company's Florida division, through Peninsula Energy Services Company also provides natural gas supply management
services to 19 customers.

Eastern Shore. The Company'swholly owned transmission subsidiary, Eastern Shore, operates aninterstate natural gas pipeline and provides
open access transportation servicesfor affiliated and non-affiliated companies through anintegrated gas pipeline extending from southeastern
Pennsylvaniato Delaware and the Eastern Shore of Maryland. Eastern Shore also provides contract storage services as a sales service for
system balancing purposes ("swing gas'). Eastern Shore's rates are subject to regulation by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
("FERC").

ADEQUACY OF RESOURCES

General. The Delawareand Maryland divisions have firm and interruptible contracts with four interstate "open access' pipelinesincluding
Eastern Shore. The divisions are directly interconnected with Eastern Shore and services upstream of Eastern Shore are contracted with Transco
Gas Pipdine Corporation ("Transco"), ColumbiaGas Transmission ("Columbia") and ColumbiaGulf Transmission Company ("Gulf"). The
divisions use their firmtransportation supply sourcesto meet asignificant percentage of their projected demand requirements. In order to meet
the difference between firm supply and firm demand, peak-shaving (Delaware and Maryland divisions inject propane into their systemwhich
increases the BTU and the level of natural gas) and purchases natural gas on the "spot market" from various other suppliersthat istransported
by the upstream pipelines and delivered to the divisions' interconnects with Eastern Shore, as needed. The Company believes that the
availability of gas supply to the Delaware and Maryland divisionsis adequate under existing arrangements to meet customer's needs.

Delaware. Delaware's contracts with Transco include: () firm transportation capacity of 8,663 dekatherms ("Dt") per day, which expires in
2005; (b) firm transportation capacity of 311 Dt per day for December through February, expiring in 2006; and (c) firm storage service,
providing atotal capacity of 142,830 Dt, with provisions to continue from year to year, subjectto six

(6) months notice for termination.

Delaware's contracts with Columbia include: (&) firm transportation capacity of 852 Dt per day, whichexpiresin 2014; (b) firm transportation
capacity of 1,132 Dt per day, whichexpires in 2017; (c) firm transportation capacity of 549 Dt per day, which expiresin 2018; (d) firm
transportation capacity of 899 per day, which expiresin 2019; (e) firm storage service providing a peak day entitlement of 6,193 Dt and atotal
capacity of 298,195 Dt, which expiresin 2014; and (f) firm storage service, providing apeak day entitlement of 635 Dt and atotal capacity of
57,139 Dt, which expiresin 2017; (g) firm storage service providing a peak day entitlement of 583 Dt and atotal capacity of 52,460 Dt, which
expiresin 2018; and (h) firm storage service providing apeak day entitlement of 583 Dt and atotal capacity of 52,460 Dt, which expiresin
2019. Delaware's contracts with Columbiafor storage-related transportation provide quantities that are equivalent to the peak day entitlement
for the period of Octaber through March and are equivalent to fifty percent (50%) of the peak day entitlementfor the period of April through
September. The termsof the storage-related transportation contracts mirror the storage servicesthat they support.

Delaware's contract with Gulf, which expiresin 2004, provides firm transportation capacity of 868 Dt per day for the period November through
March and 798 Dt per day for the period April through October.
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Delaware's contracts with Eastern Shore include: (a) firm transportation capacity of 28,425 Dt per day for the period December through
February, 27,203Dt per day for the monthsof November, March and April, and 18,127 Dt per day for the period May through October, with
various expiration dates ranging from 2004 to 2017; (b) firm storage capacity under Eastern Shore's Rate Schedule GSS providing apeak day
entitlement of 2,655 Dt and atotal capacity of 131,370 Dt, which expiresin 2013; (c) firm storage capacity under Eastern Shore's Rate
Schedule LSS providing a peak day entitlement of 580 Dt and atotal capacity of 29,000 Dt, which expiresin 2013; and (d) firm storage
capacity under Eastern Shore's Rate Schedule LGA providing a peak day entitlement of 911 Dt and atotal capacity of 5,708 Dt, which expires
in 2006. Delaware's firm transportation contracts with Eastern Shore also include Eastern Shore's provision of swing transportation service.
This service includes:. (a) firmtransportation capacity of 1,846 Dt per day on Transco's pipeline system, retained by Eastern Shore, in addition
to Delaware's Transco capacity referenced earlier and (b) an interruptible storage service under Transco's Rate Schedule ESSthat supports a
swing supply serviceprovided under Transco's Rate Schedule FS.

Delaware currently hascontracts for the purchase of firm natural gas supply with four suppliers. These supply contracts provide the availability
of amaximum firmdaily entitlement of 19,700 Dt and the supplies aretransported by Transco, Columbia, Gulf and Eastern Shore under
Delaware's transportation contracts. The gas purchase contracts have various expiration dates and daily quantities may vary fromday to day and
month to month.

Maryland. Maryland's contracts with Transco include: (a) firm transportation capacity of 4,738 Dt per day, which expiresin 2005; (b) firm
transportation capacity of 155 Dt per day for December through February, expiring in 2006; and (c) firm storage service providing atotal
capacity of 33,120 Dt, with provisions to continuefrom year to year, subject to six months notice for termination.

Maryland's contracts with Columbia include: (a) firm transportation capacity of 442 Dt per day, which expiresin 2014; (b) firm transportation
capacity of 908 Dt per day, which expiresin 2017; (c) firm transportation capacity of 350 Dt per day, which expiresin 2018; (d) firm storage
service providing a peak day entitlement of 3,142 Dt and atotal capacity of 154,756 Dt, which expiresin 2014; and (e) firm storage service
providing a peak day entitlement of 521 Dt and atotal capacity of 46,881 Dt, which expires in 2017. Maryland's contracts with Columbia for
storage-related transportation provide quantities that are equivalent to the peak day entitlement for the period October through March and are
equivalent to fifty percent (50%) of the peak day entitlementfor the period April through September. The termsof the storage-related
transportation contracts mirror the storage services that they support.

Maryland's contract with Gulf, which expiresin 2004, provides firm transportation capacity of 590 Dt per day for the period November through
March and 543 Dt per day for the period April through October.

Maryland's contracts with Eastern Shore include: (a) firm transportation capacity of 13,378 Dt per day for the period December through
February, 12,654 Dt per day for the months of November, March and April, and 8,093 Dt per day for the period May through October; (b) firm
storage capacity under Eastern Shore's Rate Schedule GSS providing a peak day entitlement of 1,428 Dt and atotal capacity of 70,665 Dt,
which expires in 2013; (c) firm storage capacity under Eastern Shore's Rate Schedule LSS providing a pesk day entitlement of 309 Dt anda
total capacity of 15,500 Dt, which expires in 2013; and (d) firm storage capacity under Eastern Shore's Rate Schedule LGA providing a peak
day entitlement of 569 Dt and atotal capacity of 3,560 Dt, which expiresin 2006. Maryland's firm transportation contracts with Eastern Shore
also include Eastern Shore's provision of swing transportation service. This service includes: (a) firm transportation capacity of 969 Dt per day
on Transco's pipeline system, retained by Eastern Shore, in addition to Maryland's Transco capacity referenced earlier and (b) an interruptible
storage service under Transco's Rate Schedule ESS that supports aswing supply service provided under Transco's Rate Schedule FS.

Maryland currently has contracts for the purchase of firm natural gas supply with four suppliers. These contracts provide the availability of a
maximum firm daily entitlement of 9,000 Dt and the supplies are transported by
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Transco, Columbia, Gulf and Eastern Shore under Maryland's transportation contracts. The gas purchase contracts have various expiration dates
and daily quantities may vary fromday to day and month to month.

Florida. The Florida division receives transportation service from Florida Gas Transmission Company ("FGT"), amajor interstate pipeline.
Chesapeake has contractswith FGT for: (a) daily firm transportation capacity of 27,579 Dt in November through April, 21,200 Dt in May
through September, and 27,416 Dt in October under FGT's firm transportation service FTS-1 rate schedule;

(b) daily firm transportation capacity of 5,100 Dt in May through October, and 8,100 in November through April under FGT's firm
transportation service FTS-2 rate schedule. The firm transportation contract FTS-1 expires on August 1, 2010 with the Company retaining a
right of first refusal on this capacity. The firm transportation contract FTS-2 expires on March 1, 2015. Chesapeake has requested and been
approved for aturnback of all but 1,000 Dt per day year round of it'sFTS-2 capacity in two increments. These turnbacks coincide with the in
service dates of FGT's Phase4 Project scheduled to be in service in May 2001, and the Phase 5 Project scheduled to be in service in the second
quarter of 2002. The Florida division currently receives its gas supply fromvarious suppliers. If needed, some supply is bought on the spot
market; however, themgjority is bought under theterms of two firm supply contacts. The Company believes that the availability of gas supply
to the Floridadivision is adequate under existing arrangements to meet customer's needs.

Eastern Shore. Eastern Shore has4,916 thousand cubic feet ("Mcf") of firm transportation capacity under Rate Schedule FT under contract with
Transco, which expiresin 2005. Eastern Shore also has 7,046 Mcf of firm peak day entitlements and total storage capacity of 278,264 Mcf
under Rate Schedules GSS, LSSand LGA, respectively, under contract with Transco. The GSSand LSS contracts expire in 2013 andthe LGA
contract expiresin 2006.

Eastern Shore also hasfirm storage service under Rate Schedule FSS and firm storage transportation capacity under Rate Schedule SST under
contract with Columbia. These contracts, which expire in 2004, provide for 1,073 Mcf of firm peak day entitlement and total storage capacity
of 53,738 Mcf.

Eastern Shore has retained the firm transportation capacity and firm storage services described above in order to provide swing transportation
service to those customersthat requested such service.

COMPETITION
See discussion on competition in Item 7 under the heading "Management's Discussion and Analysis -- Competition.”
RATES AND REGULATION

General. Chesapeake'snatural gas distribution divisions are subject to regulation by the Delaware, Maryland and Florida Public Service
Commissionswith respect to various aspects of the Company'sbusiness, including therates for salesto al of their customers in each
jurisdiction. All of Chesapeake's firm distribution rates are subject to purchased gas adjustment clauses, which match revenues with gas costs
and normally allow eventual full recovery of gascosts. Adjustments under these clauses require periodic filings and hearings with the rel evant
regulatory authority, but do not require a general rate proceeding. Rates on interruptible sales by the Florida division are also subject to
purchased gas adjustment clauses.

Eastern Shore is subject to regulation by the FERC as an interstate pipeline. The FERC regulates the provision of service, termsand conditions
of service, and the rates and fees Eastern Shore can charge to its transportation customers. In addition, the FERC regulates therates Eastern
Shore is charged for transportation and transmission line capacity and services provided by Transco and Columbia.

Management monitors the rate of return in each jurisdiction in order to ensure thetimely filing of rate adjustment applications.
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REGULATORY PROCEEDINGS

Delaware. In September 1998, Chesapeake's Delaware division filed an application with the Delaware Public Service Commission ("DPSC") to
propose certain rate design changesto itsexisting margin sharing mechanism which was approved in Chesapeake'slast rate case.

The Company proposed certain rate design changesto itsexisting margin sharing mechanism in order to address the level of recovery of fixed
distribution costs from theresidential heating service customers and smaller commercia heating customers. The Company also proposed to
change the existing margin sharing mechanismto take into consideration the appropriate treatment of margins achieved by the addition of new
interruptible customerson the distribution system for which the Company makesadditional capital investments

In March 1999, the Company, DPSC Staff and the Division of the Public Advocate settled all the issuesin this matter and executed a proposed
settlement agreement. The settlement allows the Company to increase or decrease the current margin sharing thresholds based on the actual
level of recovery of fixed distribution costs from residential service heating and general service heating customers as compared to the level at
whichthe base tariff rateswere designed to recover in thelast rate case. Per the settlement, the Company can implement an adjustment to the
margin sharing thresholdsif the weather is at least 6.5% warmer or colder than normal; however, the total increase or decrease in the amount of
additional gross marginthat the Company will retain or credit to thefirm ratepayers cannot exceed a $500,000 cap.

Also, the Company will exclude the interruptible marginsfrom the existing margin sharing mechanism for onespecific interruptible customer
onitsdistribution systemfor whom the Company made a capital investment to serve and currently has under a contract for interruptible service.
Any additional margin retained for this customer will be included in the $500,000 cap mentioned above. The DPSC issued its final approval of
the proposed settlement on May 25, 1999.

The Company earned or retained $500,000 of additional gross margin during 2000 as the Company met the requirements of the approved
settlement in order to implement the approved mechanism.

Maryland. During the 1999 Maryland General Assembly legislative session, taxation of electric and gas utilities changed by the passage of The
Electric and Gas Utility Tax Reform Act ("Tax Act"). Effective January 1, 2000, the Tax Act altered utility taxation to account for the
restructuring of the electric and gas industries by either repealing and/or amending the existing Public Service Company Franchise Tax,
Corporate Income Tax and Property Tax. Chesapeake submitted a regulatory filing with the Maryland Public Service Commission ("MPSC")
on December 30, 1999 to implement new tariff sheets necessary to incorporate the changes necessitated by the passage of the Tax Act. The
tariff revisions (1) would implement new base tariff rates to reflect the estimated state corporate income tax liability;

(2) assess the new per unit distribution franchise tax; and (3) repeal specified portions of the tariff that related to the former 2% gross receipts
tax.

On January 12, 2000, the Maryland Public Service Commission ("MPSC") issued an order requiring the Company to file new tariff sheets, with
an effective date of January 12, 2000, to increase its natural gas delivery servicerates by $82,763 on an annual basisto recover the estimated
impact of the state corporate income tax. Also as part of theMPSC order, the Company was directed to recover the new distribution franchise
tax of $0.0042 per Ccf as a separate lineitem charge on the customers' bills. On January 14, 2000, the Company filed new natural gas tariff
sheets in compliance with the MPSC order.

Florida. On July 15, 1999, the Florida Divisionfiled a Joint Petition with Tampa Electric / Peoples Gas System for approval of aterritorial
boundary agreement in Hillsborough, Polk and Osceola Counties. On November 10, 1999, the Florida Public Service Commissionissued an
order approving theterms and conditions of the agreement. The
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agreement included thetransfer of facilities in Hillsborough County owned by Chesapeake to Peoples Gas System and thetransfer of facilities
in Gilchrist and Union Countiesowned by Peoples Gas System to Chesapeake. The transferswere made at the depreciated book value of the
facilities.

On August 19,1999, the Florida Division filed a petition withthe Florida Public Service Commission for approval of a gastransportation
agreement with Citrosuco North America, Inc. located in Polk County, Florida. The Florida Public Service Commission approved the
agreement on October 25, 1999. The agreement provides for the Florida Division to lease an 8-inch steel natural gas pipeline from Citrosuco
and in return, the Florida Divisionwill provide natural gas service under its CTS rate schedule as a special contract.

On January 28, 2000, the Florida Division filed arequest for approval of arate increase with the Florida Public Service Commission. An Order
was issued on November 28, 2000 approving arate increase of $1,251,900 that was 69% of the requested $1,826,569. A return on equity of
11.5% was approved with an overall rate of return of 8.6%. The new rates were effective December 7, 2000. In addition, all non-residential
customers became eligible for transportation services. In order to transport, each customer with annual consumption less than 100,000 therms
per year must aggregate into poolsto meet certain established minimumsfor therm thresholds and number of customer per pool.

On October 17, 2000, the FPSC approved a special contract with Peace River Citrus in Desoto County. The agreement is for the construction of
a4" steel natural gasmain extending from Forida Gas Transmission's new Phase 1V pipeline in Desoto County approximately eight miles to
the citrus processing plant near Arcadia.

Eastern Shore. In September 1998, Eastern Shore filed anapplication before the FERC requesting authorization to construct and operate a total
of eight miles (4.5 milesin Pennsylvania and 3.5 milesin Delaware) of 16-inch pipeline looping on Eastern Shore's existing systemand to
install 1,085 horsepower of additional compression at itsDelaware City compressor station. The purpose of thesenew facilities isto enable
Eastern Shore to provide 16,540 dekatherms of additional firm transportation capacity on itssystem for two existing customers, Delmarva
Power and Light Company and Star Enterprise. The expansion was completed during the fourth quarter of 1999. The project cost was
approximately $7.0 million.

In March 1998, the FERC authorized Eastern Shore to replace 2.3 miles of 6-inch pipeline with 10-inch pipeline along Route 72 and Power
Road, all in conjunction with a Delaware Department of Transportation highway relocation project. In September 1998, Eastern Shore filed an
amendment requesting that the FERC authorize an increase in the diameter of the previously approved

2.3-mile pipeline from 10 inches to 16 inches. This proposal was approved by the FERC in October 1998. Construction was completed during
1999.

On December 9, 1999, Eastern Shorefiled an application before the FERC requesting authorization for the following: (1) construct and operate
approximately two miles of 16-inch mainline looping in Pennsylvania, (2) abandonment of onemile of 2-inch lateral in Delaware and Maryland
and replacement of the segment with a4-inchlateral, (3) construct and operate approximately ten miles of 6-inchmainline extension in
Delaware, (4) construct and operate five delivery points on the new 6-inch mainline extension in Delaware, and (5) install certain minor
auxiliary facilitiesat the existing Daleville compressor station in Pennsylvania. The purpose of the construction was to enable Eastern Shore to
provide 7,065 Dts of additional daily firm service capacity on Eastern Shore's system. The FERC approved Eastern Shore's application on April
28, 2000. The two miles of 16-inch mainline looping in Pennsylvania and the one mile of 4-inch lateral replacement in Delaware and Maryland
were completed and placed in serviceduring thefourth quarter of 2000. The ten miles of 6-inch mainline extension and associated delivery
points in Delaware are expected to be completed and placed into service during the second quarter of 2001.

On December 22, 2000, Eastern Shorefiled an application before the FERC requesting authorization for the following: (1) to construct and
operate six miles of 16-inch pipelinelooping in Pennsylvania and Maryland, (2)
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install 3,330 horsepower of additional capacity at the existing Daleville compressor station and (3) construct and operate a new delivery point
in Chester County, Pennsylvania. The purpose of the construction isto enable Eastern Shore to provide 19,800 Dts of additional daily firm
service capacity on its system. The proposed expansion is targeted for completion by November 1, 2001 and is expected to cost approximately
$12.5 million.

On January 4, 2001 FERC notified Eastern Shore that its December 22 application wasdeficient inthat it did not conform to the Commission's
minimum certificate filing requirements and was therefore rejected without prejudice to Eastern Shore filing a complete application. Eastern
Shore re-filed a complete application on January 11, 2001.

(i) (b) PROPANE DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING
GENERAL

Chesapeake's propane distribution group consists of (1) Sharp Energy, Inc. ("Sharp Energy™), awholly owned subsidiary of Chesapeake, (2)
Sharpgas, Inc. ("Sharpgas'), awholly owned subsidiary of Sharp Energy, and (3) Tri-County Gas Company, Inc. ("Tri-County"), awholly
owned subsidiary of Chesapeake. The propane marketing group consists of Xeron, Inc. (*Xeron"), awholly owned subsidiary of Chesapeake.

The Company's consolidated propane distribution operation served approximately 35,600 propane customerson the Delmarva Peninsula and
delivered approximately 28 million retail and wholesale gallons of propane during 2000.

In April 2000, Sharp Energy, Inc. started a propane distribution operation in West Palm Beach Florida doing business as Treasure Coast
Propane.

In May 1998, Chesapeake acquired Xeron, a natural gasliquids trading company located in Houston, Texas. Xeron markets propane to large
independent and petrochemical companies, resellersand southeastern retail propane companies in the United States.

The propane distribution business is affected by many factors such as seasonality, the absence of price regulation and competition among local
providers. The propane marketing businessis affected by wholesale price volatility and the demand and supply of propane at awholesale level.

Propaneis aform of liquefied petroleum gaswhich istypically extracted from natural gas or separated during the crude ail refining process.
Although propane isa gasat normal pressures, it iseasily compressed into liquid formfor storage and transportation. Propaneis a
clean-burning fuel, gaining increased recognition for its environmental superiority, safety, efficiency, transportability and ease of use relative to
alternative forms of energy. Propane is sold primarily in suburban and rural areas which are not served by natural gas pipelines. Demand is
typically much higher in the winter monthsand is significantly affected by seasonal variations, particularly the relative severity of winter
temperatures, because of its use in residential and commercial heating.

ADEQUACY OF RESOURCES

The Company's propane distribution operations purchase propane primarily from suppliers, including major domestic oil companies and
independent producers of gas liquidsand oil. Supplies of propane from these and other sources are readily availablefor purchaseby the
Company. Supply contracts generally include minimum (not subject to a take-or-pay premiums) and maximum purchase provisions.

The Company's propane distribution operations use trucksand railroad cars to transport propane fromrefineries, natural gas processing plants
or pipeline terminalsto the Company'shulk storage facilities. From these facilities, propane is delivered in portable cylinders or by "bobtail"
trucks, owned and operated by the Company, to tankslocated at the customer's premises.
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Xeron has no physical storage facilities or equipment to transport propane; however, it contracts for storage and pipeline capacity to facilitate
the sale of propane on awholesale basis.

COMPETITION

The Company's propane distribution operations compete with severa other propane distributorsin their service territories, primarily on the
basis of service and price, emphasizing reliability of service and responsiveness. Competition is generally local because distributors located in
close proximity to customers incur lower costs of providing service. Propane competes withelectricity asan energy source, becauseit is
typicaly less expensive than el ectricity, based on equivalent BTU value. Since natural gas has historically been less expensive than propane,
propane is generally not distributed in geographic areas serviced by natural gaspipeline or distribution systems.

Xeron competes against various marketers, many of which have significantly great resources and are able to obtain price or volumetric
advantages over Xeron.

The Company's propane distribution and marketing activities are not subject to any federal or state pricing regulation. Transport operations are
subject to regulations concerning the transportation of hazardous materialspromulgated under the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Act, whichis
administered by the United States Department of Transportation and enforced by the various states in which such operations take place.
Propane distribution operations are also subject to state safety regulations relating to "hook-up" and placement of propane tanks.

The Company's propane operations are subject to all operating hazards normally associated with the handling, storage and transportation of
combustible liquids, such as therisk of personal injury and property damage caused by fire. The Company carries general liability insurance in
the amount of $35,000,000 per occurrence, but thereis no assurance that such insurance will be adequate.

(i) (c) ADVANCED INFORMATION SERVICES
GENERAL

Chesapeake's advanced information services segment consists of United Systems, Inc. ("USI"), awholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
US! isbased in Atlanta and primarily provides support for users of PROGRESS(TM), afourth generation computer language and Relational
Database Management System. USI offers consulting, training, software development tools, web development and customer software
development for its client base, which includes many large domestic and international corporations.

COMPETITION
The advanced information services business faces significant competition from a number of larger competitors having substantially greater
resources available to them than does the Company. Inaddition, changesin the advanced information services business are occurring rapidly,

which could adversely impact the markets for the products and services offered by these businesses.

(i) (d) OTHER SUBSIDIARIES

Skipjack, Inc. ("Skipjack™), Eastern Shore Real Estate, Inc. and Chesapeake Investment Company arewholly owned subsidiaries of Chesapeake
Service Company. Skipjack and Eastern Shore Real Estate, Inc. own and lease office buildings in Delaware and Maryland to affiliates of
Chesapeake. Chesapeake Investment Company is a Delaware affiliated investment company.

In March 1998, the Company acquired Sam Shannahan Well Co., based in Salisbury, Maryland, doing business as Tolan Water Service
("Tolan"). Tolanwas a privately owned EcoWater dealership serving 3,000 customerson the Delmarva Peninsula with divisions supporting
residential, commercial and industrial water treatment. The 3000 customers are receiving recurring water treatment services during the year.
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In 1999, the Company established Sharp Water, Inc., awholly owned subsidiary of Chesapeake, whichin November 1999, acquired EcoWater
Systems of Michigan, Inc., doing business asDouglas Water Conditioning, an EcoWater dealership that has services the Detroit, Michigan area.
This dealership provides water treat products and services.

In January 2000, the Company acquired Carroll Water Systems, Inc. of Westminster, Maryland. Carroll was a privately owned EcoWater
dealership serving the suburban area of Baltimore, Maryland. This dealership provides water treat products and services

(1) SEASONAL NATURE OF BUSINESS

Revenues from the Company's residential and commercial natural gas sales and from its propane distribution activities are affected by seasonal
variations, since the majority of these salesare to customers using the fuelsfor heating purposes. Revenues from these customers are
accordingly affected by the mildness or severity of the heating season.

(1) CAPITAL BUDGET

A discussion of capital expenditures by business segment isincluded in Item 7 under the heading "Management Discussion and Analysis --
Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

(IV) EMPLOYEES

Asof December 31, 2000, Chesapeake had 542 employees, including 344 in natural gasand propane, 82 in advanced information servicesand
71 inwater conditioning. The remaining 45 employees are considered general and administrative and include officers of the Company, treasury,
accounting, information technology, human resources and other administrative personnel. The acquisition of Carroll Water Services added 15
employees.

(v) EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
Information pertaining to the executive officers of the Company is as follows:

Ralph J. Adkins (age 58) Mr. Adkinsis Chairman of theBoard of Directors of Chesapeake. He has served as Chairman since 1997. Prior to
January 1, 1999, Mr. Adkins served as Chief Executive Officer, aposition he had held since1990. During his tenure with Chesapeake Mr.
Adkins has also served as President and Chief Executive Officer, President and Chief Operating Officer, Executive Vice President, Senior Vice
President, Vice President and Treasurer of Chesapeake. He hasbeen a director of Chesapeake since 1989.

John R. Schimkaitis (age 53) Mr. Schimkaitis assumed therole of Chief Executive Officer on January 1, 1999. He has served as President since
1997. His present termwill expire on May 15, 2001. Prior to his new post, Mr. Schimkaitis hasalso served asPresident and Chief Operating
Officer, Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Vice President, Treasurer,
Assistant Treasurer and Assistant Secretary of Chesapeake. He has been a director of Chesapeake since 1996.

Michael P. McMasters (age 42) Mr. McMasters is Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation.
He has served as Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer since December 1996. He previoudly served as Vice President of
Eastern Shore, Director of Accounting and Ratesand Controller. From 1992 to May 1994, Mr. McMasters was employed as Director of
Operations Planning for Equitable Gas Company.

Stephen C. Thompson (age 40) Mr. Thompson is Vice President of the Natural Gas Operations as well asVice President of Chesapeake
Utilities Corporation. He has served as Vice President since May 1997. He has served
as
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President, Vice President, Director of Gas Supply and Marketing, Superintendent of Eastern Shore and Regional Manager for the Florida
distribution Operations.

William C. Boyles (age43) Mr. Boylesis Vice President and Corporate Secretary of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation. Mr. Boyles has served
as Corporate Secretary since 1998 and Vice President since 1997. He previously served as Director of Administrative Services, Director of
Accounting and Finance, Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer and Treasury Department Manager. Prior to joining Chesapeake, he wasemployed as a
Manager of Financial Analysisat Equitable Bank of Delaware and Group Controller at Irving Trust Company of New Y ork.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
(8) GENERAL

The Company owns offices and operates facilitiesin the following locations:

Pocomoke, Salisbury, Cambridge and Princess Anne, Maryland; Dover, Seaford, Laurel and Georgetown, Delaware; and Winter Haven,
Florida. Chesapeake rents office space in Dover, Delaware; Plant City, Jupiter, and Lecanto, Florida; Chincoteague and Belle Haven, Virginia;
Easton, Salisbury, Westminster and Pocomoke, Maryland; Detroit, Michigan; Houston, Texas and Atlanta, Georgia. In general, the properties
of the Company are adequate for the usesfor which they are employed. Capacity and utilization of the Company's facilitiescan vary
significantly due to the seasonal nature of the natural gasand propane distribution businesses.

(b) TOLAN WATER SERVICE

The Company owns and operates aresin regeneration facility in Salisbury, Maryland to serve approximately 3,000 exchange tank and meter
water customers.

(c) NATURAL GASDISTRIBUTION

Chesapeake owns over 645 miles of natural gas distribution mains (together with related service lines, meters and regulators) located in its
Delaware and Maryland serviceareas and 547 miles of such mains (and related equipment) in its Central Florida service areas. Chesapeake also
ownsfacilities in Delaware and Maryland for propane-air injection during periods of peak demand. Portions of the properties constituting
Chesapeake's distribution system are encumbered pursuant to Chesapeake's First Mortgage Bonds.

(d) NATURAL GAS TRANSMISSION

Eastern Shore owns approximately 281 miles of transmission lines extending from Parkesburg, Pennsylvania to Salisbury, Maryland. Eastern
Shore also owns three compressor stationslocated in Delaware City, Delaware; Daleville, Pennsylvaniaand Bridgeville, Delaware. The
compressor stationsare used to provide increased pressures required to meet demands on the system.

(e) PROPANE DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING

The company's Delmarva-based propane distribution operation own bulk propane storage facilities with an aggregate capacity of approximately
1.9 million gallons at 32 plant facilities in Delaware, Maryland and Virginia, located on real estate they either own or lease. The company's
Florida-based propane distribution operation owns one bulk propane storage facility with a capacity of 30,000 gallons. Xeron has no physical
storage facilities or equipment to transport propane.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

(8) GENERAL

The Company and its subsidiaries are involved in certain legal actions and claims arising in the normal course of business. The Companyis also
involved in certain legal and administrative proceedings before various governmental agencies concerning rates. Inthe opinion of management,
the ultimatedisposition of theseproceedings will not have a material effect on the consolidated financia position of the Company.

(b) ENVIRONMENTAL
DOVER GASLIGHT SITE

In 1984, the State of Delaware notified the Company that they had discovered contamination ona parcel of land it purchased in 1949 from
Dover Gas Light Company, a predecessor gas company. The State also asserted that the Company was the responsible party for any clean-up
and prospective environmental monitoring of the site. The Delaware Department of Natural Resources and Environmental Control ("DNREC")
and Chesapeake conducted subsequent investigations and studiesin 1984 and 1985. Soil and ground-water contamination associated with the
operations of the former manufactured gas plant ("MGP"), the Dover Gas Light Company, were found on the property.

In February 1986, the State of Delaware entered into an agreement (“the 1986 Agreement™) with Chesapeake whereby Chesapeake reimbursed
the Statefor its coststo purchase an aternate property for construction of its Family Court Building and the State agreed to never construct on
the property of theformer MGP.

In October 1989, the Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") listed the Dover Gas Light Site ("site") on the National Priorities List under
the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act ("CERCLA" or "Superfund"). EPA named both the State of
Delaware and the Company as potentially responsible parties ("PRPs") for the site.

The EPA issued a clean-up remedy for the site through a Record of Decision ("ROD") dated August 16, 1994. The remedial action selected by
the EPA inthe ROD addressed the ground-water and soil. The ground-water remedy included a combination of hydraulic containment and
natural attenuation. The soil remedy included complete excavation of the former MGP property. The ROD estimated the costs of the selected
remediation of ground-water and soil at $2.7 million and $3.3 million, respectively.

In May 1995, EPA issued an order to the Company under section 106 of CERCLA (the"Order"), whichrequired the Company to implement
the remedy described inthe ROD. The Order was also issued to General Public Utilities Corporation, Inc. ("GPU"), which both EPA and the
Company believeisliable under CERCLA. Other PRPs, including the State of Delaware, werenot ordered to perform the ROD. Although
notifying EPA of its objectionsto the Order, the Company agreed to comply. GPU informed EPA that it did not intend to comply withthe
Order and to this date has not complied withthe EPA Order.

The Company performed field studies and investigationsduring 1995 and 1996 to further characterize the extent of contamination at the site. In
April 1997, the EPA issued afact sheet stating that the EPA was considering a modification to the soil remedy that would take into account the
site's future land userestrictions, which prohibited future development on the site. The EPA proposed a soil remediation that included some
on-site excavation of contaminated soils and use of institutional controls; EPA estimated the cost of its proposed soil remedy at $5.7 million.
Additionally, the fact sheet acknowledged that the soil remedy described in the ROD would cost $10.5 million, instead of the $3.3 million
estimated in the ROD, making the overall remedy cost $13.2 million ($10.5 million to perform the soil remedy and $2.7 million to perform the
ground-water remediation).

In June 1997, the Company submitted a supplement to the focused feasibility study, which proposed an alternative soil remedy that would take
into account the 1986 Agreement between Chesapeake and the State of Delaware restricting
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future development at thesite. On December 16, 1997, the EPA issued a ROD Amendment to modify the soil remedy to include: (1) excavation
and off-site thermal treatment of the contents of the former subsurface gasholders; (2) implementation of soil vapor extraction; (3) pavement of
the parkinglot and (4) useof institutional controls restricting future development on thesite. The overall clean-up cost of the site was estimated
at $4.2 million ($1.5 million for soil remediation and $2.7 million for ground-water remediation).

During thefourth quarter of 1998, the Company completed the field work associated with the remediation of the gasholders (a major
component of the soil remediation). During the first quarter of 1999, the Company submitted reports to the EPA documenting the gasholder
remedial activities and requesting closure of thegas holder remedial project. In April 1999, the EPA approved the closure of the gasholder
remediation project, certified that all performance standards for the project were met and no additional work was needed for that phase of the
soil remediation. The gasholder remediation project was completed at a cost of $550,000.

During 1999, the Company completed the construction of the soil vapor extraction ("SVE") system (another major component of the soil
remediation) and continued with the ongoing operation of the system at acost of $250,000. In 2000, the Company operated the SVE system and
during the last quarter of 2000, the Company submitted to the EPA their finding along with arequest to discontinue the SVE operations. The
Company is awaiting a response from the EPA on their request. If discontinuation of the SVE procedures is approved, the company will initiate
final construction of a parking lot and proceed with a ground-water remedial program.

The Company's independent consultants have prepared preliminary cost estimates of two potentially acceptable aternativesto complete the
ground-water remediation activities at the site. The costs range from alow of $390,000 in capital and $37,000 per year of operating costsfor 30
yearsfor natural attenuation to ahigh of $3.3 millionin capital and $1.0 million per year in operating coststo operate a pump-and-treat /
ground-water containment system. The pump-and-treat / ground-water containment system is intended to contain the MGP contaminants to
allow the ground-water outside of the containment area to naturally attenuate. The operating cost estimatefor the containment system is
dependent upon the actual ground-water quality and flow conditions. The Company continuesto believe that a ground-water containment
system is not necessary for the MGP contaminants, that there isinsufficient information to design an overall ground-water containment program
and that natural attenuation isthe appropriate remedial action for the MGP wastes.

The Company cannot predict what the EPA will requirefor the overall ground-water program, and accordingly, hasnot adjusted the $2.1
million accrued at December 31, 1999 for the Dover site, aswell as aregulatory asset for an equivalent amount. Of this amount, $1.5 millionis
for ground-water remediation and $600,000 isfor theremaining soil remediation. The $1.5 million represents the low end of the ground-water
remedy estimates described above.

In March 1995, the Company commenced litigation against the State of Delaware for contribution to the remedial costs being incurred to
implement the ROD. In December of 1995, thiscase was dismissed without prejudice based on a settlement agreement between the parties (the
"Settlement”). Under the Settlement, the State agreed to: reaffirm the 1986 Agreement with Chesapeake not to construct on the MGP property
and support the Company'sproposal to reduce the soil remedy for the site; contribute $600,000 toward the cost of implementing the ROD and
reimburse the EPA for $400,000 in oversight costs. The Settlement is contingent upon aformal settlement agreement between EPA and the
State of Delaware. Upon satisfaction of all conditions of the Settlement, thelitigation will be dismissed with prejudice.

In June 1996, the Company initiated litigation against GPU for response costs incurred by Chesapeake and a declaratory judgment as to GPU's
liability for future costs at thesite. In August 1997, the United States Department of Justice also filed alawsuit against GPU seeking a Court
Order to require GPU to participate in the site clean-up, pay penalties for GPU's failureto comply with the EPA Order, pay EPA's past costs
and a declaratory judgment as to GPU's liability for future costsat the site. In November 1998, Chesapeake's case was consolidated with the
United States caseagainst GPU. A case management order scheduled the trial for February 2001. In early February 2001, the Company and
GPU reached a tentative settlement agreement that is subject to approval of the courts.
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The Company is currently engaged in investigations related to additional parties who may be PRPs. Based upon these investigations, the
Company will consider filings lawsuitsagainst these other PRPs. The Company expects continued negotiations with PRPs in an attempt to
resolve these matters.

Management believes that in addition to the $600,000 expected to be contributed by the State of Delaware under the Settlement, the Company
will be equitably entitled to contribution from other responsible parties for a portion of the remedial costs. The Company expectsthat it will be
able to recover actual costs incurred (exclusive of carrying costs), which are not recovered from other responsible parties, through the
ratemaking process in accordance with the existing environmental cost recovery rider provisions described below.

Through December 31, 2000, the Company has incurred approximately $8.4 million in costsrelating to environmental testing and remedial
action studies. In 1990, the Company entered into settlement agreements with a number of insurance companies resulting in proceeds to fund
actual environmental costsincurred over afive to seven-year period. In 1995, the Delaware Public Service Commission, authorized recovery of
all unrecovered environmental costsincurred by a means of arider (supplement) to base rates, applicableto al firm service customers. The
costs, exclusive of carrying costs, would be recovered through afive-year amortization offset by the associated deferred tax benefit. The
deferred tax benefit isthe carrying cost savings associated with the timing of the deduction of environmental costs for tax purposes asopposed
to financial reporting purposes. Each year an environmental surcharge rateis calculated to become effective December 1. The surcharge or
rider rate is based on the amortization of expenditures through September of thefiling year plus amortization of expensesfrom previous years.
Therider isthat it makes it unnecessary to file arate case every year to recover expensesincurred. Through December 31, 2000, the
unamortized balance and amount of environmental costs not included in the rider; effective January 1, 2001 were $3,048,000 and $335,000,
respectively. With the rider mechanism established, it is management's opinion that these costs and any future cost, net of the deferred income
tax benefit, will be recoverable in rates.

SALISBURY TOWN GASLIGHT SITE

In cooperation withthe Maryland Department of the Environment ("MDE"), the Company completed assessment of the Salisbury manufactured
gas plant site, determining that there was localized ground-water contamination. During 1996, the Company completed construction and began
Air Sparging and Soil-Vapor Extraction remediation procedures. Chesapeake hasbeen reporting the remediation and monitoring resultsto the
MDE on an ongoing basis since 1996. The Company hasrequest approva from theMDE approval to shutdown the remediation procedures
currently in place. The MDE approved a temporary shutdown and is evaluating a complete shutdown of the system.

The estimated cost of the remaining remediation is approximately $125,000 per year for operating expenses for a period of two years and
capital costs of $50,000 to shut down the remediation process in year two. Based on these estimated costs, the Company adjusted baoth its
liability and related regulatory asset to $175,000 on December 31, 2000, to cover the Company'sprojected remediation costsfor thissite.
Through December 31, 2000, the Company has incurred approximately $2.7 million for remedial actions and environmental studies. Of this
amount, approximately $972,000 of incurred costs have not been recovered through insurance proceeds or received ratemaking treatment.
Chesapeake will apply for therecovery of these and any future costsin the next base rate filing with the Maryland Public Service Commission.

WINTER HAVEN COAL GASSITE

Chesapeake has been working with the Florida Department of Environmental Protection ("FDEP") in assessing a coal gas sitein Winter Haven,
Florida. In May 1996, the Company filed an Air Sparging and Soil Vapor Extraction Pilot Study Work Plan for the Winter Haven site with the
FDEP. The Work Plan described the Company's proposal to undertake an Air Sparging and Soil Vapor Extraction ("AS/SVE") pilot study to
evaluate the site. After discussions with the FDEP, the Company filed a modified AS/SVE Pilot Study Work Plan, the description of the scope
of work to complete the site assessment activities and a report describing a limited sediment investigation performed in 1997. In December
1998, the
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FDEP approved the AS/SVE Pilot Study Work Plan, which the Company completed during the third quarter of 1999. Chesapeake has reported
the results of theWork Plan to the FDEP for further discussion and review. In February 2001, the company filed aremedia action plan
("RAP") with the FDEP to address the contamination of the subsurface soil and groundwater in the northern portion of the site. The RAP
included a cost estimate of $635,000 to complete this phase of the remediation. The Company is awaiting FDEP approval of the RAP. Oncethe
FDEP approves the RAP, the Company will commence remediation procedures accordingto the RAP.

Based on the RAP filed with the FDEP, the Company has accrued $635,000 as of December 31, 2000 for theFlorida site, aswell as a
regulatory asset for an equivalent amount. The Company hasrecovered all environmental costs incurred to date, approximately $781,000,
through rates charged to customers. Additionally, the Florida Public Service Commission has allowed the Company to continueto recover
amounts for future environmental coststhat might be incurred. At December 31, 2000, Chesapeake had received $560,000 related to future
costs, which might be incurred.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO AVOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None
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PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FORTHE REGISTRANT'SCOMMON STOCK AND RELATED SECURITY HOLDER MATTERS
() COMMON STOCK PRICE RANGES, COMMON STOCK DIVIDENDSAND SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:

The Company's Common Stock is listed on theNew Y ork Stock Exchange under the symbol "CPK." The high, low and closing prices of
Chesapeake's Common Stock and dividends declared per sharefor each calendar quarter during the years 2000 and 1999 were as follows:

DI VI DENDS
DECLARED
QUARTER ENDED H GH Low CLOSE PER SHARE
2000
March 31................. $18.8750........ $16. 2500. .. ..... $16.9375.......... $0. 2600
June 30........... ... ..... 18.5000......... 16.3750......... 17.7500........... 0. 2600
Septenber 30.............. 18.1250......... 16.6250......... 18.1250........... 0. 2700
Decenber 31............... 18.7500......... 16.7500......... 18.6250........... 0. 2700
1999
March 31................. $19. 5000. ....... $15.8750........ $16.0625.......... $0. 2500
June 30................... 18.8750......... 14.8750......... 18.5625........... 0. 2500
Septenber 30.............. 19.8125......... 17.1875......... 17.2500........... 0. 2600
Decenmber 31............... 19.6250......... 17.1250......... 18.3750........... 0. 2600

Indentures pertaining to thelong-term debt of the Company and itssubsidiaries each contain a restriction that the Company cannot, until the
retirement of its Series | Bonds, pay any dividends after December 31, 1988 which exceed the sum of $2,135,188, plus consolidated net income
recognized on or after January 1, 1989. Asof December 31, 2000, the amounts available for future dividends permitted by the Series | covenant
are $19.3 million.

At December 31, 2000, there wereapproximately 2,166 shareholders of record of the Common Stock.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Revenues
Nat ural gas distribution and transm ssion $ 99, 750 $ 75, 592 $ 68, 745
Propane distribution and narketing 216, 267 138, 437 102, 063
Advanced infornations systens 12, 353 13,531 10, 331
Q her 7,037 2,640 1,781
Total revenues $ 335, 407 $ 230, 200 $ 182,920
G oss margin
Nat ural gas distribution and transmni ssion $ 36, 430 $ 33, 063 $ 29,516
Propane distribution and narketing 16, 194 14, 099 12,071
Advanced infornmations systens 5,716 6, 575 5, 316
Q her 3,431 963 901
Total gross nmargin $ 61,771 $ 54, 700 $ 47, 804
Operating incone before taxes
Nat ural gas distribution and transni ssion $ 12,365 $ 10, 300 $ 8,814
Propane distribution and narketing 2,319 2,627 971
Advanced informati ons systens 336 1, 470 1, 316
Q her 1, 006 452 504
Total operating income before taxes $ 16,026 $ 14, 849 $ 11, 605
Net inconme from continuing operations(2) $ 7,489 $ 8,271 $ 5, 303

Gross property, plant and equi pnent $ 192,928 $ 172,088 $ 152,991
Net property, plant and equi pnent $ 131, 466 $ 117,663 $ 104, 266
Total assets $ 210,700 $ 166, 989 $ 145,234
Capi tal expenditures $ 23,056 $ 25,917 $ 12,650

St ockhol ders' equity $ $ $
Long-term debt, net of current nmaturities $ $ $
Total capitalization $ $ $
Current portion of |ong-term debt $ 2,665 $ 2, 665 $ 520
Short-term debt $ $ $
Total capitalization & short-term financing $ $ $

(1) 1994 and prior years have not been restated to include the business combinations with Tri-County Gas Company, Inc., Tolan Water Service
and Xeron, Inc.

(2) For theyears 1992 and 1991, the Company had discontinued operations, which had an effect on earnings of $73,500 and ($594,000),
respectively.
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Revenues
Natural gas distribution and transni ssion
Propane distribution and narketing
Advanced i nformati ons systens
Q her

88, 105 $ 90, 093

79, 105
147, 596
7,307
1, 277

Total revenues

Gross margin
Natural gas distribution and transm ssion
Propane distribution and narketing
Advanced informati ons systens
Q her

125, 159 161, 812
7,636 6, 903
1, 589 1,294

222,489 $ 260, 102

12, 492 17,579
3, 856 2,503
737 915

Total gross margin

Qperating inconme before taxes
Natural gas distribution and transm ssion
Propane distribution and nmarketing

Advanced i nformati ons systens
Q her

1,158 2,669
1, 046 1,017
671 672

Total operating inconme before taxes

Net income from continuing operations(2)

Gross property, plant and equi prent

Net property, plant and equi prent
Total assets

Capi tal expenditures

120, 746
85, 055
130, 998
12, 887

110, 023
75, 313
108, 271
10, 653

St ockhol ders' equity

Long-term debt, net of current maturities
Total capitalization

Current portion of |ong-term debt
Short-term debt

Total capitalization & short-term financing

144, 251 $ 134,001
99, 879 $ 94,014
145, 719 $ 155,787
13,471 $ 15, 399
53, 656 50, 700

$

38, 226 $
91, 882 $ 79,684

$

$

$

100, 533

28, 984

1,051
7,600

3,526
12,735
95, 945

45, 587
31, 619
77,206
1,787
5, 400
84, 393

37,063
24, 329
61, 392
1, 348
8, 000
70, 740

kY 2 - f——
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Revenues
Natural gas distribution and transm ssion $ 64, 380 $ 55,877 $ 51,468
Propane distribution and nmarketing 16, 908 16, 489 14, 961
Advanced i nformati ons systens 1, 706 1,122 522
O her 2,879 2, 447 2,876
Total revenues $ 85, 873 $ 75, 935 $ 69,827
G oss margin
Nat ural gas distribution and transm ssion $ 22,833 $ 22,055 $ 20,910
Propane distribution and marketing 8, 579 7,954 7,567
Advanced infornations systens 955 628 292
O her 1,078 942 1,187
Total gross margin $ 33, 445 $ 31,579 $ 29,956
Qperating incone before taxes
Nat ural gas distribution and transmi ssion $ 7,207 $ 7,083 $ 7,408
Propane distribution and marketing 1,588 1, 440 559
Advanced infornations systens 136 70 40
Q her (631) (705) 66
Total operating incone before taxes $ 8, 300 $ 7,888 $ 8, 073
Net income from continui ng operations(2) $ 3,972 $ 3, 549 $ 2,501

G oss property, plant and equi pnent $ $ $
Net property, plant and equi pnent $ $ $
Total assets $ 100,775 $ 89,214 $ 85,963
Capi tal expenditures $ $ $

St ockhol ders' equity
Long-term debt, net of current maturities 25, 682 22,901
Total capitalization 60, 499 55,071

$ 34, 817 $ $
$ $ $
$ $ $
Current portion of |ong-term debt $ 1, 286 $ 5,026 $ 1, 760
$ $ $
$ $ $

32,107

Short-term debt 8, 900 8, 800
Total capitalization & short-term financing 70, 685 65, 631
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Basi c earnings per share (2) (3) (4) (5) $ 1.43 $ 1.61 $ 1.05
Return on average equity 12. 1% 14. 2% 9. 6%
Conmon equity / total capitalization 55. 7% 64. 0% 60. 0%
Common equity / total capitalization & short-term financing 44. 7% 50. 3% 53.1%
Book val ue per share $ 12.08 $ 11. 60 $ 11. 06

Mar ket price:

Hi gh $ 18. 875 $ 19. 625 $ 20. 500

Low $ 16. 250 $ 14. 875 $ 16. 500

d ose $ 18. 625 $ 18. 375 $ 18. 313
Aver age nunber of shares outstanding 5, 249, 439 5, 144, 449 5, 060, 328
Shares outstanding end of year 5,297, 443 5, 186, 546 5,093, 788
Regi st ered common shar ehol ders 2,166 2,212 2,271
Cash dividends per share $ 1. 06 $ 1.02 $ 1.00
Di vidend yield (annualized) 5. 8% 5. 7% 5. 5%
Payout ratio 74. 1% 63. 4% 95. 2%

ADDI TI ONAL DATA

Custoners

Nat ural gas distribution and transm ssion 40, 853 39, 029 37,128

Propane di stribution 35, 563 35, 267 34,113
Vol unes

Nat ural gas deliveries (in MVCF) 30, 830 27, 383 21, 400

Propane distribution (in thousands of gallons) 28, 469 27,788 25, 979
Heati ng degree-days 4,730 4,082 3,704

Propane bul k storage capacity (in thousands of gallons) 1,928 1,926 1,890

Total enpl oyees 542 522 456

(1) 1994 and prior years have not been restated to include the business combinations with Tri-County Gas Company, Inc., Tolan Water Service
and Xeron, Inc.

(2) Earnings per share amounts shown prior to 1995 represent primary and fully diluted earnings per share.

(3) 1993 excludes earnings per share of $0.02 for the cummulative effect of changein accounting principle.

(4) 1992 exclude earnings per share of $0.02 for discontinued operations.

(4) 1991 excludes aloss per share of $0.17 for discontinued operations.

peres e SO irsssn 2002, EDGAR Online. I nc.




Basi c earnings per share (2) (3) (4) (5) $ 1.18 $ 1.58 $ 1.59
Return on average equity 11. 3% 16. 2% 18. 6%
Conmon equity / total capitalization 58. 4% 63. 6% 59. 0%
Common equity / total capitalization & short-term financing 53. 4% 52. 8% 54. 0%
Book val ue per share $ 10.72 $ 10. 26 $ 9.38

Mar ket price:

Hi gh $ 21.750 $ 18. 000 $ 15. 500

Low $ 16. 250 $ 15. 125 $ 12. 250

d ose $ 20. 500 $ 16. 875 $ 14. 625
Aver age nunber of shares outstanding 4,972, 086 4,912,136 4, 836, 430
Shares outstanding end of year 5,004, 078 4,939, 515 4, 860, 588
Regi st ered common shar ehol ders 2,178 2,213 2,098
Cash dividends per share $ 0.97 $ 0.93 $ 0.90
Di vidend yield (annualized) 4. 7% 5. 5% 6. 2%
Payout ratio 82. 2% 58. 9% 56. 6%

ADDI TI ONAL DATA

Custoners

Nat ural gas distribution and transm ssion 35,797 34,713 33,530

Propane di stribution 33,123 31, 961 31, 115
Vol unes

Nat ural gas deliveries (in MVCF) 23, 297 24, 835 29, 260

Propane distribution (in thousands of gallons) 26, 682 29, 975 26, 184
Heati ng degree-days 4,430 4,717 4,594

Propane bul k storage capacity (in thousands of gallons) 1, 866 1, 860 1, 818

Total enpl oyees 397 338 335
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Basi c earnings per share (2) (3) (4) (5)

Return on average equity

Conmmon equity / total capitalization

Common equity / total capitalization & short-term financing

Book val ue per share

1.02

10. 5%
56. 3%
51. 9%

9.50

Mar ket price:
Hi gh
Low
d ose

Aver age nunber of shares outstanding
Shares outstanding end of year
Regi st ered common shar ehol ders

Cash dividends per share
Di vidend yield (annualized)
Payout ratio

R RN

15. 000
11.500
13. 000

3,477,244
3,487,778
1,674

0. 86
6. 6%
84. 3%

LR

14.000
11. 000
13. 750

3, 434, 008
3,437,934
1,723

0. 86
6. 3%
117. 8%

Custoners

Nat ural gas distribution and transm ssion

Propane di stribution

Vol unes

Nat ural gas deliveries (in MVCF)

Propane distribution (in thousands of gallons)

Heati ng degree-days

Propane bul k storage capacity (in thousands of gallons) 1, 230

Total enpl oyees

L ! —

1994 (1) 1993 (1)
$ 1.23 $ 1.12
12. 4% 11. 2%
60. 4% 57.5%
52. 4% 49. 3%
$ 10. 15 $ 9.76
$  15.250 $ 17. 500
$ 12. 375 $ 13. 000
$ 12. 750 $ 15. 375
3, 628, 056 3,551, 932
3,653, 182 3,575, 068
1,721 1,743
0. 88 0. 86
6. 9% 5. 6%
71.5% 76.8%
32, 346 31, 270
22,180 21, 622
22,728 19, 444
18, 395 17, 250
4,398 4,705
1, 140
320 326
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

BUSINESS DESCRIPTION

Chesapeake Utilities Corporationis adiversified utility company engaged in natural gas distribution and transmission, propane distribution and
wholesale marketing, advanced information services and other related businesses.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Chesapeake's capital requirementsreflect the capital-intensive nature of its business and are principally attributable to the construction program
and the retirement of outstanding debt. The Company relies on cash generated from operations and short-term borrowing to meet normal
working capital requirements and to temporarily finance capital expenditures. During 2000, net cash provided by operating activities was $8.4
million, cash used by investing activities was $21.8 million and cash provided by financing activities was $15.7 million. Based upon anticipated
cash requirementsin 2001, Chesapeake may refinance itsshort-term debt and fund capital requirements through the issuance of long-term debt.
The timing of such anissuance is dependent upon the nature of the securities involved as well as current market and economic conditions.

The Board of Directors hasauthorized the Company to borrow up to $45.0 million from various banksand trust companies. Asof December
31, 2000, Chesapeake had four unsecured bank lines of credit with two financial ingtitutions, totaling $60.0 million, for short-term cash needs to
meet seasonal working capital requirements and to temporarily fund portions of its capital expenditures. Two of thebank lines are committed.
The outstanding balances of short-term borrowing at December 31, 2000 and 1999 were $25.4 million and $23.0 million, respectively. In 2000,
Chesapeake used funds provided from operations and the issuance of long-term debt to fund capital expenditures and the increase in working
capital associated with high gascosts. At December 31, 2000, the Company had an under-recovered purchased gas cost balance of $7.3 million,
an increase of $6.1 million over the 1999 balance. The Company expectsto recover these gas costs through the gas cost recovery mechanismin
each of our regulated jurisdictions. In 1999, Chesapeake used cash provided by operations and short-term borrowing to fund capital
expenditures.

During 2000, 1999 and 1998, capital expenditures were approximately $21.8 million, $25.1 million and $12.0 million, respectively. Capital
expendituresin 2000 were slightly lessthan 1999 due to areduced level of acquisition-related expenditures. The increase in capital
expendituresin 1999 when compared to 1998 was primarily due to the expansion of both the Company's natural gastransmission pipeline and
its Florida natural gas distribution system, aswell as the acquisition of Ecowater Systemsof Michigan. Chesapeake has budgeted $31.5 million
for capital expenditures during 2001. This amount includes $25.8 million for natural gasdistribution and transmission, $2.5 million for propane
distribution and marketing, $500,000 for advanced information services and $2.7 million for general plant. The natural gas distribution
expenditures are for expansion and improvement of facilities. Natural gastransmission expenditures are for improvement and expansion of the
pipeline systemto increase thelevel of service provided to existing customers and to provide service to customers in the City of Milford,
Delaware. The propane expenditures are to support customer growth and for the replacement of equipment. The advanced information services
expenditures are for computer hardware, software and related equipment. Expenditures for general plant include building improvements,
computer software and hardware. Financing for the 2001 capital expenditure program is expected to be provided from short-term borrowing,
cash provided by operating activities and the potential issuance of long-term debt. The capital expenditure program is subject to continuous
review and modification. Actual capital expenditures may vary fromthe above estimates due to a number of factors including acquisition
opportunities, changing economic conditions, customer growth in existing areas, regulation and new growth opportunities.

Chesapeake has budgeted $1.9 million for environmental-related expenditures during 2001 and expectsto incur additional expendituresin
future years, a portion of which may need to be financed through external sources (see Note L to the Consolidated Financial Statements).
Management does not expect such financing to have a material adverse effect on the financial position or capital resources of the Company.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Asof December 31, 2000, common equity represented 55.7 percent of permanent capitalization, compared to 64.0 percent in 1999 and 60.0
percent in 1998. Including short-term borrowing, the equity component of the Company's capitalization would have been 45.6 percent, 51.5
percent and 53.4 percent. The reduction in common equity as a percentage of permanent capitalization is primarily the result of the issuance of
$20.0 million in long-term debt in 2000. Chesapeake remains committed to maintaining asound capital structure and strong credit ratingsto
provide the financial flexibility needed to access the capital markets when required. This commitment, along withadequate andtimely rate
relief for the Company's regulated operations, isintended to ensure that Chesapeake will be able to attract capital from outside sourcesat a
reasonable cost. The Company believes that the achievement of these objectives will provide benefits to customers and creditors, as well asto
the Company'sinvestors.

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
During the past two years, the Company has utilized debt and equity financing for the purpose of funding capital expenditures and acquisitions.

In December 2000, Chesapeake completed aprivate placement of $20.0 million of
7.83% Senior Notes due January 1, 2015. The Company used the proceeds to repay short-term borrowing.

During 2000 and 1999, Chesapeake repaid approximately $2.7 million and $1.5 million of long-term debt, respectively. In connection with its
Automatic Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan, Chesapeake issued 41,056, 36,319 and 32,925 shares of itscommon stock during
the years of 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net income for 2000 was $7.5 million as compared to $8.3 million for 1999 and $5.3 million for 1998. The reduction in net incomefor 2000is
primarily due to aone-time after tax gain of $863,000 on the sale of the Company'sinvestment in Florida Public Utilities Company recorded in
the fourth quarter of 1999 (see Note E to the Consolidated Financia Statements). Exclusive of this gain, net incomefor 2000 increased by
$81,000; however, earnings per share decreased $0.01 per share. Thisincrease in net incomefor 2000 reflected improved pre-tax operating
income for the natural gas business segment, offset by a reduction in contribution from the advanced information servicesand the propane gas
segments. The natural gas segment benefited from cooler temperatures, a5 percent growthin customers and increased transportation services.
In termsof heating degree-days, temperatures for theyear were 16 percent cooler than the prior year and 4 percent cooler than normal. The
reduced contribution from the advanced information services segment reflects lower revenues fromtheir traditional lines of businessin 2000.
The propane gas segment also benefited from cooler weather and an increase in marketing margins; however, higher operating expenses offset
these increases. Also contributing to the increase in netincome for 2000 was the Company's other business operations, whichincluded afull
year of operations fromthe water business acquisitions that occurred in late 1999 and early 2000.

Theincrease in net income for 1999 when compared to 1998 was due to increased contributions from all three business segments and the gain
on the sale of Company'sinvestment in Florida Public Utilities Company. The natural gasand propane segments each benefited fromincreased
deliveriesrelated to customer growth, averaging more than 4 percent in 1999, combined with cooler temperatures. In terms of heating
degree-days, temperatures for 1999 were 10 percent cooler than 1998, but still 11 percent warmer than normal. The natural gassegment also
benefited froman increase in transportation services. Pre-tax operating income for the advanced information services segment increased due to
additional consulting projects and product sales.

Net income for 1999 includes an after-tax gain of $863,000 on the sal e of the Company's investmentin Florida Public Utilities Company, while
net incomefor 1998 includes an after-tax gain of $750,000 from the restructuring of the
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Company'sretirement benefit plans (see Note Jto the Consolidated Financial Statements). Both of these gains are shown in non-operating
income on the Company'sfinancial statements.

PRE-TAX OPERATING INCOME (IN THOUSANDYS)

| NCREASE | NCREASE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 1999 ( DECREASE) 1999 1998 ( DECREASE)
BUSI NESS SEGVENT:
Natural gas distribution & transmn ssion $12,365 $ 10, 300 $ 2,065 $ 10,300 $ 8,814 $ 1,486
Propane distribution & marketing 2,319 2,627 (308) 2,627 971 1, 656
Advanced i nformation services 336 1, 470 (1, 134) 1, 470 1, 316 154
O her & Elimnations 1, 006 452 554 452 504 (52)
TOTAL PRE- TAX OPERATI NG | NCOVE $ 16,026 $ 14,849 $ 1,177 $ 14,849 $11, 605 $ 3,244

NATURAL GASDISTRIBUTION AND TRANSMISSION

Pre-tax operating income increased $2.1 million from 1999 to 2000. The increase wasthe result of a $3.4 million increase in grossmargin
offset by a$1.3 million increase in operating expenses. The principal factors responsible for this increase in gross margin were:

- increased levels of firm transportation services;

- customer growth of 5 percent, primarily residential and commercial;

- greater deliveries due to temperatures in 2000 which were 16 percent cooler than 1999;

- an adjustment to the Delaware operation's margin sharing mechanismto compensate for warmer temperatures in late 1999 and early 2000; and
- interim ratesin the Florida operation beginning in August 2000, with final rate increase taking effect in December 2000.

The customer growth and cooler temperatures resulted in a 14 percent increase in volumes delivered to residential and commercia customers.
Under normal temperatures and customer usage, the Company estimatesthat 5 percent customer growth would generate an additional margin of
$850,000 on an annual basis.

The principa costs that contributed to higher operating expenses were depreciation, compensation, marketing and empl oyee benefits.

NATURAL GAS GROSSMARGIN SUMMARY (IN THOUSANDS)

| NCREASE | NCREASE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 1999 ( DECREASE) 1999 1998 ( DECREASE)
GROSS MARG N
Sal es $ 29,460 $ 26, 496 $ 2,964 $ 26,496 $ 25,186 $ 1,310
Transportation 6, 486 5, 830 656 5, 830 3, 969 1, 861
Mar ket i ng 184 208 (24) 208 174 34
Non- gas sal es 300 529 (229) 529 187 342
TOTAL GROSS MARG N $ 36,430 $ 33,063 $ 3,367 $ 33,063 $ 29,516 $ 3,547
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Pre-tax operating income increased $1.5 million from 1998 to 1999. The increase wasthe result of a $3.5 million increase in gross margin
offset by a$2.0 million increase in operating expenses. The principal factors responsible for this increase in gross margin were:

- increased levels of firm transportation services provided on alimited term basis, combined with the 1999 expansions;
- customer growth of 5.1 percent, primarily residential and commercial; and
- greater deliveries due to temperatures in 1999 which were 10 percent cooler than 1998.

These factors were somewhat offset by a decline in margins earned on volumes sold and transported to industrial customersserved by the
Florida operation.

The customer growth and cooler temperatures resulted in an 11 percent increase in volumes delivered to residential and commercial customers.

In 1998, the Company restructured itsretirement benefit plans ("the benefit restructuring™), resulting in a one-time reduction of $1.2 millionin
consolidated pension expenses. Exclusive of the benefit restructuring, operating expenses increased by $1.0 million, or 4.7 percent. The
principal coststhat contributed to higher operating expenses were depreciation, compensation, marketing and employee benefits.

PROPANE DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING

Pre-tax operating income for 2000 was $2.3 million compared to $2.6 million for 1999. This decrease of $308,000 was theresult of an increase
in operating expenses of $2.4 million offset by an increase of $2.1 million in gross margin.

Operating expenses were higher due to several initiatives the Company has undertaken to enhance long-term growth andthe level of servicewe
are providing our current customers. These initiatives include:

- the opening of a customer service/marketing office in a location convenient to retail shopping;
- an increase in merchandise salesand service activities,

- theextension of customer service hours; and

- three propane distribution start-ups in Florida.

The Company expects that some of the increased costs associated with these initiativeswill decrease during the first half of 2001. However, the
propane distribution start-ups in Florida may take up to three yearsto achieve profitability.

Gross marginwas higher in 2000 due primarily to an increase of 102 percent in wholesale marketing margins earned. Additionally, gallons
delivered by the distribution operation increased 2 percent. During 2000, marketing revenuesincreased by $73 million or 64 percent while
marginsincreased $1.7 million over 1999. Wholesale marketing is a high volume, low margin business.

Pre-tax operating income for 1999 was $2.6 million compared to $1.0 million for 1998. Thisincrease of $1.6 million was theresult of a$1.9
million increase in gross margin, offset by an increase in operating expenses of $300,000. Grossmargin washigher due to the following:
galons delivered by the distribution operation increased by 11 percent; margin earned per gallon sold by the distribution operation increased by
6 percent; and wholesale marketing margins earned increased by 28 percent.

Theincrease in gallons delivered by thedistribution operation was directly related to temperatures, which were 10 percent cooler than 1998
coupled with a
3.4 percent growthin customers. In 1999, marketing revenues increased by $35
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million or 44 percent over 1998, while marginsincreased $360,000. Operating expensesincreased in 1999, primarily in the areas of incentive
compensation, marketing and employee benefit costs.

ADVANCED INFORMATION SERVICES

The advanced information services segment contribution to consolidated pre-tax operating incomefor 2000 decreased $1.1 million or 77
percent from 1999. The decline is directly related to a reduction in revenues earned from the traditional information technology business. This
reduction occurred primarily due to many clients implementing their year 2000 contingency plansin 1999, then significantly reducing their
information technology expendituresin 2000. This reduction was somewhat offset by continued growth in revenue earned on web-related
products and services. Operating expenses increased 5 percent, primarily in the areas of compensation, marketing and uncollectible accounts.

Pre-tax operating income for 1999 increased $154,000 or 12 percent over 1998. This increase was theresult of revenue growth of $3.2 million
or 31 percent, resulting in agross marginincrease of $1.3 million or 24 percent. The majority of revenue growth was due to increased
web-related products and services. The increase in costs were primarily in the areas of compensation, marketing and uncollectible accounts.

INCOME TAXES

Income taxes were higher in 2000 when compared to 1999; however, pre-tax operating incomefor 2000 was dlightly lower. The increase is the
result of adjusting 1999 income tax expenses to recognize accumulated deferred incometax timing differences at the 35 percent federal rate.
Thiswas offset by a $238,000 reduction in the incometax accrua due to a reassessment of known tax exposures.

OTHER

Non-operating incomewas $361,000, $1,066,000 and $253,000 for the years 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively. In 1999, the Company
recognized a pre-tax gain of $1,415,000, or $863,000 after tax, on the sale of Chesapeake'sinvestment in Florida Public Utilities Company (see
Note E to the Consolidated Financial Statements). Exclusive of this transaction, non-operating incomefor 1999 was $203,000. The resulting
decrease from 1998 was primarily due to a reduction ininterest income.

INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest expense increased in 2000 due to a higher average short-term borrowing balance of $24.2 million in 2000 compared to $9.9 millionin
1999. Also contributing to theincrease in interest expense is a higher short-term borrowing rate of 6.89 percent in 2000, up from5.51 percent
in 1999,

REGULATORY ACTIVITIES

The Company's natural gasdistribution operations are subject to regulation by the Delaware, Maryland and Florida Public Service
Commissionswhile the natural gas transmission operation is subject to regulation by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.

In January 2000, the Company filed arequest for approval of arate increase with the Florida Public Service Commission. In November 2000,
an order wasissued approving arateincrease of $1.25 million effective in early December 2000. During 2000, the Company wasnotified that
two of itslargeindustrial customers would be closing their operations. Asaresult of the rate increase, offset by theloss of these two customers,
the Company estimates that margins earned in 2001 will increase by approximately $449,000 over those earned in 2000.

In 1999, the Company requested and received approval from the Delaware Public Service Commission to annually adjust its interruptible
margin sharing mechanismin order to addressthe level of recovery of fixed distribution costs from residential and small commercial heating
customers. The annual period runs from August 1 to July 31. During 2000, the
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weather for the period ending August 31, 2000 was warmer than the threshold, resulting in a reduction in margin sharing. This reduction
resulted in a$417,000 increase in margin for 2000.

During the 1999 Maryland General Assembly legidative session, taxation of electric and gas utilities was changed by the passage of The
Electric and Gas Utility Tax Reform Act ("Tax Act"). Effective January 1, 2000, the Tax Act atered utility taxation to account for the
restructuring of the electric and gas industries by either repealing and/or amending the existing Public Service Company Franchise Tax,
Corporate Income Tax and Property Tax. Prior to this Tax Act, the State of Maryland allowed utilities a credit to their income tax liability for
Maryland gross receipts taxes paid during the year. The modification eliminates the gross receiptstax credit. The Company requested and
received approva from theMaryland Public Service Commissionto increase itsnatural gasdelivery service rates by $83,000 on an annual
basisto recover the estimated impact of the Tax Act.

The Company plans to file for a base rate increase withthe Delaware Public Service Commission during the second quarter of 2001. Interim
rates are expected to be put into effect, subject to refund, in the second or third quarter of 2001.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The Company continues to work withfederal and state environmental agencies to assess the environmental impact and explore corrective action
at several former gas manufacturing plant sites (see Note L to the Consolidated Financial Statements). The Company believes that future costs
associated withthese sites will be recoverable in rates or through sharing arrangements with, or contributions by other responsible parties.

MARKET RISK

Market risk represents the potential 1oss arising from adverse changesin market rates and prices. Long-term debt is subject to potential 1osses
based on the change in interest rates. The Company'slong-term debt consistsof first mortgage bonds, senior notes and convertible debentures
(see Note G to the Consolidated Financial Statements for annual maturities of consolidated long-term debt). All of Chesapeake'slong-term debt
isfixed-rate debt and was not entered into for trading purposes. The carrying value of the Company'slong-term debt was$53.6 million at
December 31, 2000 as compared to afair valueof $56.0 million, based mainly on current market prices or discounted cash flows using current
ratesfor similarissues withsimilar terms and remaining maturities. The Company is exposed to changesin interest rates as a result of financing
through its issuance of fixed-rate long-term debt. The Company evaluates whether to refinance existing debt or permanently finance existing
short-term borrowing based in part on thefluctuation in interest rates.

The propane marketing operation isa party to natural gas liquids ("NGL") forward contracts, primarily propane contracts, with various third
parties. These contracts requirethat the propane marketing operation purchase or sell NGL at afixed price at fixed future dates. At expiration,
the contracts are settled by thedelivery of NGL to the Company or the counter party. The wholesale propane marketing operation also enters
into futures contractsthat are traded on the New Y ork Mercantile Exchange. In certain cases, the futures contracts are settled by the payment of
anet amount equal to the difference between the current market price of thefutures contract and theoriginal contract price.
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The forward and futures contracts are entered into for trading and wholesale marketing purposes. The propane marketing operation is subject to
commaodity pricerisk on its open positionsto the extent that market pricesfor NGL deviate from fixed contract settlement amounts. Market risk
associated withthe trading of futuresand forward contracts are monitored daily for compliance with Chesapeake's Risk Management Policy,
whichincludes volumetric limits for open positions. To manage exposures to changing market prices, open positions are marked up or down to
market prices and reviewed by oversight officials onadaily basis. Additionally, the Risk Management Committee reviews periodic reports on
market and credit risk, approves any exceptions to the Risk Management Policy (within the limitsestablished by the Board of Directors) and
authorizes the use of any new typesof contracts. Quantitative information on the forward and futures contracts at December 31, 2000 and 1999
are shown below.

QUANTI TY ESTI MATED VEEI GHTED AVERACE
AT DECEMBER 31, 2000 I N GALLONS MARKET PRI CES CONTRACT PRI CES

FORWARD CONTRACTS

Sal e 33,007,800 $0.6800 -- $1.2000 $0. 7869
Pur chase 33,419,400 $0.5625 -- $1.0200 $0. 7597
FUTURES CONTRACTS
Sal e 2,814,000 $0.6800 -- $0.8700 $0. 7714
Pur chase 1,260,000 $0.5625 -- $0.7700 $0. 5397
QUANTI TY ESTI MATED VEEI GHTED AVERAGE
AT DECEMBER 31, 1999 I N GALLONS MARKET PRI CES CONTRACT PRI CES
FORWARD CONTRACTS
Sal e 9,954,000 $0.3350 -- $0.5250 $0. 4412
Pur chase 8,064, 000 $0.3250 -- $0.5200 $0. 4121
FUTURES CONTRACTS
Pur chase 2,730,000 $0.4270 -- $0.4350 $0. 4229

Estimated market prices and weighted average contract prices arein dollars per gallon.
All contracts expire within twelve months.
COMPETITION

The Company's natural gas operations compete with other formsof energy such as electricity, oil and propane. The principal competitive
factors areprice, and to alesser extent, accessibility. The Company's natural gasdistribution operations have several large volumeindustrial
customers that have the capacity to use fuel dil as an alternative to natural gas. When oil prices decline, theseinterruptible customers convert to
oil to satisfy their fuel requirements. Lower levels ininterruptible sales occur when ail prices are lower relative to the price of natura gas. Qil
prices, as well as the prices of electricity and other fuels are subject to fluctuation for avariety of reasons; therefore, future competitive
conditions are not predictable. Inorder to address this uncertainty, the Company usesflexible pricing arrangementson both the supply and sales
side of its business to maximize sales volumes. As aresult of the transmission segment's conversion to open access, the segment has shifted
from providing competitive sales service to providing transportation and contract storage services.

The Company's natural gasdistribution operations located in Maryland and Delaware began offering transportation servicesto certain industrial
customers during 1998 and 1997, respectively. With transportation services now available on the Company'sdistribution systems, the Company
is competing with third party suppliersto sell gasto industrial customers. The Company's competitors include theinterstate transmission
company if the distribution customer islocated close enoughto thetransmission company's pipeline to make a connection economically
feasible. The customers at risk are usually large volume commercia and industrial customers with thefinancial resources and capability to
bypass the distribution operations in this manner. In certain situations, the distribution operations may adjust services and rates for these
customers to retain their business. The Company expects to expand the availability of transportation servicesto additional classes of
distribution customers in the future. The Florida distribution operation hasbeen providing
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transportation servicesto certain industrial customers since 1994. At that time, the Company established a natural gasbrokering and supply
operation in Florida to compete for thesecustomers.

The Company's propane distribution operations compete with severa other propane distributorsin their service territories, primarily on the
basis of service and price. Competitors include several large national propane distribution companies, aswell as an increasing number of local
suppliers.

The Company's advanced information services segment faces significant competition from a number of larger competitors, many of which have
substantially greater resources available to them than those of the Company. This segment competes on the basis of technological expertise,
reputation and price.

INFLATION

Inflation affects the cost of labor, products and services required for operation, maintenance and capital improvements. Whilethe impact of
inflation has lessened in recent years, natural gas and propane prices are subject to rapid fluctuations. Fluctuationsin natural gas prices are
passed on to customers through the gascost recovery mechanismin the Company's tariffs. To help cope with the effects of inflation onits
capital investments and returns, the Company seeks raterelief from regulatory commissionsfor regulated operations while monitoring the
returns of its unregulated business operations. To compensate for fluctuationsin propane gas prices, Chesapeake adjusts its propane selling
pricesto theextent allowed by the market.

RECENT PRONOUNCEMENTS

In 1998, the Financial Accounting StandardsBoard ("FASB") issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS') No. 133,
establishing accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other
contracts, and for hedging activities. Chesapeake will adopt the requirements of thisstandard in thefirst quarter of 2001, asrequired. The
adoption of SFASNo. 133, as amended by SFAS No. 137 and SFAS No. 138, will not have a material impact on the Company's financial
position or results of operations.

In February 2001, the FASB issued arevised limited Exposure Draft on Business Combinations and Intangible Assets. Under the draft, the
pooling-of-interests method of accounting for business combinations would be eliminated and the purchase method would be required.
Additionally, the draft would require a non-amortization approach to account for purchased goodwill, which would be separately tested for
impairment. The provisions of the draft would be effective as of the beginning of thefirst fiscal quarter following theissuance of the final
statement. Neither early application, nor retroactive application, would be permitted. Oncethe exposure draft isfinal, the Company will be able
to determine theimpact the standard will have on the Company'sfinancial position and results of operations.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Chesapeake has made statementsin this report that are considered to be forward-looking statements. These statements are not matters of
historical fact. Sometimes they contain words such as "believes," "expects," "intends," "plans,” "will," or "may," and other similar wordsof a
predictive nature. These statementsrelate to matters such as customer growth, changesin revenues or margins, capital expenditures,
environmenta remediation costs, regulatory approvals, market risks associated withthe Company's propane marketing operation, the
competitive position of the Company and other matters. It isimportant to understand that these forward-looking statements are not guarantees,
but are subject to certain risks and uncertainties and other important factors that could cause actual resultsto differ materially from those inthe
forward-looking statements. These factorsinclude, among other things:

- thetemperature sensitivity of the natural gas and propane busi nesses;

- thewholesale prices of natural gasand propane and market movements in these prices,

- the effects of competition on the Company's unregul ated and regulated businesses,

- theeffect of changes in federal, stateor local legidative requirements;

- theability of the Company'snew and planned facilitiesand acquisitions to generate expected revenues, and

- the Company's ability to obtain the raterelief and cost recovery requested fromutility regulators andthe timing of the requested regulatory
actions.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

Information concerning quantitative and qualitative disclosure about market risk isincluded in Item 7 under the heading "Management's
Discussion and Analysis-- Market Risk."

ITEM 8 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTAL DATA

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

Tothe Stockholders of Chesapeake Utilities Cor poration

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statementslisted in the index appearing under Item 14(a)(1) of this Form 10-K present fairly, in all
materia respects, the financial position of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the results
of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2000 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in theindex
appearing under Item 14(a)(2) of this Form 10-K presentsfairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in
conjunction withthe related consolidated financial statements. The financial statementsand the financial statement schedule arethe
responsibility of the Company's management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on thesefinancial statements and financial statement
schedule based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, whichrequire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide areasonable basisfor our opinion.

/'s/ PRI CEWATERHOUSECOOPERS
LLP

PRI CEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP
Phi | adel phi a, Pennsyl vani a
February 13, 2001
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the Years Ended Decenber 31, 2000 1999 1998
Oper ati ng Revenues $ 335,407,036 $ 230, 200, 335 $ 182,919, 848
Cost of Sales 273, 635, 709 175, 500, 379 135, 116, 125
Gross Margin 61, 771, 327 54, 699, 956 47,803, 723
Oper ati ng Expenses
Qper ati ons 32, 385, 261 27,554, 796 24,110, 315
Mai nt enance 1, 868, 260 1,521, 302 2,118, 066
Depreciation and anortization 7,142, 611 6, 523, 669 5, 945, 901
O her taxes 4,349, 224 4,251, 051 4,024, 129
I ncone taxes 4,387,925 4,174, 896 3,175, 693
Total operating expenses 50, 133, 281 44,025, 714 39, 374, 104
Qperating | ncone 11, 638, 046 10, 674, 242 8,429, 619
O her | ncone
Gain on sale of investnent 0 1, 415, 343 0
I nterest incone 220, 462 99, 660 192, 262
Q her incone 248, 748 60, 799 110, 506
I ncone taxes (108, 667) (509, 351) (50, 051)
Total other incone 360, 543 1, 066, 451 252, 717
I ncome Before Interest Charges 11, 998, 589 11, 740, 693 8, 682, 336
I nt erest Charges
Interest on |ong-term debt 2,628, 781 2,793,712 2,966, 043
Interest on short-term borrow ng 1, 699, 402 551, 937 242, 695
Anortization of debt expense 111, 122 117, 966 123, 335
O her 70, 083 6, 092 47, 677
Total interest charges 4,509, 388 3, 469, 707 3, 379, 750

Net | ncone $ 7,489, 201 $ 8, 270, 986 $ 5,302,586
Ear ni ngs Per Share of Commobn Stock:
Basi c $ 1.43 % 1.61 $ 1.05
Di | uted $ 1.40 % 1.57 $ 1.04

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Years Ended Decenber 31, 2000 1999 1998
Net | ncone $ 7,489, 201 $ 8, 270, 986 $ 5, 302, 586
Unrealized gain on nmarketabl e securities,

net of incone taxes of $362, 000 - - 566, 472
Tot al Conprehensive | ncone $ 7,489, 201 $ 8, 270, 986 $ 5, 869, 058

See accompanying notes
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 1999 1998
OPERATI NG ACTI VI TI ES
Net | ncone $ 7,489,201 $ 8, 270, 986 $ 5, 302, 586
Adj ustments to reconcile net income to net operating cash:
Depreci ation and anortization 8, 044, 315 7,509, 841 6, 864, 063
Investment tax credit adjustnents, net (54, 815) (54, 815) (54, 815)
Deferred i ncome taxes, net 2,922,815 385, 104 1,711, 510
Mar k-t o- mar ket adj ust nents (689, 032) 65, 076 (242, 757)
Enpl oyee benefits 80, 165 8, 659 (801, 898)
Enpl oyee conpensati on 217, 000 298, 756 206, 378
O her, net (816, 049) 212,711 (171, 619)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Account s receivabl e, net (16, 347, 454) (6,902, 950) 1,797, 425
Inventories, storage gas and materials (3,307, 420) (1,704, 544) 1, 118, 973
Prepai d expenses and other current assets 247, 892 96, 687 (488, 771)
O her deferred charges (333, 147) 1,105, 748 156, 786
Accounts payabl e, net 16, 789, 601 5,778, 418 (5, 327,048)
Ref unds payabl e to custoners 235, 619 143, 356 279,112
(Under) overrecovered purchased gas costs (6,111, 373) 315, 351 121, 123
Q her current liabilities (687) 1, 068, 928 556, 359
Net cash provided by operating activities 8, 366, 631 16, 597, 312 11, 027, 407

I NVESTI NG ACTI VI TI ES
Property, plant and equi pnent expenditures, net (21, 821, 006) (25, 128, 670) (12,021, 735)
0

Sal e (purchase) of investments 2,189, 312 (500, 000)
Net cash used by investing activities (21, 821, 006) (22,939, 358) (12,521, 735)
FI NANCI NG ACTI VI Tl ES

Common stock dividends, net of anounts reinvested of $520, 712,

$456, 962 and $421,382 in 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively (5,022, 313) (4,774, 338) (4, 340, 687)

I ssuance of stock - Dividend Reinvestnent Plan optional cash 197, 797 187, 369 188, 564

I ssuance of stock - Retirenent Savings Plan 916, 159 816, 306 466, 759

Net borrowi ng under line of credit agreenents 2,400, 000 11, 400, 000 3,999, 990

Proceeds fromissuance of |ong-term debt, net 19, 887, 194 0 0

Repaynent of |ong-term debt (2,675, 319) (1,528, 202) (1,051, 390)
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 15, 703, 518 6, 101, 135 (736, 764)
NET | NCREASE (DECREASE) | N CASH AND CASH EQUI VALENTS 2,249,143 (240,911) (2,231, 092)
CASH AND CASH EQUI VALENTS AT BEG NNI NG OF YEAR 2,357,173 2,598, 084 4,829,176
CASH AND CASH EQUI VALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 4,606, 316 2,357,173 $ 2,598, 084
SUPPLEMENTAL DI SCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW | NFORMATI ON

Cash paid for interest $ 4,410,230 $ 3, 409, 070 $ 3, 490, 993

Cash paid for incone taxes $ 3,212,080 $ 4,413, 155 $ 2,670, 580

See accompanying notes
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Property, Plant and Equi prent

Natural gas distribution and transni ssion $ 149,109, 573 $ 132, 929, 885
Propane distribution and nmarketing 31, 630, 208 28, 679, 766
Advanced information services 1, 699, 968 1, 460, 411
G her pl ant 10, 488, 581 9, 017, 458
Total property, plant and equi pnent 192, 928, 330 172, 087, 520
Less: Accunul ated depreciation and anortization (61, 462, 011) (54, 424, 105)
Net property, plant and equi pnent 131, 466, 319 117, 663, 415
Investnents, at fair market val ue 616, 293 595, 644
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equival ents 4, 606, 316 2,357,173
Accounts receivable (less allowance for uncollectibles of $549, 961
and $475,592 in 2000 and 1999, respectively) 38, 046, 582 21,699, 128
Material s and supplies, at average cost 1, 566, 126 1, 547, 225
Mer chandi se inventory, at average cost 1, 234, 072 859, 989
Propane inventory, at average cost 4,379, 599 2,754,401
St orage gas prepaynents 3, 500, 323 2,211,084
Underrecovered purchased gas costs 5,388, 725 1, 236, 914
I nconme taxes receivable 1, 159, 761 73,772
Deferred income taxes receivable 745, 888
Prepai d expenses and other current assets 1, 946, 535 1, 505, 396
Total current assets 61, 828, 039 34, 990, 970
DEFERRED CHARGES AND OTHER ASSETS
Environmental regul atory assets 2,910, 000 2, 340, 000
Envi ronnment al expendi tures 3, 626, 475 3,574, 888
Underrecovered purchased gas costs 1, 959, 562 0
G her deferred charges and intangi bl e assets 8, 292, 815 7,823, 597
Total deferred charges and other assets 16, 788, 852 13, 738, 485
TOTAL ASSETS $ 210, 699, 503 $ 166, 988, 514

See accompanying notes
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

CAPI TALI ZATI ON AND LI ABI LI TI ES

Capitalization
St ockhol ders' equity
Common st ock
Addi tional paid-in capita
Ret ai ned ear ni ngs

$

2,577,992
27,672,005
33,721, 747

2,524,018
25,782,824
31, 857, 732

Total stockholders' equity

Long-term debt, net of current maturities

63,971, 744

50, 920, 818

60, 164, 574

33, 776, 909

Total capitalization

CURRENT LI ABI LI TI ES
Current maturities of |ong-term debt
Short-term borrow ng
Account s payabl e
Refunds payabl e to custoners
Accrued interest
Di vi dends payabl e
Deferred i ncone taxes payable
O her accrued liabilities

2,665, 091
25, 400, 000
33, 654, 718
1, 015, 128
595, 175
1, 429, 945
985, 349

5,674,419

2,665,091
23, 000, 000
16, 865, 119
779, 508
581, 649
1,347,784
0

4,613, 357

Total current liabilities

DEFERRED CREDI TS AND OTHER LI ABI LI TI ES
Def erred i nconme taxes
Deferred investnent tax credits
Environnmental liability
Accrued pension costs
Qher liabilities

15, 086, 951
657,172
2,910, 000
1,625,128
4,107, 865

13, 895, 373
711, 987

2, 340, 000
1, 544, 963
4,702, 200

Total deferred credits and other liabilities

COW TMENTS AND CONTI NGENCI ES

(NOTES L AND M

TOTAL CAPI TALI ZATI ON AND LI ABI LI TI ES

$ 210, 699, 503

$ 166, 988,514

See accompanying notes
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Common St ock
Bal ance - begi nning of year
Di vi dend Rei nvestnent Plan
Retirenment Savings Plan
Conver si on of debentures
Per f ormance shares

$

2,524,018
19, 983
25, 353

5,173
3, 465

$

2,479,019
17,530
22,489

4,201
779

$ 2,435,142
16, 240
12, 663
3,115
11, 859

Addi tional Paid-in Capital
Bal ance - begi nning of year
Di vi dend Rei nvestnent Pl an
Retirenment Savings Plan
Conver si on of debentures
Per formance shares

25,782, 824

698, 526
890, 806
175, 599
124, 250

24,192, 188

626, 801
793, 817
142, 597
27,421

22,581, 463
593, 706
454, 096
105, 736
457, 187

Ret ai ned Ear ni ngs
Bal ance - beginning of year
Net income
Cash dividends (1)

31, 857,732

7,489, 201

(5. 625, 186)

28, 892, 384

(

8, 270, 986
5, 305, 638)

28, 533, 145
5, 302, 586
(4, 943, 347)

Unear ned Conpensation
Bal ance - begi nning of year
Anortization of prior years' awards

71, 041

(190, 886)
119, 845

Accumul ated Ot her Conprehensive | nconeg,

net of incone tax expense of approximtely $552,000

$ 63,971,744

Total Stockhol ders' equity

$ 60, 164,574

$ 56, 355, 894

(1) Cash dividends per share for 2000, 1999 and 1998 were $1.06, $1.02 and $1.00, respectively.

See accompanying notes
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME TAXES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 1999 1998
Current |nconme Tax Expense
Feder al $ 1,598, 184 $ 3,948, 746 $ 1, 553, 839
State 264, 294 807, 214 307, 654
Investment tax credit adjustnments, net (54, 815) (54, 815) (54, 815)
Total current incone tax expense 1, 807, 663 4,701, 145 1, 806, 678)
Deferred Incone Tax Expense (1)
Property, plant and equi pnent 1,071, 852 734, 765 887, 175
Deferred gas costs 2,404, 994 (124, 576) (111, 416)
Pensi ons and ot her enpl oyee benefits (115, 615) (153, 697) 546, 237
Unbi Il ed revenue (736, 700) (45, 290) (16, 198)
Contributions in aid of construction 0 (160, 971) (104, 003)
Envi ronnment al expendi tures 879 97, 480 415, 845
O her (2) 63,519 (364, 609) (198, 574)
Total deferred i ncome tax expense 2,688, 929 (16, 898) 1, 419, 066
Total Incone Tax Expense $ 4,496, 592 $ 4, 684, 247 $ 3, 225, 744
Reconciliation of Effective |Incone Tax Rates
Federal incone tax expense at 34% 4,075, 170 $ 4,404,779 $ 2,899, 632
State incone taxes, net of federal benefit 489, 831 553, 444 363, 041
G her (2) (68, 409) (273, 976) (36, 929)
Total Incone Tax Expense $ 4,496,592 $ 4, 684, 247 $ 3,225,744
Ef fective incone tax rate 37. 5% 36. 2% 37.8%
AT DECEMBER 31, 2000 1999

Deferred | ncone Taxes
Deferred inconme tax liabilities:

Property, plant and equi pnent $15, 088, 379 $ 14,016, 527

Envi ronmental costs 1, 478, 259 1,477, 380

Deferred gas costs 2,844, 140 439, 146

O her 736, 255 527, 643

Total deferred incone tax liabilities 20, 147, 033 16, 460, 696
Deferred i ncome tax assets:

Unbi |l | ed revenue 1, 790, 563 1, 053, 863

Pensi on and ot her enpl oyee benefits 1, 382, 628 1, 267,013

Sel f i nsurance 502, 416 687, 158

O her 399, 126 303, 177

Total deferred incone tax assets 4,074, 733 3,311, 211

Deferred | ncome Taxes Per Consolidated Bal ance Sheet $16, 072, 300 $ 13, 149, 485

(2) Includes $298,000, $39,000 and $156,000 of deferred stateincome taxes for the years 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively.

(2) 1999 includes a $238,000 tax benefit associated with the adjustment to deferred income taxesfor known tax exposures, offset by a $78,000
to adjust deferred incometaxes to the 35% income tax rate.
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See accompanying notes
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NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
NATURE OF BUSINESS

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation ("Chesapeake" or "the Company") is engaged in natural gas distribution to approximately 40,900 customers
located in central and southern Delaware, Maryland's Eastern Shore and Florida. The Company'snatura gas transmission subsidiary operatesa
pipeline from various points in Pennsylvaniaand northern Delaware to the Company's Delaware and Maryland distribution divisions, as well as
other utility and industrial customers in Delaware and the Eastern Shore of Maryland. The Company's propane distribution and marketing
segment provides distribution serviceto approximately 35,600 customers in central and southern Delaware, the Eastern Shore of Maryland,
Floridaand Virginia, and markets propane to a number of large independent oil and petrochemical companies, resellersand propane
distribution companies in the southeastern United States. The advanced information services segment provides consulting, custom
programming, training, development tools and website development for national andinternational clients.

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. Investmentsin all entitiesin
which the Company owns more than 20 percent but less than 50 percent, are accounted for by the equity method. All significant intercompany
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

SYSTEM OF ACCOUNTS

The natural gas distribution divisions of the Company located in Delaware, Maryland and Florida are subject to regulation by their respective
Public Service Commissions with respect to their rates for service, maintenance of their accounting records and various other matters. Eastern
Shore Natural Gas Company ("Eastern Shore") isan open access pipeline and is subject to regulation by the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission ("FERC"). The Company's financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, which
give appropriate recognition to the ratemaking and accounting practices and policies of the various commissions. The propane distribution and
marketing and advanced information services segments arenot subject to regulation with respect to rates or maintenance of accounting records.

PROPERTY, PLANT, EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION

Utility property is stated at original cost while the assets of the non-utility segmentsare recorded at cost. The costs of repairs and minor
replacements are charged to income as incurred and the costs of major renewalsand betterments are capitalized. Upon retirement or disposition
of utility property, therecorded cost of removal, net of salvage value, is charged to accumulated depreciation. Upon retirement or disposition of
non-utility property, the gain or loss, net of salvage value, is charged to income. The provision for depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method at rates that amortize the unrecovered cost of depreciable property over the estimated useful life of the asset. Depreciation
and amortization expenses are provided at an annual rate for each segment. Average rates for the past three yearswere 4 percent for natural gas
distribution and transmission, 5 percent for propane distribution and marketing, 19 percent for advanced information services and 7 percent for
general plant.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Company's policy isto invest cash in excess of operating requirementsin overnight income producing accounts. Such amounts are stated at
cost, which approximates market value. Investments with an original maturity of three months or lessare considered cash equivalents.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATORY ASSETS

Environmental regulatory assetsrepresent amounts related to environmental liabilities for which cash expenditures have not been made. As
expenditures are incurred, the environmental liability isreduced aong with the environmental regulatory asset. These amounts, awaiting
ratemaking treatment, are recorded to either environmental expenditures as an
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asset or accumulated depreciation as cost of removal. Environmental expenditures are amortized and/or recovered through arider to base rates
in accordance with the ratemaking treatment granted in each jurisdiction.

OTHER DEFERRED CHARGESAND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Other deferred charges include discount, premium and issuance costs associated withlong-term debt and rate case expenses. Debt costs are
deferred, then amortized over theorigina lives of the respective debt issuances. Gains and losses on thereacquisition of debt are amortized
over the remaining lives of the original issuances. Rate case expenses aredeferred, then amortized over periods approved by the applicable
regulatory authorities.

Intangible assetsare associated with the acquisition of non-utility companies and are amortized on a straight-line basis over a weighted average
period of seventeen years. Grossintangibles and the net unamortized balance at December 31, 2000 were$7.7 million and $5.9 million,
respectively. Gross intangibles and the net unamortized balance at December 31, 1999 were $7.1 million and $5.6 million, respectively.

INCOME TAXESAND INVESTMENT TAX CREDIT ADJUSTMENTS

The Company files a consolidated federal incometax return. Income tax expense allocated to the Company'ssubsidiaries is based upon their
respective taxable incomes and tax credits.

Deferred tax assetsand liabilities are recorded for the tax effect of temporary differences between the financial statements and tax bases of
assets and liabilities and are measured using current effective income tax rates. The portions of the Company'sdeferred tax liabilities applicable
to utility operations, which have not been reflected in current service rates, represent income taxes recoverable through future rates. Investment
tax credits on utility property have been deferred and are allocated to incomeratably over thelives of the subject property.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Xeron, the Company's propane marketing operation, engages in trading activities using forward and futures contracts which have been
accounted for using the mark-to-market method of accounting. Under mark-to-market accounting, the Company'strading contracts are recorded
at fair value, net of future servicing costs, and changesin market price arerecognized as gainsor lossesin the period of change. The resulting
unrealized gainsand losses arerecorded as assets or liabilities, respectively. At December 31, 2000 and 1999, the unrealized gainswere
$831,000 and $142,000, respectively. These trading assets are recorded in prepaid expenses and other current assets.

OPERATING REVENUES

Revenues for the natural gas distribution operations of the Company are based on rates approved by the various public service commissions.
The natural gas transmission operation revenuesare based on rates approved by FERC. Customers' base rates may not be changed without
formal approval by these commissions. With the exception of the Company's Florida division, the Company recognizes revenues from meters
read on a monthly cycle basis. This practice results in unbilled and unrecorded revenue from the cycle date through the end of the month. The
Floridadivision recognizes revenues based on servicesrendered and records anamount for gasdelivered but not yet billed.

Chesapeake's natural gasdistribution operations each have a gas cost recovery mechanism that provides for the adjustment of rates charged to
customers as gas costs fluctuate. These amounts are collected or refunded through adjustments to rates in subsequent periods.

The Company charges flexible ratesto the natural gas distribution's industrial interruptible customers to make them competitive with aternative
typesof fuel. Based on pricing, these customers can choose natural gas or alternative types of supply. Neither the Company nor the customer is
contractually obligated to deliver or receive natural gas.

The propane distribution operation records revenueson either an "as delivered” or a"metered" basis depending on the customer type. The
propane marketing operation calculates revenues daily on a mark-to-market basis for open contracts.
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The advanced information services and other segmentsrecord revenue in the period the products are delivered and/or services are rendered.
EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of both basic and diluted earnings per share are presented in the followingtable.

For the Years Ended Decenber 31, 2000 1999 1998

Cal cul ation of Basic Earnings Per Share:
Net | ncone $7, 489, 201 $8, 270, 986 $5, 302, 586
Wei ght ed Average Shares Qutstandi ng 5, 249, 439 5, 144, 449 5, 060, 328
Basi ¢ Earni ngs Per Share $ 1.43 $ 1.61 $ 1.05

Cal cul ation of Diluted Earnings Per Share:
Reconciliation of Numerator:

Net |ncone -- basic $7, 489, 201 $8, 270, 986 $5, 302, 586
Ef fect of 8.25% Convertible debentures 179, 701 188, 982 193, 666
Adj usted nunerator -- diluted $7, 668, 902 $8, 459, 968 $5, 496, 252
Reconci |l ati on of Denoni nator:
Wei ghted Shares Qutstanding -- basic 5, 249, 439 5,144, 449 5, 060, 328
Ef fect of 8.25% Convertibl e debentures 209, 893 220, 732 226, 203
Effect of stock options 11, 484 11, 875 12, 245
Adj usted denomi nator -- diluted 5, 470, 816 5,377, 056 5,298, 776
Di | uted Earnings per Share $ 1.40 $ 1.57 $ 1.04

CERTAIN RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Thefinancia statements are prepared in conformity withgenerally accepted accounting principles that require management to make estimates
in measuring assetsand liabilities and related revenuesand expenses (see Notes L and M to the Consolidated Financial Statements for
significant estimates). These estimatesinvolve judgments with respect to, among other things, various future economic factors that are difficult
to predict and arebeyond the control of the Company; therefore, actual results could differ from those estimates.

The Company records certain assetsand liabilities in accordance with Statement of Financia Accounting Standards ("SFAS') No. 71. If the
Company were required to terminate application of SFAS No. 71 for its regulated operations, all such deferred amounts would be recognized in
the income statement at that time. Thiswould result in a charge to earnings, net of applicable income taxes, which could be material.

FASB STATEMENTS AND OTHER AUTHORITATIVE PRONOUNCEMENTS

In 1998, the Financial Accounting StandardsBoard ("FASB") issued SFAS No. 133, establishing accounting and reporting standards for
derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and for hedging activities. This statement does not
allow retroactive application to financial statementsfor prior periods. Chesapeake will adopt the requirements of this standard in thefirst
quarter of 2001, as required. The Company believes that adoption of SFAS No. 133 will not have a material impact on the Company's financial
position or results of operations. This statement, originally effective for all fiscal quarters of thefiscal years beginning after June 15, 1999 was
deferred by the FASB under SFAS No. 137 and now is effective for al fiscal quartersof the fiscal yearsbeginning after June 15, 2000. InJune
2000, the FASB issued SFAS No. 138, amending the accounting and reporting standards of SFAS No0.133. The adoption of SFAS No. 138 will
not have a material impact on the Company'sfinancial position or results of operations.

In February 2001, the FASB issued arevised limited Exposure Draft on Business Combinations and Intangible Assets. Under the draft, the
pooling-of-interests method of accounting for business combinations would be eliminated and the purchase method would be required.
Additionally, the draft would require a non-amortization approach to account for purchased goodwill, which would be separately tested for
impairment. The provisions of the draft would be effective as
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of thebeginning of the first fiscal quarter following the issuance of the final statement. Neither early application, nor retroactive application,
would be permitted. Once the exposure draft isfinal, the Company will be able to determine the impact the standard will have on the Company's
financial position and results of operations.

RESTATEMENT AND RECLASSIFICATION OF PRIOR YEARS AMOUNTS

Certain prior years amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

B. BUSINESSCOMBINATIONS

In January 2000, Chesapeake acquired Carroll Water Systems, Inc. ("Carroll") of Westminster, Maryland. Carroll was a privately owned
EcoWater dealership serving the suburban areas around Baltimore, Maryland. The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase and the
Company'sfinancia resultsinclude theresults of operations of Carroll from the date of acquisition.

In November 1999, Chesapeake acquired EcoWater Systemsof Michigan, Inc., operating as Douglas Water Conditioning ("Douglas"). Douglas

isan EcoWater dealership that has served the Detroit, Michigan areafor 11 years. The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase and the
Company'sfinancia resultsinclude theresults of operations of Douglasfrom thedate of acquisition.
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C.SEGMENT INFORMATION

Chesapeake uses the management approach to identify operating segments. Chesapeake organizesits business around differencesin products or

services and the operating results of each segment areregularly reviewed by the Company's chief operating decision maker in order to make
decisions about resources andto assess performance. The following table presents information about the Company's reportable segments.

OPERATI NG REVENUES, UNAFFI LI ATED CUSTOVERS
Natural gas distribution and transmi ssion
Propane distribution and narketing
Advanced information services
Q her

$ 99, 750, 303
216, 267, 133
12, 353, 056
7,036, 544

$ 75,592, 453
138, 436, 520
13, 531, 261
2,640, 101

$ 68, 744, 667
102, 062, 740
10, 330, 703
1,781,738

Total operating revenues, unaffiliated custoners

| NTERSEGVENT REVENUES (1)

Natural gas distribution and transmi ssion
Advanced i nformation services

O her

$ 119, 480
36, 535
814, 995

Total intersegnent revenues

OPERATI NG | NCOVE BEFORE | NCOVE TAXES
Natural gas distribution and transmi ssion
Propane distribution and marketing
Advanced i nformation services
Q her and elimnations

$ 12,364,535
2,319, 461
335, 849

1, 006, 126

$ 10, 300, 455
2,627,123
1,469, 958

451, 602

$ 8,814,125
971, 215

1, 316, 158
503, 814

DEPRECI ATI ON AND AMORTI ZATI ON
Natural gas distribution and transm ssion
Propane distribution and nmarketing
Advanced information services
Q her

$ 4,930, 445
1, 429, 405
280, 053

502, 708

$ 4,762,285
1,201, 693
268, 082

291, 609

$ 4,381,337
1,171, 114
183, 553

209, 897

Total depreciation and anortization

CAPI TAL EXPENDI TURES
Natural gas distribution and transm ssion
Propane distribution and narketing
Advanced i nformation services
Q her

$ 17,882,724
3, 235, 288
240, 727

1, 696, 990

$ 17, 853, 885
2,168, 269
372,501
5,522,615

$ 10, 018, 491
1, 544,992
246, 153

840, 186

Total capital expenditures

| DENTI FI ABLE ASSETS
Natural gas distribution and transm ssion
Propane distribution and narketing
Advanced i nformation services
Q her

$141, 335, 457
47, 495, 133
2,372,407
19, 496, 506

$117, 024, 633
31, 888, 633
2,854,670
15, 220, 578

$102, 618, 587
27,526,019
2, 304, 609
12,784, 398

Total identifiable assets

$210, 699, 503

$166, 988, 514

$145, 233, 613

(1) All significant intersegment revenues are billed at market rates and have been eliminated from consolidated revenues.
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D. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Various items within the balance sheet are considered to be financial instruments because they are cash or are to be settled in cash. The carrying
values of theseitemsgenerally approximate their fair value (see Note E to the Consolidated Financial Statementsfor disclosure of fair value of
investments). The Company'sopen forward and futures contracts at December 31, 2000 and December 31, 1999 had a net fair value of
$831,000 and $142,000, respectively based on market rates. The fair value of the Company'slong-term debt is estimated using a discounted
cash flow methodology. The Company's long-term debt at December 31, 2000, including current maturities, had an estimated fair value of
$56.0 million as compared to a carrying value of $53.6 million. At December 31, 1999, the estimated fair value wasapproximately $36.3
million as compared to a carrying value of $36.4 million. These estimates are based on published corporate borrowing rates for debt
instruments with similar terms and average maturities.

E. INVESTMENTS

The investment balance at December 31, 2000 consists primarily of a Rabbi Trust ("the trust") associated with the acquisition of Xeron, Inc.
The Company has classified the underlying investmentsheld by the trust as trading securities, whichrequire all gainsand lossesto be recorded
into non-operating income. The trust wasestablished during the acquisition as a retention bonus for an executive of Xeron. The Company has
an associated liability recorded which is adjusted, along with non-operating expense, for the gainsand losses incurred by the trust.

In November 1999, Chesapeake finaized thesale of its investment in Florida Public Utilities Company ("FPU") for $16.50 per share.
Chesapeake recognized a gain on the sale of $1,415,000 pre-tax or $863,000 after-tax. The Company had a

7.3 percent ownership interest in the common stock of FPU, which had been classified as anavailable for sale security. This classification
required that all unrealized gains and losses be excluded from earnings and be reported net of incometax as a separate component of
stockholders' equity. At December 31, 1998, the market value had exceeded the aggregate cost basis of the Company's portfolio by $1,552,000
pre-tax and $487,000 after-tax, respectively.

F. COMMON STOCK AND ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL

The following is a schedule of changes in the Company's shares of common stock.

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 1999 1998
COMMON STOCK: SHARES | SSUED AND OUTSTANDI NG (1)

Bal ance- - begi nni ng of year 5, 186, 546 5, 093, 788 5, 004, 078
Di vi dend Rei nvestrment Plan (2) 41, 056 36, 319 32,925
Sal e of stock to the Conpany's Retirenent Savings Plan 52,093 46, 208 26,018
Conver si on of debentures 10, 628 8, 631 6, 401
Per f or mance shares 7,120 1, 600 24, 366
Bal ance-- end of year (3) 5,297, 443 5, 186, 546 5,093, 788

(1)12,000,000 shares are authorized at a par value of $.4867 per share.
(2)Includes dividends and reinvested optional cash payments.

(3)The Company has 7,442 sharesheld in a Rabbi Trust as of December 31, 2000.

In 2000, the Company entered into an agreement with an investment banker to assist in identifying acquisition candidates. Under the agreement,
the Company issued warrantsto theinvestment banker to purchase 15,000 shares of Company stock, which are exercisable during the next
seven yearsat a price of $18.00 per share. During 2000, no warrants were exercised.
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G. LONG-TERM DEBT

First nortgage sinking fund bonds:

9.37% Series |, due Decenber 15, 2004 $ 2,268, 000 $ 3, 024, 000
Uncol | ateral i zed seni or notes:
7.97% note, due February 1, 2008 7, 000, 000 8, 000, 000
6.91% note, due Cctober 1, 2010 8,181, 818 9, 090, 909
6. 85% note, due January 1, 2012 10, 000, 000 10, 000, 000
7.83% note, due January 1, 2015 20, 000, 000
Converti bl e debent ures:
8.25% due March 1, 2014 3,471, 000 3, 662, 000
Total |ong-term debt $ 50,920,818 $ 33,776,909

Annual maturities of consolidated long-term debt for the next five yearsare as follows. $2,665,091 for the years 2001 and 2002, $3,665,091 for
the years 2003 and 2004 and $2,909,091 for the year 2005.

The convertible debentures may be converted, at the option of the holder, into shares of the Company'scommon stock at aconversion price of
$17.01 per share. During 2000 and 1999, debentures totaling $181,000 and $147,000, respectively, wereconverted. The debenturesare
redeemable at the option of the holder, subject to an annual non-cumulative maximum limitation of $200,000 in the aggregate. At the
Company'soption, the debentures may be redeemed at the stated amounts. During 2000, debentures totaling $10,000 were redeemed.

Indenturesto thelong-term debt of the Company and its subsidiaries contain various restrictions. The most stringent restrictions statethat the
Company must maintain equity of at least 40 percent of total capitalization, the timesinterest earned ratio must be at least 2.5 and the Company
cannot, until the retirement of its Series| bonds, pay any dividends after December 31, 1988 which exceed the sum of $2.1 million plus
consolidated net incomerecognized on or after January 1, 1989. As of December 31, 2000, the amounts available for future dividends
permitted by the Series| covenant approximated $19.3 million.

Portions of the Company's natural gasdistribution plant assets are subject to alien under the mortgage pursuant to which the Company'sfirst
mortgage sinking fund bonds are issued.

H. SHORT-TERM BORROWING

The Board of Directors hasauthorized the Company to borrow up to $45.0 million from various banksand trust companies. Asof December
31, 2000, the Company had four unsecured bank lines of credit totaling $60.0 million, none of which required compensating balances. Under
these lines of credit, the Company had short-term debt outstanding of $25.4 million and $23.0 million at December 31, 2000 and 1999,
respectively, with weighted average interest rates of 6.89 percent and 5.51 percent, respectively.

. LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The Company has entered several operating lease arrangements for office spaceat various locations and pipeline facilities. Rent expense related
to these leases was $652,000, $357,000 and $385,000 for 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively. Future minimum payments under the Company's
current lease agreements are $719,000, $573,000, $520,000, $483,000 and $385,000 for theyears of 2001 through 2005, respectively; and
$464,000 thereafter, totaling $3.1 million.

peres e SO irsssn 2002, EDGAR Online. I nc.




J. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

PENSION PLAN
In December 1998, the Company restructured the employee benefit plansto be competitive with those in similar industries. Chesapeake offered

existing participants of thedefined benefit plan the option to remain in the existing plan or receive a one-timepayout and enroll in an enhanced
retirement savings plan. Chesapeake closed the defined benefit planto new participants, effective December 31, 1998. Based on the election
options selected by the employees, the Company reduced its accrued pension liability to $1,283,088. Asaresult of the changein the accrued
liability, the Company recorded a curtailment gain of $1,224,298 in 1998. Benefits under the plan are based on each participant's years of
service and highest average compensation. The Company's funding policy provides that paymentsto the trustee shall be equal to the minimum
funding requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974.

The following schedule sets forth the funded status of the pension plan at December 31, 2000 and 1999:
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Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year
Servi ce cost
I nterest cost
Ef fect of curtail ment

(16, 369)

Change in discount rate

(896, 201)

Actuarial |oss
Benefits paid (1)
(4, 386, 001)

$ 8,241,995
354, 031
605, 185

8, 153
(382, 830)

$ 12,187,885
400, 921
688, 198

8, 826, 534

8, 241, 995

CHANGE I N PLAN ASSETS

Fair value of plan assets at begi nning of year

Actual return on plan assets
(13,774)

Benefits paid (1)
(4, 386, 001)

10, 185, 394
1, 068, 566

(382, 830)

14, 585, 169

FUNDED STATUS
UNRECOGNI ZED TRANSI TI ON OBLI GATI ON
(96, 267)

UNRECOGNI ZED PRI OR SERVI CE COST
(62, 453)

UNRECOGNI ZED NET GAI N

(2,956, 318)

2, 044, 596
(81, 163)

(57, 754)
(3,015, 953)

1, 943, 399

ACCRUED PENSI ON COST
(1,171, 639)

ASSUMPTI ONS
Di scount rate
Rat e of conpensation increase
Expected return on plan assets

EGAF

s 2002
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(1) Benefits paid in 1999 include $4 million in one-time paymentsrelated to the restructuring of the pension plan.



Net periodic pension costs for the defined pension benefit plan for 2000, 1999 and 1998 include the foll owing components:

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 1999 1998

COVPONENTS OF NET PERI ODI C PENSI ON COST:

Servi ce cost $ 354, 031 $ 400, 921 $ 838,177
I nterest cost 605, 185 688, 198 803, 727
Expected return on assets (859, 245) (1, 046, 254) (1,149, 754)
Anortization of:

Transition assets (15, 104) (15, 104) (15, 104)
Prior service cost (4, 699) (4,699) (4, 699)
Actuarial gain (141, 533) (118, 142) (143, 622)

Net periodic pension (benefit) cost (61, 365) (95, 080) 328, 725

Curtailnent gain - - (1, 224, 298)

TOTAL PENSI ON ( BENEFI T) COST $ (61, 365) $ (95, 080) $ (895,573)

The Company sponsors an unfunded executive excess benefit plan. The accrued benefit obligation and accrued pension costs were $676,000
and $515,000, respectively as of December 31, 2000 and $478,000 and $373,000, respectively at December 31, 1999.

RETIREMENT SAVINGSPLAN

The Company sponsors a401(k) Retirement Savings Plan, which provides participants a mechanismfor making contributions for retirement
savings. Each participant may makepre-tax contributions of upto 15 percent of eligible base compensation, subject to IRS limitations. For
participants still covered by the defined benefit pension plan, the Company makes a contribution matching 60 percent or 100 percent of each
participant's pre-tax contributions based on the participant's years of service, not to exceed 6 percent of the participant's eligible compensation
for the plan year.

Effective January 1, 1999, the Company began offering an enhanced 401(k) planto al new employees, as well asexisting employees that
elected to no longer participate in the defined benefit plan. The Company makesmatching contributions on a basis of up to 6 percent of each
employee's pre-tax compensation for the year. The match is between 100 percent and 200 percent, based on a combination of the employee's
age and years of service. The first 100 percent of the funds are matched with Chesapeake common stock. The remaining match isinvestedin
the Company's401(k) plan according to each employee'selection options.

Effective, January 1, 1999 the Company began offering a non-qualified supplemental employee retirement savings plan open to Company
executives over a specific income threshold. Participants receive a cash only matching contribution percentage equivalent to their 401(k) match
level. All contributions and matched funds earn interest income monthly. This Plan is not funded externally.

The Company's contributions to the 401(k) planstotaled $1,231,000, $1,066,000 and $495,000 for theyears ended December 31, 2000, 1999
and 1998, respectively. As of December 31, 2000, there are 32,055 sharesreserved to fund future contributions to the Retirement SavingsPlan.
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OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Company sponsors a defined benefit post-retirement health care and life insurance plan that covers substantially all natural gasand
corporate employees.

Net periodic post-retirement costs for 2000, 1999 and 1998 includethe following components:

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 1999 1998
Conponents of net periodic post-retirenment cost:
Servi ce cost $ 1,803 $ 3,322 $ 3,361
I nterest cost 57,584 55, 023 59, 321
Anortization of:
Transition obligation 27, 859 27, 859 27, 859
Actuarial |oss - 3,130 6,071
Net periodic post-retirenent cost 87, 246 89, 334 96, 612
Anpbunts anortized 25, 028 25, 254 25, 254
TOTAL POST- RETI REMENT COST $ 112,274 $ 114,588 $ 121, 866

The following schedul e sets forth the status of the post-retirement health care and lifeinsurance plan:

AT DECEMBER 31, 2000 1999
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 788, 532 $ 887, 060
Retirees 23,708
(19, 169)
Ful ly-eligible active enpl oyees 48, 992
(59, 211)
Q her active (28, 697)
(20, 148)
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 832,535 $ 788, 532
FUNDED STATUS $ (832, 535) $
(788, 532)
UNRECOGNI ZED TRANSI TI ON OBLI GATI ON 161, 577 189, 436
UNRECOGNI ZED NET LOSS 61, 543 23, 329
ACCRUED POST- RETI REMENT COST $ (609, 415) $
(575, 767)
ASSUMPTI ONS
Di scount rate 7.50% 7.50%

The hedlth careinflation rate for 2000 is assumed to be 8.0 percent. Thisrate is projected to gradually decrease to an ultimate rate of 5 percent
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by the year 2007. A one percentage point increase in the health care inflation rate from the assumed rate would increase the accumul ated
post-retirement benefit obligation by approximately $84,511 as of January 1, 2001, and would increase the aggregate of the service cost and
interest cost components of the net periodic post-retirement benefit cost for 2001 by approximately $6,846.
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K. EXECUTIVE INCENTIVE PLANS

The Performance Incentive Plan ("the Plan™) adopted in 1992 provides for the granting of stock options, stock appreciation rights and
performance sharesto certain officers of the Company over al10-year period. The Plan provides participants an option to purchase shares of the
Company'scommon stock, exercisable in cumulativeinstallments of up to one-third on each anniversary of the commencement of the award
period. The Plan also enables participants the right to earn performance shares upon the Company's achievement of certain performance goals
as set forth in the specific agreements associated with particular options and/or performance shares.

The Company executed Stock Option Agreements for a three-year performance period ending December 31, 2000 with certain executive
officers. One-half of these options become exercisable over time and the other half become exercisable if certain performance targets are
achieved. In 2000, the Company replaced the third year of thisStock Option Agreement with Stock Appreciation Rights ("SARS'). The SARs
are awarded based on performance witha minimum number of SARs established for each participant. During 2000, the Company awarded
26,300 SARs in conjunction with the agreement. Chesapeake currently awards Performance Share Agreements annually for certain other
executive officers. Each year participants are eligible to earn a maximum number of performance shares, based on the Company's achievement
of certain performance goals. The Company recorded compensation expense of $118,000, $131,000 and $49,000 associated with these
performance sharesin 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively.

Changes in outstanding options were as follows:

2000 1999 1998
NUVBER OPTI ON NUMBER OPTI ON NUMBER OPTI ON
OF SHARES PRI CE OF SHARES PRI CE OF SHARES PRI CE

Bal ance-- begi nni ng of year 163,637 $12.75 -- $20.50 163,637 $12.75 -- $20.50 208, 543 $12.625 -- $20.50
Opti ons expired (44, 906) $12. 625
Options forfeited or replaced (53, 544) $20. 50
Bal ance-- end of year 110,093 $12.75 -- $20.50 163,637 $12.75 -- $20.50 163, 637 $12.75 -- $20.50
Exerci sabl e 110,093 $12.75 -- $20.50 85, 735 $12.75 -- $20.50 68, 145 $12.75

In December 1997, the Company granted stock options to certain executive officers of the Company. Asrequired by Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123, the proforma information as if fair value based accounting had been used to account for the stock-based
compensation costsis shown below.

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 1999 1998
Pro forma Net |ncone $ 7,475,885 $ 8,230, 868 $ 5,262, 468
Pro forma Earnings Per Share:
Basi ¢ $ 1.42 $ 1.60 $ 1.04
D | uted $ 1.40 $ 1.57 $ 1.03
Assunpt i ons:
Di vidend yield 4. 73% 4. 73% 4. 73%
Expected volatility 15. 53% 15. 53% 15. 53%
Ri sk-free interest rate 5. 89% 5. 89% 5. 89%
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L. ENVIRONMENTAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is currently participating in the investigation, assessment or remediation of three former gas manufacturing plant sites located in
different jurisdictions, including the exploration of corrective action optionsto remove environmental contaminants. The Company has accrued
liabilities for three of these sites, the Dover Gas Light, Salisbury Town Gas Light and the Winter Haven Coal Gas sites.

With respect to the Dover Gas Light site, the Company and General Public Utilities Corporation, Inc. ("GPU") have been ordered by the
Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") to fund or implement the EPA's Record of Decision ("ROD") on theappropriate remedial activities
to be performed, which include both soil and ground-water remedies.

During 1999, the Company completed the first phase of the soil remediation process at that site. During 2000, the Company initiated the second
soil remediation phase, soil vapor extraction procedures ("SVE") with thefinding submitted to the EPA for review. Based on thefinding the
Company has filed a request withthe EPA to discontinue the SVE and is awaiting the EPA's response. Once the SV E remediation procedures
are completed, the Company expectsto complete thethird and final phase of soil remediation and then initiate the ground-water remedial
activities.

The Company's independent consultants have prepared preliminary estimates of the costs of two potentially acceptable alternatives to complete
the ground-water remediation activities at thesite. The coststo remediate the ground-water range fromalow of $390,000 in capital and
$37,000 per year of operating costs for 30 years for natural attenuation to a high of $3.3 million in capital and $1.0 million per year in operating
coststo operate a pump-and-treat/ground-water containment system. The pump-and-treat/ground-water containment systemis intended to
contain the manufactured gas plant ("MGP") contaminantsto allow the ground-water outside of the containment area to attenuate naturally. The
operating cost estimatefor the pump-and-treat containment system is dependent upon the actual ground-water quality and flow conditions at the
site. The Company continuesto believe that a ground-water pump-and-treat system is not necessary for the MGP contaminants, that thereis
insufficient information to design an overall ground-water containment program and that natural attenuation is the appropriate remedial action
for the MGP wastes.

Chesapeake cannot predict the ground-water remediation that the EPA will require; therefore, the Company in 2000 hasnot adjusted the $2.1
million accrued at December 31, 1999 for the Dover site and the associated regulatory asset for an equivalent amount. Of thisamount, $1.5
million isfor ground-water remediation and $600,000 isfor theremaining soil remediation. The $1.5 million represents the low end of the
ground-water remedy estimates described above.

In 1996, the Company initiated litigation against GPU, one of the other potentially responsible parties, for contribution to the remedial costs
incurred by Chesapeake in connection with complying with the ROD. In February 2001, the Company and GPU reached a tentative settlement,
pending the approval of the courts. The termsof the settlement prohibit disclosure of the provisions of the settlement until finalized.
Management believes that the Company will be equitably entitled to contribution from other responsible parties for a portion of the expensesto
be incurred in connection with the remedies selected in the ROD. The Company expects that it will be able to recover actual costsincurred,
which are not recovered from other responsible parties, exclusive of associated carrying costs, through the ratemaking process in accordance
with environmental cost recovery rider provisions currently in effect.

In cooperation withthe Maryland Department of the Environment ("MDE"), the Company is engaged in remediation procedures at the
Salisbury site. Inaddition, the Company reports the remediation and monitoring resultsto the MDE. The remediation procedures at thesite are
currently suspended awaiting approval from the MDE to permanently shutdown the remediation procedures. The Company has adjusted the
ligbility with respect to the Salisbury siteto $175,000 in December 2000. The Company had previous accrued $240,000 as of December 31,
1999. Thisamount is based on the estimated operating costs of the remediation facilitiesover the next two yearsand capital costs to shut down
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the remediation proceduresin 2002. A corresponding regulatory asset hasbeen recorded, reflecting the Company's belief that costs incurred
will be recoverable in base rates.

The third site islocated in the state of Floridaand in January 2001 the Company filed aremedial actionplan ("RAP") with the Florida
Department of the Environment. The RAPincluded an estimate of $635,000 to complete the remediation procedures at a portion on thesite.
Accordingly in December 2000, the Company accrued $635,000 and an associated regulatory asset. Once the FDEP approves the RAP, the
Company will commence with the remediation procedures per the RAP. The Company continues to accrue for future environmental costs and at
December 31, 2000 has collected $505,000 in excess of costs incurred.

It is management'sopinion that any unrecovered current costs and any other future costs associated with any of the three sitesincurred will be
recoverable through future rates or sharing arrangements with other responsible parties.

M. OTHER COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

NATURAL GAS SUPPLY

The Company's natural gasdistribution operations have entered into contractual commitmentsfor daily entitlements of natural gas from various
suppliers. The contracts have various expiration dates. In 2000, the Company entered into a long-term contract with an energy marketing and

risk management company to manage the Company's natural gastransportation and storage capacity.

OTHER

The Company isinvolved in certainlegal actions and claimsarising in the normal course of business. The Company isasoinvolved in certain
legal and administrative proceedings before various governmental agencies concerning rates. Inthe opinion of management, the ultimate
disposition of these proceedings will not have a material effect on the consolidated financial position of the Company.
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N. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)
In theopinion of the Company, the quarterly financia information shown below includes all adjustments necessary for afair presentation of the

operations for such periods. Due to the seasonal nature of the Company's business, there are substantial variationsin operations reported on a
quarterly basis.

FOR THE QUARTERS ENDED MARCH 31 JUNE 30 SEPTEMBER 30 DECEMBER 31
2000
Qper ati ng Revenue $ 98,509,179 $ 65,950,982 $ 59,212,768 $ 111, 734,107
Qperating | ncone 6, 640, 727 1, 235, 233 (43, 959) 3, 806, 045
Net | ncone 5, 669, 466 319, 548 (1,044, 709) 2,544,896
Ear ni ngs per share:
Basi c $ 1.09 $ 0.06 $ (0.20) $ 0.48
Di | uted $ 1.05 $ 0.06 $ (0.20) $ 0.47
1999
Oper ating Revenue $ 55,449,379 $ 46,718,039 $ 56,397,315 $ 71,635, 602
Qperating | ncone 5, 757, 404 1,542,744 22,546 3,351, 548
Net | ncome (1) 4,942, 983 796, 103 (784,981) 3, 316, 881
Ear ni ngs per share:
Basi c $ 0.97 $ 0.16 $ (0.15) $ 0.64
Di | uted $ 0.93 $ 0.16 $ (0.15) $ 0.62

(1) Results for the fourth quarter of 1999 reflect a gain on the sale of investments of $863,000, net of incometax expense.

See Note E to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTSWITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

PART 111
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERSOF THE REGISTRANT
Information pertaining to the Directors of the Company isincorporated herein by reference to the Proxy Statement, under "Information
Regarding theBoard of Directors and Nominees', Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance" to be filed on or before May 1,
2001 in connection with the Company's Annua Meeting to be held on May 15, 2001

The information required by thisitem with respect to executive officersis, pursuant to instruction 3 of paragraph (b) of Item 401 of Regulation
SK, set forthin Part | of this Form 10-K under "Executive Officers of the Registrant.”

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Thisinformation isincorporated herein by reference to the Proxy Statement, under "Management Compensation Committee Interlocks and
Insider Participation”, inthe Proxy Statement to be filed on or before April 30, 2001, in connection with the Company's Annual Meeting to be
held on May 15, 2001.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

Thisinformation isincorporated herein by reference to the information included, under "Beneficial Ownership of the Company's Securities', in
the Proxy Statement, dated and to be filed on or before March 30, 2001 in connection with the Company's Annual Meeting to be held on May
15, 2001.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Thisinformation isincorporated herein by reference to the information included, under "Certain Transactions' in the Proxy Statement, dated
and to be filed on or before April 30, 2001, in connection withthe Company'sAnnua Meeting to be held on May 15, 2001
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PART IV

ITEM 14. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, EXHIBITS AND REPORTSON FORM 8-K

(8 THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS ARE FILED ASPART OF THIS REPORT:
1. Financia Statements:

- Accountants Report dated February 13, 2001 of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Accountants

- Consolidated Statements of Income for each of thethree years ended December 31, 2000, 1999, and 1998

- Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2000 and December 31, 1999

- Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years ended December 31, 2000,1999, and 1998

- Consolidated Statements of Common Stockholders' Equity for each of thethree years ended December 31, 2000, 1999, and 1998
- Consolidated Statements of Income Taxes for each of the three yearsended December 31, 2000, 1999, and 1998

- Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Financia Statement Schedules-- Schedule Il - Vauation and Qualifying Accounts

All other schedules are omitted because they are not required, areinapplicable or theinformation is otherwise shown in the financial statements
or notesthereto.

(b) REPORTS ON FORM 8-K:
None

() EXHIBITS:
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Exhi bi t 3(a)

of

Exhi bi t

8- A

Exhi bi t

Exhi bi t

Exhi bi t

Exhi bi t

pl aced

3(b)

4(a)

4(b)

4(c)

4(d)

Anended Certificate of Incorporation of Chesapeake Uilities
Corporation is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1

the Conpany's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
June 30, 1998, File No. 001-11590.

Anended Byl aws of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation
ef fective August 20, 1999, are incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 3 of the Conpany's Registration Statenent on Form

File No. 001-11590, filed August 24, 1999

Form of I ndenture between the Conpany and Boatnmen's Trust
Conpany, Trustee, with respect to the 8 1/4% Convertible
Debentures is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of
the Conpany's Registration Statenent on Form S-2, Reg. No.
33-26582, filed on January 13, 1989

Not e Agreenent dated February 9, 1993, by and between the
Conpany and Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Conpany and MWL
Pensi on | nsurance Conpany, with respect to $10 million of 7.97%
Unsecured Seni or Notes due February 1, 2008, is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4 to the Conpany's Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended Decenber 31, 1992, File No.

0- 593.

Not e Purchase Agreenent entered into by the Conpany on

Cct ober 2, 1995, pursuant to which the Conpany privately placed
$10 million of its 6.91% Senior Notes due in 2010, is not being
filed herewith, in accordance with Item 601(b)(4)(iii) of
Regul ati on S-K. The Company hereby agrees to furnish a copy of
that agreenment to the Comm ssion upon request.

Not e Purchase Agreenent entered into by the Conpany on
Decenmber 15, 1997, pursuant to which the Company privately

$10 mllion of its 6.85% senior notes due 2012, is not being
filed herewith, in accordance with Item 601(b)(4)(iii) of
Regul ati on S-K. The Company hereby agrees to furnish a copy of
that agreenment to the Commi ssion upon request.
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Exhibit 4(e)

*Exhibit 10(a)

Quarterly
File

*Exhibit 10(b)
J.

*Exhi bi t 10(c)

*Exhibit 10(d)

*Exhibit 10(e)

*Exhi bi t 10(f)

*Exhi bi t 10(g)

*Exhi bi t 10(h)

*Exhibit 10(i)

*Exhi bit 10(j)

Exhibit 12

Exhibit 21

Not e Purchase Agreenent entered into by the Conpany on
Decenber 27, 2000, pursuant to which the Company privately
placed $20 nmillion of its 7.83% senior notes due 2015, is
not being filed herewith, in accordance with Item
601(b)(4)(iii) of Regulation S-K The Conpany hereby agrees
to furnish a copy of that agreement to the Conmi ssion upon
request.

Executive Enpl oynent Agreenment dated March 26, 1997,

by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and each
Ral ph J. Adkins and John R Schinkaitis is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Conpany's

Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 1997,
No. 001-11590.

Executive Enpl oyment Agreenent dated January 1, 2001,
by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Ral ph

Adkins, filed herewth.

Form of Perfornance Share Agreenent dated January 1,

1998, pursuant to Chesapeake Utilities Corporation
Performance | ncentive Plan by and between Chesapeake
Uilities Corporation and each of Ral ph J. Adkins and John
R Schinkaitis is incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10 of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended Decenber 31, 1997, File No. 001-11590.

Form of Perfornmance Share Agreenent dated January 1,

2001, pursuant to Chesapeake Wilities Corporation
Performance | ncentive Plan by and between Chesapeake
Utilities Corporation and each of Ral ph J. Adkins, John R
Schinkaitis, Mchael P. McMasters and Stephen C. Thonpson,
filed herewth.

Chesapeake UWilities Corporation Cash Bonus Incentive

Pl an dated January 1, 1992, is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10 to the Conpany's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1991, File No.
0- 593.

Chesapeake Wilities Corporation Performance |ncentive

Pl an dated January 1, 1992, is incorporated herein by
reference to the Conmpany's Proxy Statenment dated April 20,
1992, in connection with the Conpany's Annual Meeting held
on May 19, 1992.

Form of Stock Appreciation R ghts Agreenment dated
January 1, 2001, pursuant to Chesapeake Utilities
Corporation Performance |Incentive Plan by and between
Chesapeake Wilities Corporation and each of Philip S
Baref oot, WIIliam C. Boyles, Thomas A. Ceoffroy, James R
Schneider and Wlliam P. Schneider, filed herewth.

Directors Stock Conpensation Plan adopted by

Chesapeake Wilities Corporation in 1995 is incorporated
herein by reference to the Company's Proxy Statenent dated
April 17, 1995 in connection with the Conpany's Annual
Meeting held in May 1995.

United Systems, Inc. Executive Appreciation Rights
Pl an dated Decenber 31, 2000, filed herewth.

United Systenms, Inc. Enployee Appreciation R ghts Plan
dat ed Decenber 31, 2000, filed herewith.

Con™= "l snusat pa20f HE@AmIonY nko IFicxed Charges, fil ed
herew t h.

Subsi diaries of the Registrant, filed herewth.



* Management contract or compensatory plan or agreement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Chesapeake Utilities Corporation has duly caused
this report to be signed oniits behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIESCORPORATION

By: /S/ JOHN R SCH MKAITI S

John R Schinkaitis

Presi dent and Chi ef Executive
Oficer
Dat e: March 15, 2001

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by thefollowing persons on behalf of
the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

/'S RALPH J. ADKINS /S JOHN R SCH MKAITI' S

Ral ph J. Adkins, Chairman of the Board John R Schinkaitis, President,
and Director Chi ef Executive Oficer and

Di rector

Date: March 15, 2001 Date: March 15, 2001

/Sl M CHAEL P. MCMASTERS /'S R CHARD BERNSTEI N

M chael P. McMasters, Vice President, Ri chard Bernstein, D rector
Chief Financial Oficer and Treasurer Date: March 15, 2001

(Principal Financial and Accounting Oficer)
Date: March 15, 2001

/'Sl WALTER J. COLEMAN /S JOHAHN W JARDI NE, JR
Walter J. Col enman, Director John W Jardine, Jr., Director
Date: WMarch 15, 2001 Date: WMarch 15, 2001

/'SI  CALVERT A. MORGAN, JR /S RUDOLPH M PEINS, JR
Calvert A Morgan, Jr., Director Rudol ph M Peins, Jr., Director
Date: March 15, 2001 Date: March 15, 2001

/'SI'  ROBERT F. RIDER /'S JEREM AH P. SHEA

Robert F. Rider, Director Jerem ah P. Shea, Director

Dat e: March 15, 2001 Dat e: March 15, 2001

/Sl WLLIAM G WARDEN, |11

Wlliam G Warden, |11, D rector
Date: WMarch 15, 2001
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CHESAPEAKE UTILITIESCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE 11
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

ADDI TI ONS
BALANCE AT - s-owsosmommommomoooooaaiaaaoas BALANCE AT
BEG NNI NG CHARGED TO OTHER END OF
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, OF YEAR I NCOVE ACCOUNTS (1) DEDUCTI ONS (2) YEAR
RESERVE DEDUCTED FROM RELATED ASSETS
RESERVE FOR UNCOLLECTI BLE ACCOUNTS
2000 $ 475,592 $ 342,407 $ 63,741 $ (331,779) $ 549, 961
1999 $ 302,513 $ 457, 367 $ 74,877 $ (359, 165) $ 475,592
1998 $ 331,775 $ 280, 391 $ 57,759 $ (367, 412) $ 302,513

(1) Recoveries.

(2) Uncallectible accounts charged off.

peres e SO irsssn 2002, EDGAR Online. I nc.




Upon written request, Chesapeake will provide, free of charge, a copy of any exhibit to the 2000 Annual Report on Form 10-K not included in
this document.
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EXHIBIT - 10.1
EXECUTIVEEMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

AN EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement"), dated this1st day of January 2001, by and between Chesapeake Utilities
Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), and Ralph J. Adkins ("Executive").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Company is currently obtaining the benefit of Executive's services asa part-time executive employee in the capacity of
Chairman of the Company'sBoard of Directors ("Chairman™) under an Executive Employment Agreement, dated January 1, 1999;

WHEREAS, the Company'sBoard of Directors (the "Board") hasauthorized the Company to agree to provide for Executive's continued
employment on the terms set forth in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Executiveiswilling, in consideration of the covenants hereinafter provided, to continueto be employed by the Company inthe
capacity of Chairman and to render services incident to such position during the term of this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of themutual promises and covenants contained herein, the Company and Executive hereby agree as
follows:

1. Employment. The Company agrees to employ Executive, and Executive agrees to accept employment, as an executive officer of the
Company in the capacity of Chairman, with such reasonable duties and responsibilities as are consistent withthe By-laws of the Company, as of
the date hereof, and the Position Description dated January 1, 2001, appended to this Agreement.

2. Term of Agreement. The term of Executive's employment under this Agreement (the "Term") shall extend until December 31, 2002, unless
such employmentis earlier terminated (i) by either the Company or Executive upon 90 daysprior written noticeto the other or (ii) otherwise
accordance withthe provisions of Section 8.

3. Time. Executive agrees to devote one-half of a full-time work schedule and, during that time, his full best efforts for the benefit of the
Company and its subsidiaries, and not to serve any other business enterprise or organization in any capacity during the Term, without the prior
written consent of the Company, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

4. Office. During the Term, Executive shall serve as the Company's Chairman.
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5. Compensation. During the Term, the Company shall compensate Executive for his services hereunder at arate of $XXXXX per annum,
payable in equal semimonthly installments, or such greater or lesser amount as the Board may determine ("Base Compensation”). The Base
Compensation rate shall be reviewed annually and may be increased or decreased from timeto time.

6. Expenses. During the Term, the Company shall pay all necessary and reasonable business expensesincurred by Executive on behalf of the
Company in the course of his employment under this Agreement, including, without limitation, expensesincurred in the conduct of the
Company'sbusiness while away from his domicile and expensesfor travel, meals, lodging, entertainment and related expensesthat are for the
benefit of the Company.

7. Other Benefits.

(a) During the Term, Executive shall be entitled to participate in al profit-sharing, insurance, medical and retirement benefit plans, together
with vacation and other employee benefits of the Company, now in effect or as hereafter amended or established, in which Company executive
employees are permitted to participate. The Executive's participation shall be in accordance withthe termsand provisions of such plans.

(b) During the Term, the Company shall furnish Executive with a suitable office, necessary administrative support and customary furniture and
furnishings for such office. The Company further agrees that Executive shall have the use of a Company-owned or Company-leased and
maintained automobile, new every threeyears, of akind and model appropriate to his position with the Company.

8. Termination.

(a) Terminationfor Cause. This Executive's employment under this Agreement may be terminated by the Company at any time for "cause”. In
the event of termination for "cause," Executive (i) shall only be entitled to the payment of the compensation and benefits contemplated by

Section 5, 6, and 7 through the date termination (except for any benefits that the Company may be required to continue to provide by law) and
(i) and shall not be entitled to any severance benefits under this Agreement. Unlessa Change in Control has occurred, "cause" shall be as the

Board may reasonably determine. Following a Changein Control, the Company may terminate the Executive's employment for "cause" only if
Executive engages in:
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(i) conduct that constitutes afelony under the lawsof the United States or a state in which Executive worksor resides;

(ii) an act or acts of dishonesty resulting, or intended to result, directly or indirectly in material gain to or persona enrichment of Executive at
the Company's expense;

(iii) adeliberate and intentional refusal (except by reason of incapacity due toillness or accident) to comply with the provisions of Section 1,
provided that such breach shall have resulted in demonstrably material injury to the Company, and Executive shall have failed to remedy such
breach within thirty days after notice received from the Secretary of the Company demanding that Executive remedy such breach; or

(iv) conduct by Executive that is materially injurious to the Company, if such conduct wasundertaken without good faith and the reasonable
belief that such conduct was in the best interest of the Company.

(b) Termination Following a Change in Control. After a Changein Control:

(i) the Company may terminate the Executive's employment under this Agreement at any time and for any reason; and

(i) Executive may terminate his employment at any time following the occurrence of any of the following events:

(A) failure to elect or reelect Executive to, or removal of Executive from, the position described in Section 1;

(B) Executive's good-faith determination that there has been a significant change in the nature or scope of his authorities, powers, functions,
duties or responsihilities attached to the position described in Section 1 or areduction in his compensation as provided in

Section 5 or his benefits as provided in Section 7, which change or reduction is not remedied within thirty daysafter notice to the Company by

Executive;

(C) any other breach by the Company of any provision of this Agreement that is not remedied within 30 days after notice to the Company by
Executive; or
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(D) the liquidation, dissolution, consolidation or merger of the Company or transfer of al or a significant portion of its assets, unlessa
successor or successors (by merger, consolidation or otherwise) to which all or asignificant portion of its assets has been transferred shall have
assumed all duties and obligations of the Company under this Agreement; provided that in any event set forth in this

Section 8(b)(ii), Executive shall have elected to terminate his employment under this Agreement upon not lessthan 40 and not more than 90
days notice to the Board, attention of the Secretary of the Company, given withinthree calendar monthsafter (1) failure to be so elected or
reelected, or such removal, (2) expiration of the 30-day cure period with respect to such event, or (3) the closing date of suchliquidation,
dissolution, consolidation, merger or transfer of assets.

An election by Executive to terminate his employment under the provisions of thisSection 8(b)(ii) shall not be deemed a voluntary termination
of employment by Executive for the purposes of thisAgreement or any plan or practice of the Company.

(c) Payment Upon Termination. Inthe event that (i) the Company terminates Executive's employment under this Agreement for any reason
other than Cause or Executive's death or (ii) Executive terminates his employment under this Agreement pursuant to Section 8(B)(ii), the
Company shall continue to pay to Executive (or in theevent of his death following such termination, hislegal representative) his Base
Compensation under Section 5, at the semi-monthly ratein effect immediately prior to thedate of such termination, until December 31, 2002.

(d) Change In Control. For the purposes of this Agreement, Changein Control shall mean achange in the control of the Company during the
Term, which shall be deemed to have occurred if:

() The registration of the Company's voting securities under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the"1934 Act"), terminates or
the Company shall have fewer than 300 stockholders of record; or
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(ii) any person or group (within the meaning of sections13(d) and 14(d) of the 1934 Act), other than the Company or any of its
majority-controlled subsidiaries, becomes the beneficial owner (within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 under the 1934 Act) of 30 percent or more of
the combined voting power of the Company'sthen outstanding voting securities; or

(iii) atender offer or exchange offer (other than an offer by the Company or a majority-controlled subsidiary), pursuant to which 30 percent or
more of the combined voting power of the Company'sthen outstanding voting securities is purchased, expires; or

(iv) thestockholders of the Company approve an agreement to merge or consolidate with another corporation (other than a majority-controlled
subsidiary of the Company) unless the stockholders of the Company immediately before the merger or consolidation are to own more than 70
percent of the combined voting power of the resulting entity'svoting securities; or

(v) the Company's stockhol ders approve an agreement
(including, without limitation, a plan of liquidation) to sell or otherwise dispose of all or substantially al of the business or assetsof the
Company; or

(vi) during any period of two consecutive years, individuals who, at the beginning of such period, constituted the Board cease for any reason to
congtitute at least a majority thereof, unlessthe election or thenomination for election by the Company's stockholders of each new director was
approved by a vote of at least two-thirds of the directorsthen still in office who were directors at the beginning of the period; or

(vii) theacquisition of direct or indirect beneficial ownership of more than 15 percent of the Company'sthen outstanding voting securities by
any person or groupis approved over theformal objection of the Company by the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to section 9 of
the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935, as amended.

However, no Change in Control shall be deemed to have occurred by reason of any event involving a transaction in which Executive, or a group
of persons or entitieswith which

swneet ox SO asim 2002, EDGAR Onl i ne, I nc.




-6-

Executive acts in concert, acquires, directly or indirectly, more than 30 percent of the common stock or the business or assets of the Company;
any event involving or arising out of a proceeding under Title 11 of the United States Code (or the provisions of any future United States
bankruptcy law), anassignment for the benefit of creditors or an insolvency proceeding under stateor local law; or any event constituting
approva by the Company'sstockholders of a merger or consolidation if a majority of thegroup consisting of the President and Vice Presidents
of the Company who are parties to agreements conferring rights upon a Changein Control shall have agreed in writing prior to such approval
that approval shall be deemed not to constitute a Change in Control.

9. Mitigation. Executive shall not be required to mitigate the amount of any payment provided for in thisAgreement either by seeking other
employment or otherwise. The amount of any payment provided for herein shall not be reduced by any remuneration that Executive may earn
from employment with another employer or otherwise following the termination of his employment under this Agreement.

10. Noncompetition Covenant. For a period of one year following the termination of Executive's employment under this Agreement or, if
Executive has given a notice pursuant to Section 8(b)(ii), for aperiod of 15 months following the giving of such notice, Executive shall assist
noindividua or entity other than the Company to acquire any entity with respect to whicha proposal to acquirethe entity was presented to the
Board prior to the beginning of the period.

11. Indemnification. The Company shall indemnify Executive to the fullest extent permitted by applicable Delaware law (as it may be amended
from time to time), including the advance of expenses permitted herein.

12. Performance. The failure of either party to thisAgreement to insist upon strict performance of any provision hereof shall not constitute a
waiver of its rights subsequently to insist upon strict performance of such provision or any other provision of thisAgreement.

13. Non-Assignability. Neither party shall have theright to assign this Agreement or any rights or obligations hereunder without the consent of
the other party.

14. Invalidity. If any provisions of this Agreement shall be found to be invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, suchfinding shall not
affect the remaining provisions of this Agreement, all of which shall remain in full force and effect.
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15. Arbitration and Legal Fees. In theevent of any dispute regarding arefusal or failure by the Company to makepayments or provide benefits
hereunder for any reason, Executive shall havetheright, in addition to all other rights and remedies provided by law, to arbitration of such
dispute under the rules of the American Arbitration Association, which right shall be invoked by serving upon the Company a noticeto
arbitrate, stating the place of arbitration, within 90 days of receipt of notice in any form (including, without limitation, failure by the Company
to respond to a notice from Executive within 30 days) that the Company is withholding or proposes to withhold payments or provisions of
benefits. In the event of any such dispute, whether or not Executive exercises hisright to arbitration, if it shall ultimately be determined that the
Company'srefusal or failureto makepayments or provide benefits hereunder was wrongful or otherwise inconsistent with theterms of this
Agreement, the Company shall indemnify and hold harmless Executive from and against any and all expensesincurred in connection with such
determination, including legal and other feesand expenses.

16. Successors. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Executive (and his personal representative), the Company and
any successor organization or organizations that shall succeed to substantially all of the business and property of the Company, whether by
means of merger, consolidation, acquisition of substantially all of the assetsof the Company or otherwise, including by operation of law.

17. Set-off. The Company shall have noright of set-off or counterclaim in respect of any claim, debt or obligation against any payments or
benefits provided for in this Agreement.

18. Amendments. No amendment to this Agreement shall be effective unlessin writing and signed by both the Company and Executive.

19. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be interpreted and enforced in accordance with the lawsof the State of Delaware.

20. Notices. Unless otherwise stated herein, al notices hereunder shall be in writingand shall be deemed to be given when personally delivered
or mailed by United States registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to, if to the Company, 909 Silver Lake Boulevard, Dover, Delaware

19901, and, if to Executive, the last address therefor shown on the records of the Company. Either the Company or Executive may, by notice to
the other, designate an address other than the foregoing for the receipt of subsequent notices.
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21. Withholding. The Company may withhold from any amounts payable to Executive hereunder all federal, state, city or other taxes that the
Company may reasonably determine are required to be withheld pursuant to any applicable law or regulation.

22. Nature of PaymentsUpon Termination. All payments to Executive pursuant to Section 8 be considered as liquidated damages or as
severance paymentsin consideration of Executive's past servicesto the Company, and no such payment shall be regarded asa penalty to the
Company.

23. Acknowledgment. The parties hereto each acknowledge that each hasread this Agreement and understands the same and that each enters
into this Agreement freely and voluntarily.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement asof the date first above written.

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIESCORPORATION

[ CORPORATE SEAL] By:
Narme:
Title:
ATTEST:
Secretary
EXECUTIVE

Ralph J. Adkins
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EXHIBIT - 10.2
PERFORMANCE SHARE AGREEMENT
PURSUANT TO THE

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIESCORPORATION
PERFORMANCE INCENTIVE PLAN

AGREEMENT dated as of January 1, 2001, and entered into, in duplicate, by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, a Delaware
corporation (the "Company"), and [Ralph J. Adkins/ John R. Schimkaitis / Michagl P. McMasters/ Stephen C. Thompson] (the "Grantee")
whoresides at [ADDRESS].

WITNESSETH that:

WHEREAS, the Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Performance Incentive Plan (the "Plan™) has been duly adopted by action of the Company's
Board of Directors (the "Board") as of January 1, 1992; and

WHEREAS, the Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company referred to in the Plan (the "Committee") has determined that it isin the
best interests of the Company to grant the Performance Share Award described herein pursuant to the Plan; and

WHEREAS, the shares of the Common Stock of the Company that are subject to this Agreement, when added to the other shares of Common
Stock that are subject to awards granted under the Plan, do not exceed the total number of shares of Common Stock with respect to which
awards are authorized to be granted under the Plan;

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby covenanted and agreed by and between the Company and the Grantee as follows:

Section 1. Performance Share Award

The Company hereby grantsto the Grantee a Performance Share Award for the year ending December 31, 2001 (the "Award Year"). Asmore
fully described herein, the Grantee may earn a maximumtotal of [XXXX] shares (the "Contingent Performance Shares") upon the Company's
achievement of the Performance Goals set forthin Section 2. Alternatively, the Grantee may elect to receive [XXXX] shares (the "Forfeitable
Performance Shares'), as detailed in Section 3, in lieu of receiving any Contingent Performance Shares. The Forfeitable Performance Shares
shall be subject to forfeiture conditions, as set forth in Section 3(c).

Section 2. Contingent Performance Shares

(a) Assoon as practicable after the Company's independent auditors have certified the Company'sfinancial statementsfor the Award Y ear, the
Committee shall determine for purposes of this Agreement the Company's (1) earnings growth ("EG"), (2) growth in non-regulated netincome
("NRNI"), and (3) share price relative to book value ("Price/Book Value") as of the end of the Award Y ear. The EG, NRNI and Price/Book
Value shall be determined by the Committee based on financial resultsreported to shareholders in the Company's annual reports and shall be
subject to adjustment by the Committee for
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extraordinary events, including, but not limited to, temperature fluctuation during the Award Y ear. The Committee shall promptly notify the
Grantee of its determination.

(b) The Grantee may earn up to [XXXX] Contingent Performance Shares (the "Maximum Award"), as follows:

(2) If the EG for the Award Y ear exceeds the median five-year weighted average growth for companies included inthe C.A. Turner database
(natural gas distribution companies and integrated natural gasdistribution companies), the Grantee may earn up to fifty percent (50%) of the
Maximum Award, as follows:

(i) If the EGis in thefourth quartile of companiesin the C.A. Turner database, the Grantee shall earnfifty percent (50%) of the Maximum
Award, or

(i) If the EG falls between the median and the fourth quartile, the Grantee shall earn a portion of thefifty percent (50%) available under this
paragraph that is pro-rated to reflect the position of the Company's earnings growth withinthe third quartile, or

(iii) If theEG isat or below the median, the Grantee shall not earn any Contingent Performance Shares under thisparagraph (1);

(2) If the temperature-adjusted NRNI for the Award Y ear exceeds thetemperature-adjusted NRNI for the prior calendar year by fifteen percent
(15%) or more, the Grantee shall earnthirty percent (30%) of the Maximum Award. If thetemperature-adjusted NRNI for the Award Y ear does
not exceed the temperature-adjusted NRNI for theprior calendar year by at least fifteen percent (15%), the Grantee shall not earn any
Contingent Performance Shares under this paragraph (2); and

(3) If the Price/Book Valuefor the Award Year isequal to or greater than the average Price/Book Value for the Award Y ear of companiesin
the third quartile of the C.A. Turner database (natural gasdistribution companies and integrated natural gas distribution companies), the
Grantee shall earn twenty percent (20%) of the Maximum Award. If the Price/Book Vauefor the Award Y ear does not equal or exceed the
average Price/Book Vauefor the Award Y ear of companiesin the third quartile of the C.A. Turner database, the Grantee shall not earn any
Contingent Performance Shares under this paragraph (3). If one or more of the companiesin the C.A. Turner database isat any time during the
Award Y ear the subject of anannounced acquisition, its stock shall not be considered for purposes of this paragraph (3).

(c) Contingent Performance Shares that are earned by the Grantee pursuant to thisSection 2 shall be issued promptly, without payment of
consideration by the Grantee. The Grantee shall have the right to vote the Contingent Performance Shares and to receive the dividends
distributable with respect to such shares on and after, but not before, the date on which the Grantee is recorded on the Company's ledger as
holder of record of the Contingent Performance Shares (the "Issue Date"). If, however, the Grantee receives shares of Common Stock as part of
any dividend or other distribution with respect to the Contingent Performance Shares, such shares shall be treated as if they are Contingent
Performance Shares, and such shares shall be subject to all of the termsand conditions imposed by this Section 2.

(d) Sale, transfer, pledge, or hypothecation of the Contingent Performance Shares shall be prohibited for a period of three (3) years after the
Issue Date (the "Limitation Period"),

-2-
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and the Performance Shares shall bear arestrictive legend to that effect. Any attempt to dispose of Contingent Performance Sharesin
contravention of this Agreement shall be ineffective. Upon expiration of the Limitation Period, the transfer restrictionsimposed by this Section
shall expire, and new certificates representing the Contingent Performance Shares, without the restrictive legend described in this paragraph (d),
shall be issued, subject to the provisions of paragraph (€) of thisSection 2.

(e) The Performance Shares will be not registered for resale under the Securities Act of 1933 or thelaws of any state except when and to the
extent determined by the Board pursuant to a resolution. Until a registration statement is filed and becomes effective, however, transfer of the
Contingent Performance Shares after expiration of the Limitation Period shall require the availability of an exemption from such registration,
and prior to the issuance of new certificates, the Company shall be entitled to take such measures asit deems appropriate (including but not
limited to obtaining from the Grantee an investment representation letter and/or further legending the new certificates) to ensure that the
Contingent Performance Shares are not transferred in the absence of such exemption.

(f) In the event of a Changein Control, as defined in the Plan, during the Award Y ear, the Grantee shall earn at least the Maximum Award of
Contingent Performance Shares set forth in this Section 2, asif all employment and performance criteria were satisfied, pro rated based on the
proportion of the Award Y ear that has expired as of thedate of such Change in Control.

(g) If, during the Award Y ear, the Grantee is separated from employment, Contingent Performance Shares shall be deemed earned or forfeited
as follows:

(1) Upon voluntary termination by the Grantee (other than for retirement at age 65 or as accepted by the Committee) or termination by the
Company for failure of job performance or other just cause as determined by the Committee, all unearned Contingent Performance Shares shall
be forfeited immediately;

(2) If the Grantee separates from employment by reason of death or total and permanent disability (as determined by the Committee), the
number of Contingent Performance Shares that would otherwise have been earned at the end of the Award Y ear shall be reduced by pro rating
such Contingent Performance Shares based on the proportion of the Award Y ear during which the Grantee was employed by the Company,
unless the Committee determines that the Contingent Performance Shares shall not be so reduced;

(3) Retirement of the Grantee at age 65 or as accepted by the Committee shall not affect the Contingent Performance Shares, which shall
continue to be earned through the remainder of the Award Y ear, as set forth above.

(h) The Grantee shall be solely responsible for any federal, state and local incometaxes imposed in connection with the delivery of Contingent
Performance Shares. Prior to thetransfer of any Contingent Performance Shares to the Grantee, the Grantee shall remit to the Company an
amount sufficient to satisfy any federal, state, local and other withholding tax requirements. The Grantee may elect to have al or part of any
withholding tax obligation satisfied by having the Company withhold shares otherwise deliverable to the Grantee as Contingent Performance
Shares, unless the Committee determines otherwise by resolution. If the Grantee failsto makesuch paymentsor election, the Company and its
subsidiaries shall, to the extent permitted by law, have the right to deduct from any payments of any kind otherwise
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due to the Grantee any taxesrequired by law to be withheld withrespect to the Contingent Performance Shares.
Section 3. Forfeitable Performance Shares

(3 Inlieu of earning Contingent Performance Shares, the Grantee may elect to receive [ XXX X] Forfeitable Performance Shares, irrespective of
whether the Company meetsany Performance Goals. The Grantee must make any such election on or before September 30, 2001, and the
election must be made in writing, in a manner prescribed by the Committee. Once made, the election isirrevocable. If a Grantee makes such an
election, heshall not receive any Contingent Performance Shares under this Agreement.

(b) Any Forfeitable Performance Shares received by the Grantee pursuant to thisSection 3 shall be issued as promptly as possible after
December 31, 2001, without payment of consideration by the Grantee. The Grantee shall have theright to vote the Forfeitable Performance
Shares and to receive the dividends distributable with respect to such shares on and after, but not before, the date on whichthe Grantee is
recorded on the Company'sledger asholder of record of the Forfeitable Performance Shares (the "Issue Date"). If, however, the Grantee
receives shares of Common Stock aspart of any dividend or distribution with respect to the Forfeitable Performance Shares, such shares shall
be treated as if they are Forfeitable Performance Shares, and such shares shall be subject to al of theterms and conditions imposed by this
Section 3.

(c) The Forfeitable Performance Shares shall be subject to thefollowing restrictions:

(1) Sale, transfer, pledge or hypothecation of the Forfeitable Performance Shares shall be prohibited for a period of three (3) years after the
Issue Date (the "Restriction Period"), and the certificates evidencing the Forfeitable Performance Shares shall bear an appropriate restrictive
legend that refers to theterms, conditions, and restrictions set forth in this Agreement. Any attempt to dispose of Forfeitable Performance
Shares in contravention of this Agreement shall be ineffective. Upon expiration of the Restriction Period, the transfer restrictionsimposed by
this Section shall expire, and new certificates representing the Forfeitable Performance Shares, without the restrictive legend described in this
paragraph (c)(1), shall beissued, subject to the provisions of paragraph (f) of thisSection 3.

(2) If, during the Restriction Period, the Grantee separates from employment for any reason other than death, total and permanent disability (as
determined by the Committee), or involuntary termination without cause (as determined by the Committee), al Forfeitable Performance Shares
shall be forfeited immediately.

(d) All restrictions under paragraph (c) of this Section 3 shall immediately expire on theearliest of: (A) the Grantee's separation from
employment because of death, total and permanent disability (as determined by the Committee), or involuntary termination without cause (as
determined by the Committee), (B) a Change in Control, asdefined in the Plan, or (C) the end of the Restriction Period.

(e) If, after the Grantee hasmade an election to receive Forfeitable Performance Shares pursuant to Section 3(a), a Change in Control, as
defined in the Plan, occursduring the Award Y ear, the Grantee shall receive at least thetotal number of Forfeitable Performance Shares due
under this Agreement, pro rated based on the proportion of the Award Y ear that
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has expired as of the date of such Change in Control. Pursuant to Section 3(d), such Shares shall not be subject to any of therestrictions
imposed by this Section.

(f) The Forfeitable Performance Shares shall be not registered for resale under the Securities Act of 1933 or the lawsof any state except when
and to the extent determined by the Board pursuant to a resolution. Until a registration statement isfiled and becomes effective, however,
transfer of the Forfeitable Performance Shares after expiration of the Restriction Period shall require the availability of an exemption from such
registration, and prior to theissuance of new certificates, the Company shall be entitled to take such measures as it deems appropriate
(including but not limited to obtaining from the Grantee an investment representation letter and/or further legending the new certificates) to
ensurethat the Forfeitable Performance Shares are not transferred in the absence of such exemption.

(9) The Grantee shall be solely responsible for any federal, state and local incometaxes imposed in connection with receipt of the Forfeitable
Performance Shares:

(1) The Grantee agrees that, no later than the date that therestrictions set forth in Section 3(c) lapse, he shall remit to the Company an amount
sufficient to satisfy any federal, state, local and other withholding tax requirements.

(2) The Grantee may elect to have al or part of any withholding tax obligation satisfied by having the Company withhold shares otherwise
deliverable to the Grantee in connection with the Award of Restricted Stock, unless the Committee determines otherwise by resolution.

(3) If the Grantee properly elects, within 30 days of thelssue Date, to include in gross incomefor federal incometax purposes an amount equal
to the fair market value of the Forfeitable Performance Shares, he shall make arrangementssatisfactory to the Committeeto remit in theyear of
issue an amount sufficient to satisfy any federal, state, local and other withholding tax requirements with respect to such Forfeitable
Performance Shares.

(4) If the Grantee fails to make satisfactory arrangements to meet all withholding tax obligations, the Company and its subsidiaries shall, to the
extent permitted by law, have the right to deduct from any payments of any kind otherwise due to the Grantee any taxes required by law to be
withheld with respect to the Forfeitable Performance Shares.

Section 4. Effect on Prior Agreements

Pursuant to an Agreement dated January 1, 1998, between the Company and the Grantee (the "1998 Agreement"), awards may vest as of the
end of each of 1998, 1999, and 2000. This Agreement hereby modifies the 1998 Agreement to provide that no awards shall vest for years after
December 31, 1999. This Agreement does not affect the awards that vest asof the end of 1998 or 1999, and the termsof the 1998 Agreement
shall continue in effect with respect to those awards.

Section 5. Additional Conditions to |ssuance of Shares

Each transfer of Contingent Performance Shares or Forfeitable Performance Shares (together, the "Award Shares") shall be subject to the
condition that if at any time the
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Committee shall determine, in its sole discretion, that it is necessary or desirable as a condition of, or in connection with, transfer of Award
Shares (i) to satisfy withholding tax or other withholding liabilities, (ii) to effect the listing, registration or qualification on any securities
exchange or under any state or federal law of any Shares deliverable in connection with such exercise, or (iii) to obtain the consent or approval
of any regulatory body, thenin any such event such transfer shall not be effective unless such withholding, listing, registration, qualification,
consent or approval shall have been effected or obtained free of any conditions not acceptable to the Company.

Section 6. Adjustment of Shares

(a) If the Company shall become involved in a merger, consolidation or other reorganization, whether or not the Company isthe surviving
corporation, any right to earn Contingent Performance Shares or to elect to receive Forfeitable Performance Shares shall be deemed aright to
earn or to elect to receive the consideration into which the shares of Common Stock represented by the Contingent Performance Shares or by
the Forfeitable Performance Shares would have been converted under the termsof the merger, consolidation or other reorganization. If the
Company is not the surviving corporation, the surviving corporation (the " Successor") shall succeed to the rights and obligations of the
Company under this Agreement.

(b) If any subdivision or combination of shares of Common Stock or any stock dividend, capital reorganization or recapitalization occurs after
the adoption of the Plan, the Committee shall makesuch proportionate adjustments as are appropriate to the number of Contingent Performance
Shares to be earned and/or to the number of Forfeitable Performance Shares to be received in order to prevent thedilution or enlargement of the
rights of the Grantee.

Section 7. No Right to Employment

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed by implication or otherwise to confer upon the Grantee any right to continued
employment by the Company or any affiliate of the Company.

Section 8. Notice

Any notice to be given hereunder by the Grantee shall be sent by mail addressed to Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, 909 Silver Lake
Boulevard, Dover, Delaware 19904, for the attention of the Committee, c/o the Secretary, and any notice by the Company to the Grantee shall
be sent by mail addressed to the Grantee at the address of the Grantee shown on thefirst page hereof. Either party may, by notice given to the
other in accordance with the provisions of this Section, changethe address to which subsequent noticesshall be sent.

Section 9. Assumption of Risk

It isexpressly understood and agreed that the Grantee assumesall risks incident to any change hereafter in the applicable laws or regulations or
incident to any change in the market value of the Award Shares.
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Section 10. Terms of Plan

This Agreement is entered into pursuant to the Plan (a copy of which has been delivered to the Grantee). This Agreement is subject to al of the
termsand provisions of the Plan, which are incorporated into this Agreement by reference, and the actions taken by the Committee pursuant to
the Plan. In the event of a conflict between this Agreement and the Plan, the provisions of the Plan shall govern. All determinations by the
Committeeshall bein its solediscretion and shall be binding on the Company and the Grantee.

Section 11. Governing Law; Amendment

This Agreement shall be governed by, and shall be construed and administeredin accordance with, the laws of the State of Delaware (without
regard to its choice of law rules) and the requirements of any applicablefederal law. This Agreement may be modified or amended only by a
writing signed by the parties hereto.

Section 12 Terms of Agreement

This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall be binding on the parties hereto for so long as any Award Shares issued to the
Grantee under this Agreement continue to be held by the Grantee.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Agreement to be executed in itscorporate name, and the Grantee hasexecuted the
same in evidence of the Grantee's acceptance hereof, upon the termsand conditions herein set forth, as of theday and year first above written.

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIESCORPORATION

By:

Grantee
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EXHIBIT - 10.3
STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHTS AGREEMENT
PURSUANT TO THE

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIESCORPORATION
PERFORMANCE INCENTIVE PLAN

AGREEMENT dated as of January 1, 2001, and entered into, in duplicate, by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, a Delaware
corporation (the "Company"), and [Philip S. Barefoot / William C. Boyles/ Thomas A. Geoffroy / James R. Schneider / William P. Schneider]
(the "Grantee") who resides at

[ADDRESS].

WITNESSETH that:

WHEREAS, the Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Performance Incentive Plan (the "Plan™) has been duly adopted by action of the Company's
Board of Directors (the "Board") as of January 1, 1992; and

WHEREAS, the Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company referred to in the Plan (the "Committee") has determined that it isin the
best interests of the Company to grant the Stock Appreciation Rights Award described herein pursuant to the Plan; and

WHEREAS, the shares of the Common Stock of the Company that are subject to Stock Appreciation Rights under this Agreement, when added
to the other shares of Common Stock that are subject to awards granted under the Plan, do not exceed the total number of shares of Common
Stock with respect to which awards are authorized to be granted under the Plan;

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby covenanted and agreed by and between the Company and the Grantee as follows:

Section 1. Stock Appreciation Rights Award

The Company hereby grantsto the Grantee a Stock Appreciation Rights Award (the"Award") for theyear ending December 31, 2001 (the
"Award Year"). Asmore fully described herein, the Award consists of Stock Appreciation Rights (the "Rights') on a maximumtotal of
[XXXX] shares of the Company's Common Stock (par value $.4867 per share). Subject to the employment restrictions in Section

4(d), the Grantee may exercise Rightson [XXXX] shares (the " Service-Based Stock Appreciation Rights") on or after December 31, 2001, and
he may exercise Rights on up to [XXXX] shares (the "Performance-Based Stock Appreciation Rights") upon the Company's achievement of the
Performance Goals set forth in Section 3.

When the Grantee exercises Rights, he will receive acash payment equal to the amount by whichthe Fair Market VValue of one share of
Common Stock on thedate of exercise exceeds theFair Market Value of one share of Common Stock on the date of grant, multiplied by the
number of shareswith respect to which Rights areexercised. For purposes of the exercise of the Rights under this Agreement, the Fair Market
Value of one (1) share of Common Stock on the date of grant is as of the close of business on December 31, 2000.

The Grantee's exercise of Rightsis subject to the other restrictions set forth in this Agreement. Inno event may the Grantee exercise Rights after
December 31, 2006 (the "Expiration Date").
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Section 2. Service-Based Stock Appreciation Rights

Subject to the employment restrictions in Section 4(d), the Rightson
[XXXX] shares become exercisable at the end of the Award Y ear. The Grantee may exercise these Rightsin addition to any Rightsthat may be
exercisable pursuant to Section 3.

Section 3. Performance-Based Stock Appreciation Rights

Assoon as practicable after the Company's independent auditors have certified the Company's financial statementsfor the Award Y ear, the
Committee shall determine for purposes of this Agreement the Company's (1) earnings growth ("EG"), (2) growth in non-regulated netincome
("NRNI"), and (3) shareprice relative to book value ("Price/Book Value") as of the end of the Award Year. The EG, NRNI and Price/Book
Value shall be determined by the Committee based on financial resultsreported to shareholders in the Company's annual reports and shall be
subject to adjustment by the Committee for extraordinary events, including, but not limited to, temperature fluctuation. The Committee shall
promptly notify the Grantee of its determination.

In addition to the Rightsthat may be exercised pursuant to
Section 2, and subject to the continued employment requirementsin Section 4(d), the Grantee may exercise Rights on up to [ XXXX] shares
(the "Maximum Performance Award") as follows:

(2) If the EG for the Award Y ear exceeds the median five-year weighted average growth for companies included inthe C.A. Turner database
(natural gas distribution companies and integrated natural gasdistribution companies), the Grantee may exercise Rights on up to fifty percent
(50%) of the Maximum Performance Award, as follows:

(i) If the EGis inthefourth quartile of companiesinthe C.A. Turner database, the Grantee may exercise Rights on fifty percent (50%) of the
Maximum Performance Award, or

(i) If the EG falls between the median and the fourth quartile, the Grantee may exercise Rights on a portion of the fifty percent (50%) available
under this paragraph that is pro-rated to reflect the position of the Company's earnings growth withinthe third quartile, or

(iii) If theEG is at or below the median, the Grantee may not exercise any Rights available under this paragraph (1);

(2) If the temperature-adjusted NRNI for the Award Y ear exceeds thetemperature-adjusted NRNI for the prior calendar year by fifteen percent
(15%) or more, the Grantee may exercise Rightson thirty percent (30%) of the Maximum Performance Award. If the temperature-adjusted
NRNI for the Award Y ear does not exceed the temperature-adjusted NRNI for theprior calendar year by at least fifteen percent (15%), the
Grantee may not exercise any Rights available under this paragraph (2); and

(3) If the Price/Book Valuefor the Award Year isequal to or greater than the average Price/Book Valuefor the Award Y ear of companiesin
the third quartile of the C.A. Turner database (natural gasdistribution companies and integrated natural gas distribution companies), the
Grantee may exercise Rights on twenty percent (20%) of the Maximum Performance Award. If the Price/Book Value for the Award Y ear is not
equal to or greater than the average Price/Book Value for the Award Y ear of companiesin the third quartile of the C.A.
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Turner database the Grantee may not exercise any Rightsavailable under thisparagraph 93). If one or more of the companiesin the C.A.
Turner database is at any time during the Award Y ear the subject of an announced acquisition, its stock shall not be considered for purposes of

this paragraph (3).
Section 4. Additional Termsand Conditions

(& Inthe event of a Changein Control, as defined in the Plan, during the Award Y ear, the Grantee may exercise Rights on the maximum
number of sharesset forth in Sections 2 and 3, asif al service and performance criteria were satisfied, pro rated based on the proportion of the
Award Y ear that hasexpired as of the date of such Changein Control.

(b) The Grantee may exercise Rights by delivering or mailing to the Committee at the Company's address at the time of exercise anotice in
writing specifying the number of Rightsto be exercised.

(c) The Rightsare exercisable only by the Grantee or, in the case of the Grantee's death or incapacity, by the Grantee's executors,
administrators, guardians or other legal representatives, and shall not be assignable or transferable by the Grantee, other than by will or the laws
of descent and distribution.

(d) If the Grantee is separated from employment before Rights have been exercised, such unexercised Rightsshall be exercisable or forfeited as
follows, except that under no circumstances may any Rights be exercised after the Expiration Date:

(i) Upon voluntary termination by the Grantee (other than for retirement at age 65 or as accepted by the Committee), any unexercised Rights
shall be forfeited, unless otherwise determined by the Committee.

(i) Upon termination by the Company for failure of job performance or other just cause as determined by the Committee, any unexercised
Rightsthat areexercisable on the date of termination may be exercised during a period of 30 days following termination, after which time the
Rightswill expire, unless such period is extended by the Committee.

(i) If the Grantee terminates employment during the Award Y ear by reason of death or total and permanent disability (as determined by the
Committee), the Grantee may exercise Rights that would otherwise have been exercisable at theend of the Award Y ear, pro rated based on the
proportion of the Award Y ear during which the Grantee was employed by the Company. The remaining Rights shall be forfeited unlessthe
Committee determines otherwise. If the Grantee terminatesemployment at any time by reason of death, all unexercised Rights shall expire (if
they have not otherwise expired) on the later of (A) six months fromthe date of death, or (B) March 15, 2001, unless extended by the
Committee.

(iv) Upon retirement of the Grantee at age 65 or as accepted by the Committee, any unexercised Rights may be exercised no later than thefifth
anniversary of such retirement, at which time unexercised Rights shall expire, unless such period is extended by the Committee.

Section 5. Effect on Prior Agreement

Pursuant to an Agreement dated January 1, 1998, between the Company and the Grantee (the "1998 Agreement"), awards may vest as of the
end of each of 1998, 1999, and 2000. This Agreement hereby modifies the 1998 Agreement to provide that no awards shall
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vest for yearsafter December 31, 1999. This Agreement does not affect the status of awardsthat vested as of the end of 1998 or 1999, and the
termsof the 1998 Agreement shall continue in effect with respect to those awards.

Section 6. Withholding

The Grantee shall be solely responsible for any federal, state and local incometaxes imposed in connection with the exercise of the Rights. The
Company may satisfy any withholding tax obligation by withholding an appropriate amount of any cash due the Grantee upon exercise of the
Rights.

Section 7. Additional Conditions to Exercise of Rights

Each exercise of Rights shall be subject to the condition that if at any time the Committee shall determine, inits solediscretion, that it is
necessary or desirable asa condition of, or in connection with, such exercise (i) to satisfy withholding tax or other withholding liabilities, or (ii)
to obtain the consent or approval of any regulatory body, then in any such event such exercise shall not be effective unless such withholding,
consent or approval shall have been effected or obtained free of any conditions not acceptable to the Company. Any such limitation affecting
the right to exercise Rights shall not extend thetime within which Rights may be exercised, unlessthe Committee in its sole discretion
determines otherwise; and neither the Company or any affiliate of the Company, the directors or officers of the Company or any affiliate of the
Company, nor the Committee shall have any obligation or liahility to the Grantee or to any executor, administrator, guardian or other legal
representative of the Grantee regarding Rights which may expire because of such limitation.

Section 8. Adjustment of Shares

(a) If the Company shall be involved in a merger, consolidation or other reorganization, whether or not the Company is the surviving
corporation, any unexercised Rightsreceived hereunder shall be deemed Stock Appreciation Rights as to the same number of shares in the
surviving corporation that a holder of the number of shares of Common Stock subject to the unexercised Rightswould be entitled to receive
under the termsof the merger, consolidation or other reorganization. Any Rights deemed granted under this Section 8(a) shall be deemed
granted on thedate theoriginal Rightswere granted. If the Company is not the surviving corporation, the surviving corporation (the
"Successor") shall succeed to therights and obligations of the Company under this Agreement.

(b) If any subdivision or combination of shares of Common Stock or any stock dividend, capital reorganization or recapitalization occurs after
the adoption of the Plan, the Committee shall makesuch proportionate adjustments as are appropriate in order to prevent thedilution or
enlargement of the Grantee's Rights.

Section 9. No Right to Employment

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed by implication or otherwise to confer upon the Grantee any right to continued
employment by the Company or any affiliate of the Company.

Section 10. Notice

Any notice to be given hereunder by the Grantee shall be sent by mail addressed to Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, 909 Silver Lake
Boulevard, Dover, Delaware 19904, for the
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attention of the Committee, c/othe Secretary, and any notice by the Company to the Grantee shall be sent by mail addressed to the Grantee at
the address of the Grantee shown on the first page hereof. Either party may, by notice givento the other in accordance with the provisions of
this Section 10, change the address to which subsequent notices shall be sent.

Section 11. Assumption of Risk

It isexpressly understood and agreed that the Grantee assumesall risks incident to any change hereafter in the applicable laws or regulations or
incident to any change in the market value of shares of Common Stock.

Section 12. Terms of Plan

This Agreement is entered into pursuant to the Plan (a copy of which has been delivered to the Granteg). This Agreement is subject to al of the
termsand provisions of the Plan, which are incorporated into this Agreement by reference, and the actions taken by the Committee pursuant to
the Plan. In the event of a conflict between this Agreement and the Plan, the provisions of the Plan shall govern. All determinations by the
Committee shall bein its solediscretion and will be binding on the Company and the Grantee.

Section 13. Governing Law; Amendment

This Agreement shall be governed by, and shall be construed, enforced and administered in accordance with, the lawsof the State of Delaware
(without regard to its choice of law rules) and the requirements of any applicable federal law. This Agreement may be modified or amended
only by awriting signed by the parties hereto.

Section 14. Terms of Agreement

This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall be binding on the parties hereto for so long as Rights remain outstanding.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Agreement to be executed in itscorporate name, and the Grantee hasexecuted the
same in evidence of the Grantee's acceptance hereof, upon the termsand conditions herein set forth, as of theday and year first above written.

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIESCORPORATION
By

Grantee
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EXHIBIT - 10.4

UNITED SYSTEMS, INC.
EXECUTIVE APPRECIATION RIGHTSPLAN

EFFECTIVE DECEMBER 31, 2000
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UNITED SYSTEMS, INC. EXECUTIVE APPRECIATION RIGHTSPLAN
INTRODUCTION

The United Systems, Inc. Executive Appreciation Rights Plan (the "Plan") provides for the distribution to certain executive employees of
United Systems, Inc. (the "Company") of aportion of the appreciation in the value of the Company that may be realized in the event of asale of
the Company. The purposes of the Plan are (1) to further thelong-term growth of the Company by providing incentives and rewards to the
executive employeesof the Company and (2) to encourage the executive employees to continue employment with the Company and
(3) maximize thevalue of the Company. To accomplish theseobjectives, the Board of Directorsof United Systems, Inc. has adopted the Plan to
authorize Appreciation Bonus Payments as described herein.
SECTION 1: DEFINITIONS
1.01 Definitions
Except where otherwise indicated, the following termsshall have the definitions set forth below for purposes of the Plan:

(8) "Appreciation Bonus Payment Amount” means, withrespect to any Participant, the Proceeds Available for Appreciation Bonus multiplied
by the Participant's Participation Rate for thePlan Y ear in which a Company Sale occurs.

(b) "Appreciation Right" meansaright to receive, upon the occurrence of a Company Sale, an Appreciation Bonus Amount pursuant to the
termsof the Plan and the Participant's Employment Agreement.

(c) "Board" means the Board of Directors of United Systems, Inc.

(d) "Chesapeake" means Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, a Delaware corporation.

(e) "Committee" means the committee appointed by the Board to administer the Plan.

(f) "Company" meansUnited Systems, Inc., a Georgia corporation.

(g) "Company Sal€" means theclosing of atransaction (or series of related transactions) that results in either (i) the disposition by Chesapeake
and all Related Companies (other thanto an employee benefit plan maintained by Chesapeake, a Related Company, or the Company) of al or

substantialy al of thestock of the Company through a sale, merger or other business combination transaction or (ii) the disposition by the
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Company (other than to Chesapeake and any one or more Related Companies) of all or substantially al of the consolidated assets of the
Company. For the purposes of this Plan, a Sale does not include the exchange of US| stock to obtain controlling interest in another Company.

(h) "Effective Date" meansDecember 31, 2000.
(i) "Employment Agreement" means a written employment agreement entered into between the Company and a Participant.

() "Net Sale Proceeds' means the Sale Proceeds minus (i) all transaction costs (including investment banking fees and commissions, if any, and
legal and accounting fees and expenses) incurred by Chesapeake, any Related Company and the Company in connection with the Company, (ii)
the fair value of all liabilities retained by Chesapeake or any Related Company and, in the case of an asset sale, by the Company, (iii) all sales
or other taxes (excluding incometaxes) incurredin connection withthe Company Sale by Chesapeake any Related Company and, in the case of
an asset sale, by the Company, and (iv) "Chesapeake Investment” (total capital plusintercompany accounts payable, less intercompany accounts
receivable recorded on thefinancial statements of the Company) made by Chesapeake or a Related Company to the Company after the
Effective Date and prior to the Company Sale; provided, however, that Net Sale Proceeds shall not be reduced below zero.

(k) "Participant” means any executive officer or other key employee of the Company who hasbeen selected by the Committee to participate in
the Plan under Section 3.01 of the Plan.

() "Participation Rate" meansa factor that, in the event of aCompany Sale, representsa percentage of the total amount of the Proceeds
Available for Appreciation Bonus that would be allocated to a Participant.

(m) "Plan" means the United Systems, Inc. Executive Appreciation Rights Plan, asset forth herein and as it may be subsequently amended from
timeto time.

(n) "Plan Year" meansthe calendar year.

(o) "Proceeds Available for Appreciation Bonus' means the amount, if any, by which the Net Sale Proceeds exceeds the sum of (i) the
Threshold Vaue and (ii) the product of (A) the Appreciation Value Per Unit (as defined in the United Systems, Inc. Employee Appreciation
Rights Plan) and (B) the number of Units outstanding under that Plan, as determined on the date of a Company Sale; provided, however, that if
Chesapeake, a Related Company, or the Company, subsequent to a Company Sale, isrequired to reimburse any of the Sale Proceeds to the
purchaser or, pursuant to theterms of any agreement relating to the Company Sale, is required to make
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any indemnification or similar paymentsto the purchaser or to any third party (a "Sale Proceeds Adjustment Event"), the Proceeds Available
for Appreciation Bonus shall be recalculated after subtracting the amount of such paymentsor reimbursements from the Sale Proceeds.

(p) "Related Company" meansa corporation, partnership, joint venture, or other entity in which Chesapeake has a direct or indirect ownership
or other proprietary interest of at least fifty percent (50%), but does not include the Company.

() "Sale Proceeds' means thefair market value of the consideration received fromthe purchaser by Chesapeake andal Related Companies
(or, inthe caseof an asset sale, by the Company) in atransaction that constitutes a Company Sale. For the purposes of this plan, thefair market
value of any cash considerations shall equal the cash consideration itself and the fair market value of any publicly traded equities presented as
consideration shall equal the market value of such equities at the close of the last trading day prior to thetransaction. Ongoing reasonable and
customary compensation and option plan arrangements between the participants and an acquiring entity shall not be included as part of the Sale
Proceeds.

(r) "Threshold Value" means $5,333,000.

SECTION 2: ADMINISTRATION

2.01 The Committee

The Plan shall be administered by a Committee appointed by the Board. The Committee shall administer the Plan in accordance with the terms
of thePlan and the requirements of any applicable law.

2.02 Additiona Powers of the Committee

In addition to any implied powers and duties that may be needed to carry out the provisions of the Plan, the Committee shall have the following
specific powers and duties:

(a) Tomake and enforce any rules and regulations it shall deem necessary and proper for the efficient administration of the Plan;

(b) To designate one or more officers of the Company to execute on behalf of the Company all agreementsand other documents approved by
the Committee under the Plan;

(c) Toappoint other persons to carry out any ministerial responsibilities under the Plan asthe Committee may determine; and
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(d) To engage one or more persons to render advice with respect to any of the Committee's responsibilities under the Plan.
SECTION 3: PARTICIPATION
3.01 Participation

Participation in theplan islimited to executives, officers and key employees of the Company,who have entered into a Senior Executive
Employment and Non-Competition Agreement with the Company.

3.02 Plan Y ears of Participation

The Committee upon the recommendation of the Chairman or President of the Company shall (subject to the Contemporaneous Senior
Executive Employment and Non-Competition Agreement) designate the Plan Y ears for which each employee selected asa Participant shall be a
Participant, but any such designation with respect to a Plan Y ear (other than pursuant to the Contemporaneous Senior Executive Employment
and Non-Competition Agreement with respect to the 2001 Plan Y ear) shall be made prior to the beginning of that Plan Y ear.

3.03 Participation Rates

The Participation rate of an executive officer or other key employees as stated in their Senior Executive Employment and Non-Competition
Agreement.

SECTION 4: APPRECIATION RIGHTS

4.01 Appreciation Bonus Payment Amount

In theevent of a Company sale, a Participant who is employed on the closing date shall be entitled to receive the Appreciation Bonus.
4,02 Timing of Payment

The paymentsto whichthe Participant is entitled in the event of aCompany Sale shall be paid as proceeds from the sale are received by
Chesapeake.

4.03 Effect of Sale Proceeds Adjustment Event

If a Sale Proceeds Adjustment Event occurs, the Appreciation Bonus Payment Amount to which each Participant is entitled shall be reduced to
reflect the recomputed Proceeds Available for Appreciation Bonus. If the aggregate amount of al prior
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payments made to the Participant pursuant to this Plan exceeds the Participant's Appreciation Bonus Payment Amount as so reduced, the
Participant shall reimburse Chesapeake or the Company, as determined by Chesapeake in its sole discretion, anamount equal to the excess.

Plan participants will have the opportunity to participate in the negotiation of Sales Proceeds Adjustmentsand all substantive data relevant to an
Adjustment will be made available to all participants.

4.04 Form of Payment

Payments made pursuant to this Section 4 shall be made in cash; provided, however, that, as determined by Chesapeake in its solediscretion,
payment may be made in any other form of consideration Chesapeake, a Related Company, or the Company receives in the transaction that
congtitutes a Company Sale. The apportionment of non-cash remuneration between the participants and Chesapeake, a Related Company, or the
Company must be done on an equitable and pro ratabasis.

4.05 Forfeiture and Expiration of Appreciation Rights

(a) Termination of Employment. If the employment of a Participant by the Company terminates for cause or via resignation prior to a Company
Sale, the Participant shall immediately forfeit all Appreciation Rights.

(b) Expiration Date. The Plan shall terminate and all Appreciation Rightsshall be forfeited if a Company Sale does not occur on or before
December 31, 2005.

4.06 Non-Assignability of Appreciation Rights

Appreciation Rightsare not assignable or transferable, except if the Participant dies after a Company Sale, payments may be made to the
Participant's estate.

4.07 Release

A Participant shall not be entitled to any paymentsunder the Plan unless, prior to any payment made under the Plan, the Participant executes a
release satisfactory to Chesapeake releasing Chesapeake, all Related Companies and the Company, their respective affiliates, shareholders,
directors, officers, employees, representatives, and agents, and their respective successors and assigns, from any and all employment-related
claimsthat the Participant or the Participant's successors and beneficiaries might have against any of them (excluding any claimsthe Participant
might have under the Plan, or any employee benefit planthat is subject to the vesting standards imposed by the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974, as amended). The release shall be as exhibit A hereto.

SECTION 5: APPRECIATION BONUS PAYMENT

5.01 Payments Solely from General Assets
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Payments under the Plan shall be made solely from the general assets of Chesapeake or the Company. Nothing herein shall be construed to
require Chesapeake, any Related Company or the Company to maintain any fund or to segregate any amount for the benefit of any Participant,
and no Participant or other person shall have any right against, right to, or security or other interest in, any fund, account, or asset of
Chesapeake or the Company from which the payment pursuant to the Plan may be made.

5.02 Plan Expenses

All expenses of administering the Plan shall be paid by Chesapeake or the Company.
SECTION 6: AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION

6.01 Amendment or Termination of Plan

The Board may, from time to time, alter, amend, suspend or terminate the Plan as it shall deem advisable, but in no event shall it alter, amend,
suspend or terminate the Plan in a manner that constitutes a breach of any Participant's employment Agreement.

6.02 Other Plans

Any payments made to the Participant pursuant to the Plan shall not be takeninto account as compensationin the determination of the
Participant's benefits under any pension, savings, group insurance, or other benefit plan maintained by Chesapeake, the Company, or a Related
Company, except as otherwise determined by Chesapeake or, in the case of a plan not maintained by Chesapeake, the Company or the Related
Company that maintains the plan. This Plan shall not entitle the Participant to any benefits under any other plans maintained by Chesapeake, the
Company or a Related Company. Nothing herein shall preclude the Company from authorizing or approving other plans or formsof incentive
compensation.

SECTION 7: MISCELLANEOUS

7.01 No Right to Employment

Participation in the Plan shall not give any employee of the Company any right to continued employment by the Company.

7.02 Taxes

Chesapeake or the Company may make appropriate arrangements to deduct from any amountspayable under the Plan to any Participant any

taxes that Chesapeake or the Company reasonably believes are required to be withheld by any government or government agency. The
Participant shall be responsible for the payment of all taxes on
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amounts paid under the Plan to the extent that no taxes are withheld, irrespective of whether withholding isrequired.

7.03 Headings

Any headings in this instrument arefor convenience of reference only and are to be disregarded in the construction of any provision thereof.
7.04 Severahility

If any provision of thePlan shall be heldillegal or invalid for any reason, theillegality or invalidity shall not affect the remaining parts of the
Plan, and the Plan shall be construed and enforced as if theillegal orinvalid provision had never been inserted herein.

7.05 Governing Law

The Plan shall be construed, administered, and regulated in accordance with thelaws of the State of Georgia (determined without regard to its
choice of law rules) and any applicable requirements of federal law.
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EXHIBIT - 10.5

UNITED SYSTEMS, INC.
EMPLOYEE APPRECIATION RIGHTSPLAN

EFFECTIVE DECEMBER 31, 2000
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UNITED SYSTEMS, INC. APPRECIATION RIGHTSPLAN
INTRODUCTION

The United Systems, Inc. Employee Appreciation Rights Plan (the "Plan") provides for the distribution to employees of United Systems, Inc.
(the "Company") of a portion of theappreciation in the value of the Company that may be realized in the event of a sale of the Company. The
purposes of thePlan are (1) to further the long-term growth of the Company by providing incentivesand rewards to employeesof the Company,
(2) to encourage empl oyees to continue employment withthe Company and (3) maximizethe value of the Company. To accomplish these
objectives, theBoard of Directors of United Systems, Inc. hasadopted the Plan to authorize grants of Appreciation Rights Units as described
herein.
SECTION 1: DEFINITIONS
1.01 Definitions
Except where otherwise indicated, the following termsshall have the definitions set forth below for purposes of the Plan:

a. "Appreciation Rights Agreement” means a written agreement entered into between the Company and a Participant, setting forth theterms and
conditions applicable to Appreciation Rights Units granted to the Participant.

b. "Appreciation Rights Unit" means aright to receive, upon the occurrence of a Company Sale, and subject to the terms and conditions of the
Plan and the Participant's Appreciation Rights Agreement, a portion of the Net Sale Proceeds.

c."Gross Appreciated Value' means the Net Sales Price times twenty-five percent (25%).

d. "Appreciated Value per Unit" meansthe Gross Appreciated Vaue divided by the maximum number of Unitsissuable in accordance withthis
plan.

e."Appreciation Value per Unit" means the Appreciated Vaue per Unit lessthe Fair Vaue per Unit.
f."Board" meansthe Board of Directors of United Systems, Inc.
0. "Chesapeake" means Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, a Delaware corporation.
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h. "Unit" means an Appreciation Rights Unit issued pursuant to
Section 4.01 of the Plan.

i. "Company Sale" meansthe closing of atransaction (or series of related transactions) in which (i) the disposition by Chesapeake and all
Related Companies (other than to an employee benefit plan maintained by the Company, a Related Company, or the Company) of all or
substantially al of thestock of the Company through a sale, merger or other business combination transaction or (ii) the disposition by the
Company (other than to Chesapeake and any one or more Related Companies) of all or substantially al of the consolidated assets of the
Company. For the purposes of this Plan, a Sale does not include the exchange of US| stock to obtain controlling interest in another Company.

j- "Committee" meansthe committee appointed by the Board to administer the Plan.
k. "Company" means United Systems, Inc., a Georgia corporation;
|. "Effective Date" means December 31, 2000

m. "Net Sale Proceeds' means the Sale Proceeds minus (i) al transaction costs (including investment banking feesand commissions, if any, and
legal and accounting fees and expenses) incurred by Chesapeake, any Related Company and the Company in connection with the Company
Sale, (ii) thefair value, as determined in the sole discretion of the Committee, of al liabilities retained by Chesapeake or any Related Company
and, in the case of an asset sale, by the Company, (iii) all sales or other taxes (excluding income) incurred in connection with the Company Sale
by Chesapesake or any Related Company and, in the case of anasset sale, by the Company, and (iv) all capital contributions made by
Chesapeake or a Related Company to the Company after the Effective Date and prior to the Company Sale provided, however, that Net Sales
Proceeds shall not be reduced below zero.

n. "Participant” means any employee of the Company who has been selected by the Committeeto participatein the Plan under
Section 3.01 of the Plan.

0. "Plan" meansthe United Systems, Inc. Appreciation Rights Plan, asset forth herein and as it may be subsequently amended fromtimeto
time.

p. "Related Company" means a corporation, partnership, joint venture, or other entity in which Chesapeake has a direct or indirect ownership or
other proprietary interest of at least fifty percent (50%), but does not includethe Company.
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g. "Sale Proceeds' means thefair market value of the consideration received from the purchaser by Chesapeake and all Related Companies (or,
inthe case of an asset sale, by the Company) in atransaction that constitutes a Company Sale. For the purposes of this plan, the fair market
value of any cash considerations shall equal the cash consideration itself and the fair market value of any publicly traded equities presented as
consideration shall equal the market value of such equities at the close of the last trading day prior to thetransaction. Ongoing reasonable and
customary compensation and option plan arrangements between the participants and an acquiring entity shall not be included as part of the Sale
Proceeds.

r."Fair Value Amount" means the amount determined by the Board under the advice of an independent third party to be thefair value of the
Unit. The Committee shall select theindependent party to determine the Fair VValue amount on each Calendar year for the Unitsissued during
that Calendar year.

SECTION 2: ADMINISTRATION

2.01 The Committee

The Plan shall be administered by a Committee appointed by the Board. The Committee shall periodically determine, in its sole discretion, but
subject to the limitations set forth in Section 4 of the Plan, (i) the individualswho shall participate in the Plan, (ii) the number of Unitsto be
granted under the Plan, and (iii) the individualsto whom the Units shall be granted. The Committee shall administer the Plan in accordance with
the termsof the Plan and the requirements of any applicable law. All questions of interpretation and administration with respect to the Plan shall
be determined by the Committee in its sole and absolute discretion. All determinations by the Committee shall be final and conclusive with
respect to all parties concerned.

2.02 Additional Powers of the Committee

In addition to any implied powers and duties that may be needed to carry out the provisions of the Plan, the Committee shall have the following
specific powers and duties:

(a) Tomake and enforce any rules and regulations it shall deem necessary and proper for the efficient administration of the Plan;

(b) To designate one or more officers of the Company to execute on behalf of the Company all agreementsand other documents approved by
the Committee under the Plan;

(c) Toappoint other persons to carry out any ministerial responsibilities under the Plan asthe Committee may determine; and
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(d) To engage one or more persons to render advice with respect to any of the Committee's responsibilities under the Plan.
SECTION 3: PARTICIPATION
3.01 Participation

Participants in the Plan shall be selected by the Committee upon the recommendation by the Chairman or President of the Company among
employees of the Company (including officers or employees who are members of the Board, but excluding directorswho arenot officers or
employees of the Company). No officer or employee of the Company shall have any right to be selected as a Participant.

SECTION 4: APPRECIATION RIGHTSUNITS

4,01 Units

(a) Nurmber of Units. A total of 1,000,000 Units are available for
i ssuance under the Plan. Prior to a Conpany Sale, any Units
t hat
are forfeited by a Participant may be regranted to any other
Participant, provided that in no event shall the total nunber
of
outstanding Units granted to all Participants exceed 1, 000, 000.

(b) Unit Paynent Amount. Subject to the terms and conditions set
forth in this Section 4 and in a Participant's Appreciation
Ri ghts Agreenment, each Unit shall entitle its holder to
receive,
in the event of a Conpany Sale, a paynment equal to the
Appreci ation Value per Unit tines the nunber of units held by
the Participant on the date of the Conpany Sal e.

(c) Timi ng of Payments. The paynent to which a holder of the Units
is entitled in the event of a Conpany Sale shall be made as
fol | ows:

(i) Fifty percent (50% of the aggregate anount to which a
hol der of the Units is entitled shall be paid within
thirty (30) days after the Conpany Sal e; and

(ii) The remaining fifty percent (50% of the aggregate
anount to which a holder of the Units is entitled (the
"Unit Deferred Paynment") shall be paid as follows:

(A If the Participant is not offered within twenty
(20) days after the Conmpany Sale a position

the Conpany or its successor or with the
purchaser of the Conpany's assets that is
conparable to the Participant's position with
the Conpany i mediately prior to the Conpany
Sal e as determ ned by Chesapeake in its sole
di scretion (a
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"Comparable Position Offer"), payment shall be made within thirty (30) days after the Company Sale;

(B) If paragraph (A), above, does not apply and withinone year following the Company Sale, (x) the Participant's employment isinvoluntarily
terminated (other than for cause) by the Company or its successor or by the purchaser of the Company'sassets or (y) the employment of the
Participant terminates on account of disability or death, payment shall be made withinthirty

(30) days following such termination of employment; and

(C) If, within thirty (30) days after the Company Sale, the Participant accepts an offer of employment from the Company or its successor or
from the purchaser of the Company'sassets and such employment continues for a period of one year after the Company Sale, payment shall be
made within thirty (30) daysfollowing the last day of the one-year period.

(d) Forfeiture of the Unit Deferred Payment. If (i) a Participant declines a Comparable Position Offer, (ii) the Participant's employment with the
Company or its successor or with the purchaser of the Company's assets is terminated for cause within thefirst year following the Company
Sale, or (iii) theParticipant voluntarily terminates his or her employment with the Company or its successor or with the purchaser of the
Company'sassets within thefirst year following the Company Sale, the Participant's contingent right to the Unit Deferred Payment shall be
forfeited.

4.02 Forfeiture of Appreciation Rights Units
Participant's forfeit any and all Appreciation Rights Units upon termination of employment with the Company or upon termination of the Plan

in accordance with
Section 7.01.

4.03 Non-Assignahility of Units.

Appreciation Rights Units are not assignable or transferable, except if the Participant dies after a Company Sale, payments may be made to the
Participant's estate.

4.04 Release

A Participant shall not be entitled to any paymentsunder the Plan unless, prior to any payment made under the Plan, the Participant executes a
release satisfactory to Chesapeake releasing Chesapeake, the Related Companies and the Company, their respective affiliates, shareholders,
directors, officers, employees, representatives, and agents, and their respective successors and assigns, from any and all employment-related
claimsthe Participant or the Participant's successors and beneficiaries might
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have against them (excluding any claims the Participant might have under the Plan, or any employee benefit plan that is subject to the vesting
standards imposed by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended).

SECTION 5: APPRECIATION RIGHTSAGREEMENTS
5.01 Appreciation Rights Agreements

Each Unit granted under the Plan shall be evidenced by an Appreciation Rights Agreement setting forth the termsand conditions applicable to
the Appreciation Rights Unit asthe Committee deems appropriate.

SECTION 6: PAYMENT FOR APPRECIATION RIGHTS UNITS

6.01 Payments Solely from General Assets

Payments under the Plan shall be made solely from the general assets of Chesapeake or the Company. Nothing herein shall be construed to
require Chesapeake or the Company to maintain any fund or to segregate any amount for the benefit of any Participant, and no Participant or
other person shall have any right againgt, right to, or security or other interest in, any fund, account, or asset of Chesapeake or the Company
from which the payment pursuant to the Plan may be made.

6.02 Plan Expenses

All expenses of administering the Plan shall be paid by Chesapeake or the Company.

SECTION 7: AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION

7.01 Amendment or Termination of Plan

The Board may, from time to time, alter, amend, suspend or terminate the Plan as it shall deem advisable in its sole discretion. The Plan shall
terminate the earlier of the payment of the last amount due herein or on December 31, 2005.

7.02 Other Plans

Any payments made to the Participant pursuant to the Plan shall not be takeninto account as compensationin the determination of the
Participant's benefits under any pension, savings, group insurance, or other benefit plan maintained by Chesapeake, the Company, or a Related
Company, except as otherwise determined by Chesapeake or, in the case of a plan not maintained by Chesapeake, the Company or Related
Company that maintains the plan. This Plan shall not entitle the Participant to any benefits under any other plans maintained by Chesapeake, the
Company, or a Related Company.
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Nothing herein shall preclude the Company from authorizing or approving other plans or forms of incentive compensation.

SECTION 8: MISCELLANEOUS

8.01 No Right to Employment

Participation in the Plan shall not give any employee of the Company any right to continued employment by the Company.

8.02 Taxes

Chesapeake or the Company may make appropriate arrangements to deduct from any amountspayable under the Plan to any Participant any
taxes that Chesapeake or the Company reasonably believes are required to be withheld by any government or government agency. The
Participant shall be responsible for the payment of all taxes on amounts paid under the Plan to the extent that no taxes are withheld, irrespective
of whether withholding is required.

8.03 Headings

Any headings in this instrument arefor convenience of reference only and are to be disregarded in the construction of any provision thereof.

8.04 Severability

If any provision of thePlan shall be heldillegal or invalid for any reason, theillegality or invalidity shall not affect the remaining parts of the
Plan, and the Plan shall be construed and enforced as if theillegal orinvalid provision had never been inserted herein.

8.05 Governing Law

The Plan shall be construed, administered, and regulated in accordance with thelaws of the State of Georgia (determined without regard to its
choice of law rules) and any applicable requirements of federal law.

swneet ox SO asim 2002, EDGAR Onl i ne, I nc.




CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
EXHIBIT 12
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 1999 1998
I ncone from continui ng operations $ 7,489,201 $ 8,270,986 $ 5,302,586
Add:
| ncone taxes 4,496, 592 4,684, 247 3, 225,744
Portion of rents representative of interest factor 217,179 162, 278 130, 717
I nterest on indebtedness 4,398, 266 3, 351, 741 3, 256, 415
Anortization of debt di scount and expense 111, 122 117, 966 123, 335
EARNI NGS AS ADJUSTED $ 16,712,360 $ 16,587,218 $ 12,038, 797
FI XED CHARGES
Portion of rents representative of interest factor $ 217,179 $ 162,278 $ 130, 717
I nterest on indebtedness 4,398, 266 3, 351, 741 3, 256, 415
Anortization of debt di scount and expense 111, 122 117, 966 123, 335
FI XED CHARGES $ 4,726,567 $ 3,631,985 $ 3,510,467
RATI O OF EARNI NGS TO FI XED CHARGES 3.54 4.57 3.43
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CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION

EXHIBIT 21

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

SUBSI DI ARI ES
| NCORPORATED

Eastern Shore Natural Gas Conpany
Sharp Energy, Inc.
Chesapeake Service Conpany
Xeron, Inc.

Sam Shannahan Wel| Conpany, Inc.
Sharp Water, Inc.

SUBSI DI ARY OF EASTERN SHORE NATURAL GAS COVPANY

| NCORPORATED

Dover Exploration Conpany

SUBSI DI ARI ES OF SHARP ENERGY, | NC.
| NCORPORATED

Shar pgas, |Inc.
Sharpoil, Inc.

Tri-County Gas Co., Incorporated

SUBSI DI ARI ES OF CHESAPEAKE SERVI CE COVPANY
| NCORPORATED

Ski pj ack, Inc.

United Systems, Inc.
Capital Data Systens, Inc.
Currin and Associ ates, Inc.

Chesapeake | nvestnment Conpany
Eastern Shore Real Estate

SUBSI DI ARI ES OF SHARP WATER, | NC.
| NCORPORATED

Ecowater Systems of M chigan, Inc.
Carroll Water Systems, Inc.
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EXHIBIT - 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-2 (No. 33-26582), Form S-3 (Nos. 33-28391,
33-64671, 333-64757, 333-63381 and 333-94159) and Form S-8 (No. 33-301175) of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation of our report dated
February 13, 2001 relating to the financial statementsand financial statement schedule, which appears in this Form 10-K.

/'s/ PRI CEWATERHOUSECOOPERS
LLP

PRI CEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

Phi | adel phi a, Pennsyl vani a
March 30, 2001
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End of Filing

swneet ox SO asim 2002, EDGAR Onl i ne, I nc.




